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Corporate Information
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Executive Directors

Mr. Zhang Sanhuo (Chairman)

Mr. Huang Boqi (Deputy Chairman & Chief Executive Officer) (Note 1)
Mr. Tse Michael Nam

Non-Executive Director
Mr. Zou Chengjian

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Ms. Leung Yin Fai (Note 2)

Mr. Leung Po Wing, Bowen Joseph Gss, up
Mr. Zhou Chunsheng
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Mr. Shek Wing Wa Acis acs(Pe) (Note 3)

REGISTERED OFFICE

Clarendon House
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Hong Kong
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Hong Kong
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Clarendon House

2 Church Street

Hamilton, HM 11

Bermuda

HONG KONG BRANCH REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Tricor Tengis Limited
Level 22, Hopewell Centre
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Hong Kong

WEBSITE

http://www.northasiaresources.com

Notes:

1. With effect from 6 October 2014, Mr. Huang Boaqi be appointed and Mr. Zhang
Xu resigned as the Executive Director, the Deputy Chairman and Chief Executive

Officer of the Company.

2. With effect from 1 April 2014, Ms. Leung Yin Fai be appointed and Mr. Lim Yew
Kong, John resigned as the independent non-Executive Director, the chairman of

each of the Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee of the Company.

3. With effect from 7 November 2014, Mr. Chan Cheuk Ho resigned as the Secretary
of the Company and Mr. Shek Wing Wa be appointed as the Secretary of the

Company with effect from 10 November 2014.

4. The Principal Share Registrar and Transfer Office has been changed from HSBC
Bank Bermuda Limited to Codan Services Limited with effect from 15 February

2014.
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BOARD’S AND MANAGEMENT’S PROFILE

EEREEASEN

MR. ZHANG SANHUO

— Executive Director (Chairman)

Mr. Zhang Sanhuo, aged 49, joined the Company on 7 June 2013 as
an Executive Director, graduated from [LZAE4E KE (Shanxi University of
Finance & Economics®) (formerly known as LI AL E28E (Shanxi Institute
of Finance & Economics®)) with a bachelor’s degree in accounting and
obtained a master’s degree in business administration from ;T % &07
(Cheung Kong Graduate School of Business). Mr. Zhang has extensive
experience in the mining industry, especially in coal and natural resources
management, and has been engaged in such business for over 20 years. Mr.
Zhang was involved in mining, technology and management of LU 784 &
BEhx—
its mine manager from 1991 to 1994, and was the general manager of |7
S iBE KR (Shanxi Changtong Coal Preparation Plant*) from 1994 to 1998
and was responsible for the production management and overseas trading

& (Department of Coal of Shanxi Province Guijiao Mine No. 1*) as

of coal products. Mr. Zhang also has experience in property investments.

MR. HUANG BOQlI

— Executive Director (Deputy Chairman & Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Huang Boqi, aged 49, obtained his Bachelor degree in Engineering
from Southern China Technical Institute in 1987 and a Master degree in
Economics from Jiangxi University of Finance and Economics in 1999.
He was the chairman and executive director of China Best Group Holding
Limited (Hong Kong listed company, Stock Code: 370) from 24 June
2011 to 16 July 2014 and is a non-executive director of China Best Group
Holding Limited (Hong Kong listed company, Stock Code: 370) from 16 July
2014 to 16 October 2014. He was also a chairman, executive director and
interlocking chief executive officer of Goldmond Holdings Limited (Hong
Kong listed company, Stock Code: 8190) from 2005 to 2010. He has over
19 years of experience in sales and operations management, corporate
finance and merger and acquisition transactions. He also has extensive
experience in the field of information technology and electronics industries

as well as mining industry.

*

For identification purpose only
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BOARD’S AND MANAGEMENT’S PROFILE

EEREEASEN

MR. TSE MICHAEL NAM

— Executive Director

Mr. Tse Michael Nam, aged 57, joined the Company on 12 February
2007 as an Executive Director and currently in charging of the new
mining operations. Mr. Tse has over 28 years of experience in corporate
management in the agriculture, manufacturing, mining and M&A sectors. Mr.
Tse was a registered consultant to Asian Development Bank and has held
key positions in several companies listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Hong Kong Stock Exchange”) such as being Executive
Director of Asia Coal Limited (stock code 835) and as the Vice Chairman
and Managing Director of Asia Aluminum Holdings Limited (a company
previously listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange under stock code 930).
Mr. Tse holds a Bachelor of Science degree in Biological Science from the
University of California, Berkeley and a Master of Business Administration

degree from the University of San Francisco.

MR. ZOU CHENGJIAN

— Non-Executive Director

Mr. Zou Chengjian, aged 72, joined the Company on 7 June 2013 as a
Non-Executive Director, graduated from LB EZE P (Shandong Institute
of Mining and Technology*) with a bachelor’s degree in mining in September
1965. From September 1965 to January 1970, he worked as a mining
technician at L& FFAaHE (Xishan Mining Administration Ximing
Mine*). He was promoted to the position of executive mining technician
in January 1970 and acted as the mining engineer, the deputy technical
manager and the acting manager of the mining area successively from
January 1970 to April 1980. He served at the development headquarters
of FHILIE B H X (Xishan Mining Administration Gujiao Mine District®)
from April 1980 to April 1985, during which period he worked as the deputy
group leader of the development group of P8 LLITE# B P (Xishan Mining
Administration Ximing Mine*), the chief engineer and the mine manager of
such mine. He then served as the leader of such development headquarters
and its deputy general and production director from April 1985 to April
1995. From December 1995 to December 1997, he acted as the director of
YEFIER B (Huainan Mining Administration®). He subsequently worked as
the deputy general manager and general manager of & &K A 5] (Huajin
Coking Coal Company*) successively from December 1997 to June 2003.
Since 2004, he has acted as the technical consultant of Shanxi Changtong
and the dean of FEK TE & R ZE LS T (Shanxi Branch of Hefei
Design Research Institute for Coal Industry®).

* For identification purpose only
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BOARD’S AND MANAGEMENT’S PROFILE

EEREEASEN

MS. LEUNG YIN FAI

— Independent Non-Executive Director

Ms. Leung Yin Fai, aged 50, joined the Company on 1 April 2014 as an
Independent Non-Executive Director and chairman of each of the audit and
remuneration committees of the Company, obtained the master degree
of commerce from the University of New South Wales, Australia. She is
currently the office head of KCS Management & Consultancy (China) Co.,
Ltd Beijing Branch and Tianjin Branch. Prior to this, Ms. Leung has been
working in one of the international CPA firms for 20 years.

Ms. Leung is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, CPA Australia, Vietnam Association of Certified Public

Accountants and the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants.

MR. LEUNG PO WING, BOWEN JOSEPH (GBS, JP)

— Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. Leung Po Wing, Bowen Joseph GBS, JP, aged 65, joined the Company
on 26 March 2010 as an Independent Non-Executive Director and member
of each of the audit and remuneration committees of the Company. Mr.
Leung is currently serving as an independent non-executive director for
two other companies listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange namely
Paliburg Holdings Limited (stock code 0617) and Quali-Smart Holdings
Limited (stock code 1348) and a special consultant to the board of directors
of Sands China Limited (stock code 1928), also listed on the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange. Mr. Leung previously served as the Director of the Office
of the Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region in
Beijing until his retirement in November 2005. During his tenure with the
Government, Mr. Leung has served in various senior positions including
the Deputy Secretary for District Administration (later re-titled as Deputy
Secretary of Home Affairs), Deputy Secretary for Planning, Environment and
Lands, Private Secretary, Government House, and Secretary for Planning
Environment and Lands. Mr. Leung has extensive experience in corporate
leadership and public administration. Mr. Leung was conferred with the Gold
Bauhinia Star honour in 2004 and appointed as a Justice of Peace in 2007,

for his very distinguished services to the Hong Kong community.
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BOARD’S AND MANAGEMENT’S PROFILE

EEREEASEN

MR. ZHOU CHUNSHENG

- Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. Zhou Chunsheng, aged 49, joined the Company on 14 June 2013
as an Independent Non-Executive Director, is currently a professor-in-
residence and director of the executive master of business administration
program of K£)T#ZfT (Cheung Kong Graduate School of Business). He
was an assistant dean, director of the executive education program and a
professor of finance of }#EE ML EET (Guanghua School of Management)
of b K E (Peking University). He is a distinguished economist, a winner
of the National Excellent Young Researcher Grant, an honorary professor
at the University of Hong Kong, a visiting professor at the City University
of Hong Kong and a member of the 1st and 2nd Listing Committee of
the Shenzhen Stock Exchange. Mr. Zhou obtained a master’s degree in
mathematics from Peking University and a doctoral degree in economics
(finance) from Princeton University in the United States. From 1994 to
1995, he was awarded an honorary doctoral scholarship excellence
from Princeton University. During 1997 to 2001, Mr. Zhou worked for the
University of California and the School of Business of the University of Hong
Kong. From April to December 2001, at the invitation of China Securities
Regulatory Commission (“CSRC”), Mr. Zhou acted as a member (deputy
level) of the planning and development committee of CSRC. He also became
the head of the finance department of Jt#E&EEET (Guanghua School
of Management). Mr. Zhou is an expert in analysing financial investment,

securities markets, capital operation and financial derivatives.

Mr. Zhou is an independent non-executive director of each of Zhonghong
Holding Co., Ltd. (Stock Code 000979: Shenzhen Stock Exchange),
Heilongjiang Interchina Watertreatment Co., Ltd. (Stock Code 600187:
Shanghai Stock Exchange), Star Lake Bioscience Co., Inc. Zhaoqging
Guangdong (Stock Code 600866: Shanghai Stock Exchange), Inner
Mongolia Junzheng Energy and Chemical Industry Co Ltd (Stock Code
601216: Shanghai Stock Exchange), Industrial Securities Co., Ltd (Stock
Code 601377: Shanghai Stock Exchange) and China ITS (Holdings) Co.,
Ltd. (Stock Code 1900: Hong Kong Stock Exchange).
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BOARD’S AND MANAGEMENT’S PROFILE

EEREEASEN

MR. ZHU BEN YU

— Chief Financial Officer

Mr. Zhu Ben Yu, aged 42, is fellow member of The Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants and an associate of Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Mr. Zhu obtained a bachelor degree of Business
Administration and Executive Master of Business Administration from the
Chinese University of Hong Kong. Mr. Zhu has over 17 years of experience
in financial management and auditing. Mr. Zhu was chief financial officer,
financial controller and company secretary of several companies listed in the

mainboard of the Stock Exchange.

MR. SHEK WING WA

— Company Secretary

Mr. Shek Wing Wa, aged 38, joined the Company since 2011. He holds
a Bachelor Degree in Business Administration and a Master Degree in
Corporate Governance and has solid experience in company secretarial field
gained from both listed companies and professional firms in Hong Kong. He
is an associate member of The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries
and The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators in the United

Kingdom.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ERE®RE

| am please to report on the Group’s business for the year ended 31
December 2014 that although some factors affecting the results of the

Company, the development of our business is still positive.

During the year, the commencement of coal mine operation was further
postponed due to the notifications of suspension for construction and
development works from the authorities in PRC in connection with
requirement of higher safety standard. We will continue to use our best
endeavours to satisfy the conditions set forth by the relevant authorities with
aim to resume the construction and development works of our mines as

soon as possible.

Regarding the Banking and Finance System Integration Services and
Software Solutions Business, a decrease in turnover and increase in
operation costs due to fierce market competition, resulted in a decrease
in gross margin and a further increase in loss for the year. As the visibility
of the PRC economy remains poor and labor costs continue to surge, we
anticipate that this business segment will continue to face spectacular
challenges in 2015. However, by implementing new strategies to cope with
PRC economy slowdown, the prospect of the business would be more

desirable.

We will continue to identify suitable investments, acquisitions and projects
opportunities in order to enhance the value of the company and to create

higher returns for shareholders.

At the same time, | would like to take this opportunity to thank our
management and the entire staff for their loyalty and dedication. | would also
like to thank all our shareholders and business partners for their trust and
confidence in the board of directors and management of the Group. With
the concerted efforts of all members of the staff, | believe the businesses
of the Group will continue to thrive and generate greater return for our

shareholders.

Mr. Zhang Sanhuo

Chairman

Hong Kong, 26 March 2015

AARARERAEEBEZE_ZT-—NFE+_A
St HUEFEZER  BALARREEIREL
REFE  ERMNEBDELEER

FR - BFEEFEERRIESRRIREZRTE
MEBREERERFE TR SEEEE
BHEHERRE - RFGHEEBEME - 6148
WE BHIEN A RE - BRBRIREESNHE
mRFEETE-

ERIRITREBREK RIS T R AR
RER - ARMSHRFIEERMN - EFEEET
BRGERA LR - CENETHREEBRE—
FIRA - HRBEAKEDRB AT - BB ITHRA
BEEA  RMMEH_Z—AFLEBD D
ESHEEROKE - A - EZEHRAERE - E
HBRREENE  AEBEEBISES LR -

BASEESNEARE  KWBIABRK K
KREFARRREE  WARREEESOR

BRI RAZBUHAKEEEERE TOH
RIBROHH - TEAFERREEBRHEAR
SEEEGREEENGER - AAMBGEEREZ2
BEINBENT  FEMNEBLEREL B
B WRBRRERE KD -

R=E%E
EY=

BB —E-RAF=A-+,H

ANNUAL REPORT 2014 ¢ 2014 F & 9



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEREF WD

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Review of Results

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group recorded a turnover
of approximately HK$106,246,000 (2013: HK$129,737,000), which
represented a decrease of approximately 18.1%. Due to the increase in
sales of coking coal, the turnover of mining segment is increased while
it was recorded decrease in turnover from banking and finance system
integration services and software solution segment due to reduce in sales of

automatic teller machines (*“ATM(s)”).

For year ended 31 December 2014, the Group recorded a gross profit of
approximately HK$49,604,000 (2013: HK$22,504,000), which represented
a increase of approximately 120.4%. The increase in gross profit was mainly

caused by the increase in sales of coking coal in year 2014.

The Group recorded a loss of approximately HK$923,131,000 as
compared to a loss of approximately HK$4,146,198,000 last year, which
was amounted to a decrease of approximately HK$3,223,067,000. The
decrease in loss for the year 2014 was mainly attributable to the net effect of
decrease in the impairment loss recognized in respect of goodwill, increase
in impairment loss recognized in respect of mining rights and property,
plant and equipment and increase in finance costs. The impairment
loss recognized in respect of mining rights amounted to approximately
HK$709,204,000 which was arising from the decrease in fair value of the
coal mining business. The decrease in the fair value of the coal mining
business was mainly due to the delay on the mines’ commercial operation
and the drop in coal price. Greater China Appraisal Limited (“Greater
China”), an independent qualified professional valuer, estimated the fair
value of the coal mining business based on the income approach using a
discount rate of 15.51% (2013:16.42%) and prevailing coal price of RMB800
per tonne (2013: RMB812 per tonne) based on market information obtained
from Shanxi. The major reason for the decrease in coal price was due to
the economic downturn in the PRC. The mines’ commercial operation
was delayed by an average of 12 months as compared with 2013 due to
the suspension of construction and development works of our mines. The
commercial operation was delayed because the Gujiao Municipality Coal
Industry Bureau issued another notification to the Group in connection with

the suspension of construction and development works and rectification
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEENWED T

scheme. The Group coal mines has been identified as soakaway pit
as mentioned in the notification, as such further exploration work on
hydrological and geological conditions and installation of additional facilities
and equipment are required to guarantee a safe working environment. For
information about the accident and the suspension of construction and
development works of our mines, please refer to the section of Business
Review for Coal Mining. Details of the impairment loss recognized in respect
of mining rights and property, plant and equipment are set out in Note 34.

Except for the changes to the mines’ commercial operation schedule
and coal prices stated above, there has been no change in valuation
methodology and only minor changes in discount rate and other
miscellaneous factors in comparison to the previous valuation of Lexing
Group, subsidiaries of the Company, dated 31 December 2013. Apart from
the delay in commercial operations of the relevant mines and drop in coal
price, the Company is not aware of any other significant reason or change in
circumstances during the financial year ended 31 December 2014 leading to
the Impairment loss.

For the key change in assumptions and parameters in the valuations of Lexing
Group as at 31 December 2014 and 31 December 2013 are set out below:

31 Dec 2014
—E-IF
+=A=+—H
Income Approach

Methodology
FE WAE

Key Assumptions RERR
1. Production Schedule 1. EEREER
Bolong Mine HERE
Operation Starting Date B EREH First quarter of 2016
—R"EHE-F
Fuchang Mine BEBWE
Operation Starting Date HEBH Third quarter of 2015
—E-HEFE=F
Jinxin Mine CERE
Operation Starting Date REHH Third quarter of 2015
—E-HFH=F
Liaoyuan Mine BEREE
Operation Starting Date B E R First quarter of 2016
—-R"EHE-F
Xinfeng Mine SEREERE
Operation Starting Date % E A 5 First quarter of 2016
—REE-F
2. Coal Price 2. JEE RMB800
AR¥8007T
3. Discount Rate (Post-tax) 3. BRI E (Hifg) 15.51%

* For identification purpose only

SEEHS-BBM - ATARE T &HE
THEREREEREIR AEERENRERTE

RKBIEHIER » Filt - FEEREIKOLE
BRI ERBEIIZEREREME - AREIER

FERE2  WRBIRBSEREFAEIRP L2
BEE FR2RERARZEL DR - SAERE

BEME  BELMREBECHERZHEBRFER
PABFES4

E UL A S Lﬁz&kﬁfifﬁWZ“
v MU ZE—=F+-A=+—RZAR

M AR EEELE 1&157‘75&14&“@] ﬁﬁ
Eﬁfﬁﬁﬁﬁmﬁﬁlﬁﬁéﬁiﬂﬁﬁéﬁ BB i
B B 3 2 BT MR E TSN ARB LA
BEAEMEARRINEBEE T — IT_EI¢+ H

=+ —HUEFBEERRE S M EBRERE -

LEEER _T-OF+_A=+—BR=F
—=ftZA= + BzlEFRZBHRER2E
ZEZEHHEMT

31 Dec 2013
- =

=

Income Approach Remarks
WAE Bt

First quarter of 2015
—LhEE—F

Update based on latest
mines’ commercial
operation schedule

BESHEREEEE
KRR

Third quarter of 2014
—mEFE=F

Third quarter of 2014
—MEF=F

Fourth quarter of 2014
—mEEME

Fourth quarter of 2014
—T-NFENE

RMB812  Drop in prevailing coal price
ARW¥8127T  ERTEEBE TS
16.42%  Mainly due to drop in risk
free rate
FERPENRFIE T
* EHHF
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BB WED

Note:  As shown in the above table, the primary change in valuation assumption would
be the drop in prevailing coal price (which is the dominant factor for the drop
in valuation) and delay in mines’ commercial operation schedule. There was no
change in the valuation methodology in those valuations. For discount rate, the
calculation of WACC is based on market participant’s data which are varied
daily due to new information and changing market expectation every day. The
decrease in discount rate from 16.42% to 15.51% is mainly due to the rise of
risk free rate where the yield rate of 15-year China Government Bond is used
as reference. Calculation basis of the impairment loss recognized in respect
of mining rights and property, plant and equipment, including details of any
changes in discount rates, key assumption and valuation method as at 31
December 2014 and 2013 are also set out in Note 34.

The summary of impairment loss recognized in respect of mining rights for

year ended 31 December 2014 are set out as below:

Mz : WM ERAT BEBRKZEIEZH AL AR
BTR(ABETRZ2EIERE) REEHE
BERNBRCE ZEHEZGHE L ESE
B o B RME - MEFHEARAKRAZE
TIIREMISLBEHIEIEL - MZEHREEHN
BERESEEHNTIEHEME( - WIREH
16.42% R E15.51% + £ B L IR ER R FI KT
B EPUPERFISEFHEFDRE A2
Z -REBELDE BELRREEERAZR
BEBEBZAEEE  AER-_T—NER_-F
—ZF+"B=+t-BZHBRX  BERER
EFEZ E A EE BN W34 -

REBEE-Z-—HF+-A=+—BLLFE - %K

TEHERER R EE BT

Date of acquisition

by the Group HK$’000
REE W EE TR
Bolong Mine 7 June 2013 200,140
HAERER —T—=%5,A+H
Liaoyuan Mine 7 June 2013 34,351
FIRIER —E-=FRAtH
Xinfeng Mine 7 June 2013 258,547
BIETER “E-=FRALH
Fuchang Mine 7 June 2013 164,337
BEER —=%FXA+tH
Jinxin Mine 7 June 2013 56,829
TERER —E-=FRALH
Total 709,204
T

The administrative and operating expenses for the year 2014 was
approximately HK$230,452,000 (2013: HK$201,241,000) which

represented an increase of 14.5% when compared with the year 2013.

The finance cost for year 2014 was approximately HK$477,771,000
(2013: HK$263,877,000) which represented an increase of 81.1% when
compared with the year 2013. The increase was mainly due to the issue
of new convertible bonds and promissory notes issued by the Company
each in principal amount of US$30 million in year 2013. Also, additional
loan interests were incurred arising from the amount due to Shanxi Coal
Transportation and Sales Group Co., Ltd. were incurred for the coal mining

business.

* For identification purpose only
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BEEEFNWED

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2014 (2013: nil).

BUSINESS REVIEW

Overview

During the year 2014, the Company has been diligently working towards
the resumption of the construction works for the five coal mines located
in Shanxi Province of the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”), which
had been suspended by the PRC authorities. Details are stated in the Coal
Mining section below.

Coal Mining

As reported in our 2013 Annual Report, an accident (the “Accident”)
occurred in a coal mine (the “Accident Mine”) in Fenyang Municipality,
Shanxi Province of the PRC on 28 September 2013. To the best of the
Directors’ knowledge and information, ten workers passed away in that
Accident. The Group has no relationship with the Accident Mine and the
Group has no interests in the Accident Mine. Subsequent to the occurrence
of the Accident, on or about 15 October 2013, the Group received official
notifications from [ 78& &k T #E2 (Shanxi Provincial Coal Industry Office*)
and HRMER T3 (Gujiaoc Municipality Coal Industry Bureau®), pursuant
to which the construction and development works of all mining sites under
construction which located in Shanxi Province of the PRC, would have to
be suspended and would only be resumed upon the successful examination
and checking of the various safety measures adopted at such mining sites
relating but not limited to the geological conditions, ventilation, sequence of

construction, site condition and construction team management.

*

For identification purpose only
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEREF WD

Subsequent to the notifications issued by Shanxi Provincial Coal Industry
Office* and Gujiao Municipality Coal Industry Bureau* as disclosed in the
announcement made by the Company on 10 January 2014, |LU78& AXET
AREFH#AFE (Shanxi Provincial Taiyuan People’s Government Office®)
issued a notification to the relevant local authorities and units in relation
to the proposed implementation of a rectification scheme for coal mines
including adoption of certain necessary measures regarding the hydrological
and geological conditions, ventilation and gas management, site conditions,
sequence of construction and construction team management. According
to the notification, the local coal industry bureaus shall conduct inspections
of the relevant mining sites and shall supervise the mining sites to carry out
the rectification. The relevant coal industry bureaus have issued notifications
to the Group in relation to, among others, rectification of the Group’s
mining sites located in Shanxi Province accordingly. Pursuant to such
notifications, the Group shall, within 15 to 45 working days after approval
of the rectification plan for each mining sites by the relevant local coal
industry bureau, carry out and implement the rectification measures relating
but not limited to the hydrological and geological conditions, ventilation
and gas management, site conditions and sequence of construction.
After implementation of the rectification measures and inspection of the
implementation of the rectification measures by the relevant authorities, the
Group shall be entitled to apply to the relevant authorities for the resumption
of the construction and development works of the Group’s mining sites

located in Shanxi Province.

As the announcement made by the Company on 8 August 2014, the
approvals for the resumption of construction works for all five coal mines
were obtained from the relevant authorities and the construction and

improvement works had also been resumed accordingly.

* For identification purpose only
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENmMAT T

As disclosed in the announcement made by the Company on 27 January
2015, Gujiao Municipality Coal Industry Bureau* issued another notification
to the Group in connection with the suspension of construction and
development works and rectification scheme. The Group’s coal mines has
been identified as soakaway pit as mentioned in the notification, as such
further exploration work on the hydrological and geological conditions and
installment of additional facilities and equipment are required to guarantee a
safe working environment. Hence the correlated staff training, construction
team management and emergency team management of the Group’s five
mining sites in located in Shanxi Province are to be further improved. The
Group has immediately established a specific project team responsible
for the rectification planning and the implementation of the rectification
measures and procured more equipment for tackling the soakaway pit.
After the implementation of the rectification measures and inspection of
the implementation of the rectification measures by the relevant authorities,
the Group shall be entitled to apply for the resumption of construction and
development works of the Group’s mining sites located in Shanxi Province

from the relevant authorities.

Fuchang Mine

In June 2013, the reconstruction and improvement works are basically
completed. Upon completion, according to the preliminary technical design,
the safety requirements for Fuchang mine, the production line and roadway
have passed the Government inspection. All aspects of the Fuchang project,
especially for mine hoist, transport, ventilation, electricity, drainage, and
the safety monitoring system are more secure and reliable and the working
environment and the efficiency of the workers and their living environment
have been greatly improved. However, as disclosed in the announcement
dated 16 October 2013, the Company received a formal notice from Shanxi
Provincial Coal Industry Office* and Gujiao Municipality Coal Industry
Bureau® that the construction and development of all coal mines in Shanxi

Province had to be suspended (the “Suspension”).

On 5 March 2014, Shanxi Provincial Coal Industry Office* and Gujiao
Municipality Coal Industry Bureau* had granted the Company approval for
the resumption of work. In late March 2014, the Company had completed
the application procedures required by Z X MEE B (Gujiao Coal
Authority*) and R AZF (the Public Security Bureau of Gujiao City*)
for the supply of explosive materials. In April 2014, the Company began
preparing the initial mining face. As of October 2014, the preparation of the

initial mining face has been completed.

* For identification purpose only
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEREF WD

The mine has already received some of the necessary mining equipment,
however, the delivery of a portion of the equipment was delayed due to
the suspension of construction and development works and the delay in
schedule. The Company is now working with the engineering department
and equipment manufacturers to complete the certification of related mining

engineering works.

In January 2015, the Gujiao Municipality Coal Industry Bureau* has issued
another notification to the Group in connection with the suspension of
construction and development works and rectification scheme of Fuchang
Mine. Fuchang Mine has been identified as soakaway pit, as mentioned
in the notification, and further exploration works on hydrological and
geological condition and installment of additional facilities and equipment
are required to guarantee the work safety. Hence the correlated staff
training, construction team management and emergency team management

of Fuchang Mine are to be further improved.

Fuchang Mine has established specific project team responsible for the
rectification planning and the implementation of the rectification measures.
After implementation of the rectification measures and inspection of the
implementation of the rectification measures by the relevant authorities,
the Group shall be entitled to apply for the resumption of construction and

development works on Fuchang Mine from the relevant authorities.

Jinxin Mine

In June 2013, the reconstruction and improvement works are basically
completed. Upon completion, according to the preliminary technical
design, and safety requirements for Jinxin mine, production line and the
roadway have passed the Government inspection. All aspects of the whole
Jinxin project, especially for mine hoist, transport, ventilation, electricity,
drainage, and the safety monitoring system are more secure and reliable
and the working environment and efficiency of the workers and their living
environment have been greatly improved. As mentioned, the construction
and development of all coal mines in Shanxi Province had been halted by the

Suspension.

* For identification purpose only
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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On April 30, 2014, the Shanxi Provincial Coal Industry Office* and Guijiao
Municipality Coal Industry Bureau* granted the Company for the approval
of resumption of work. In mid May 2014, the Company had completed the
application procedures required by Gujiao Coal Authority* and the Public
Security Bureau of Gujiao City* for the supply of explosive materials. In May
2014, the Company began the preparation of the initial mining face. As of
October 2014, the preparation of the initial mining face has been completed.
The mine has already received some of the necessary mining equipment,
however, the delivery of portion of the equipment was delayed due to
the suspension of construction and development works and the delay in
schedule. The Company is now working with the engineering department
and equipment manufacturers to complete the certification of related mining
engineering works.

In January 2015, the Gujiao Municipality Coal Industry Bureau* issued
another notification to the Group in connection with the suspension of
construction and development works and rectification scheme of Jinxin
Mine. Jinxin Mine has been identified as soakaway pit, as mentioned in
the notification, further exploration works on hydrological and geological
condition and installment of additional facilities and equipment are
required to guarantee the work safety. Hence the correlated staff training,
construction team management and emergency team management of Jinxin

Mine are to be further improved.

Jinxin Mine has established a specific project team responsible for the
rectification planning and the implementation of the rectification measures.
After implementation of the rectification measures and inspection of the
implementation of the rectification measures by the relevant authorities,
the Group shall be entitled to apply for the resumption of construction and

development works on Jinxin Mine from the relevant authorities.

Bolong Mine

In 2013, the construction of the production and auxiliary systems of Bolong
mine (including industrial sites, ground transportation, warehouse, boiler
room, dormitories, and the primary and secondary production system) was
60% completed, of which the power supply, electrical distribution systems,
heating systems and heating engineering had been fully completed. The
environmental protection work has been basically been completed and the
safety engineering construction was 80% completed. As disclosed in the
announcement dated 16 October 2013, the Company received a formal
notice from Shanxi Provincial Coal Industry Office* and Gujiao Municipality
Coal Industry Bureau* that the construction and development of all coal

mines in Shanxi Province had to be suspended.
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On 17 March 2014, the Shanxi Provincial Coal Industry Office* and Gujiao
Municipality Coal Industry Bureau* granted the Company approval for the
resumption of work. In April 2014, the Company completed the application
procedures required by the Gujiao Coal Authority* and the Public Security
Bureau of Gujiao City* for the supply of explosive materials and began to
resume the mine reconstruction and improvement works. As of December
2014, mine production system has been 85% completed, of which, the mine
development is nearing 100% completion.

In January 2015, the Gujiao Municipality Coal Industry Bureau* issued
another notification to the Group in connection with the suspension of
construction and development works and rectification scheme of Bolong
Mine. Bolong Mine has been identified as soakaway pit, as mentioned in the
notification, and further exploration works on hydrological and geological
condition and installment of additional facilities and equipment are
required to guarantee the work safety. Hence the correlated staff training,
construction team management and emergency team management of

Bolong Mine are to be further improved.

Bolong Mine has established a specific project team responsible for the
rectification planning and the implementation of the rectification measures.
After implementation of the rectification measures and inspection of the
implementation of the rectification measures by the relevant authorities,
the Group shall be entitled to apply for the resumption of construction and

development works on Bolong Mine from the relevant authorities.

Xinfeng Mine

In 2013, the construction of the production and auxiliary systems of Xinfeng
mine (including industrial sites, ground transportation, warehouse, boiler
room, dormitories, etc. inclined primary and secondary production system)
had been 50% completed, in which the power supply, electrical distribution
systems and heating systems and heating engineering had been 100%
completed. In addition, the underground construction and environmental
protection of water treatment stations and coal dust prevention sprinkler
system had been basically completed. In addition to ventilation, disaster
prevention, external safety equipment works, and other projects that have
been 100% completed, the safety engineering construction has been 60%
completed. Due to the Suspension, all the construction and development of

all mines in Shanxi has been halted.

* For identification purpose only
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On 31 March 2014, the Shanxi Provincial Coal Industry Office* and Gujiao
Municipality Coal Industry Bureau* granted the Company approval for the
resumption of work. In early April 2014, the Company had completed the
application procedures required by the Gujiao Coal Authority* and the Public
Security Bureau of Gujiao City* for the supply of explosive materials and
began to resume the mine reconstruction and improvement works. As of
December 2014, the mine production system has been 75% completed,
of which the mine development of the mines has been 82% completed.
However, due to changes in the geological structure of the coal seam and
the increased pressure, the mine development of mine has been slowed
down. The Company has consulted with relevant departments and experts
in order to provide a more suitable solution. In addition, in July 2014, the
Company was still in negotiation with a nearby village which affected the
schedule of the reconstruction and improvement works. In August 2014,
all the works at Xinfeng mine have been resumed as both parties arrived an

agreement.

In January 2015, Gujiao Municipality Coal Industry Bureau* issued another
notification to the Group in connection with the suspension of construction
and development works and rectification scheme of Xinfeng Mine. Xinfeng
Mine has been identified as soakaway pit, as mentioned in the notification,
and further exploration works on hydrological and geological condition
and installment of additional facilities and equipment are required to
guarantee work safety. Hence the correlated staff training, construction
team management and emergency team management of Xinfeng Mine are to

further improved.

Xinfeng Mine has established a specific project team responsible for the
rectification planning and the implementation of the rectification measures.
After implementation of the rectification measures and inspection of the
implementation of the rectification measures by the relevant authorities,
the Group shall be entitled to apply for the resumption of construction and

development works on Xinfeng Mine from the relevant authorities.
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Liaoyuan Mine

In 2013, the construction of the mine support system for Liaoyuan mine
(including industrial sites, ground transportation, warehouse, boiler
room, dormitories, etc.) have been completed. The inclined primary and
secondary production system has been basically 50% completed, where
the power supply, electrical distribution systems and heating systems and
heating engineering have been fully completed and the underground fire
engineering, ventilation, disaster prevention, safety equipment project has
not yet been completed. The environmental construction and the remaining
works of underground water-treatment plant have been basically completed
while the safety engineering construction has been 50% completed. Due to
the Suspension, all the construction and development of all mines in Shanxi
had been halted.

On 12 May 2014, the Shanxi Provincial Coal Industry Office* granted the
Company approval for the resumption of work while the Gujiao Municipality
Coal Industry Bureau* granted the Company approval for the resumption
of work on 11 September 2014. In mid-September 2014, the Company
completed the application procedures required by the Gujiao Coal Authority*
and the Public Security Bureau of Gujiao City* for the supply of explosive
materials and began to resume the reconstruction and improvement works.
In January 2015, the Gujiao Municipality Coal Industry Bureau* issued
another notification to the Group in connection with the suspension of
construction and development works and rectification scheme of Liaoyuan
Mine. Liaoyuan Mine has been identified as soakaway pit, as mentioned
in the notification, and further exploration works on hydrological and
geological condition and installment of additional facilities and equipment
are required to guarantee the work safety. Hence the correlated staff
training, construction team management and emergency team management

of Liaoyuan Mine are to be further improved.

Liaoyuan Mine has established a specific project team responsible for the
rectification planning and the implementation of the rectification measures.
After implementation of the rectification measures and inspection of the
implementation of the rectification measures by the relevant authorities,
the Group shall be entitled to apply for the resumption of construction and

development works on Liaoyuan Mine from the relevant authorities.

* For identification purpose only
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEENWED T

In light of these circumstances, as per the best current estimation made by &R P15 - BERNEBE BB E 2 B AT REM”
the management of the Group, the schedule of the improvement works and &t » BRE TR R KRR 7 LERREREHIWOT -

operation of the respective mines is set out below:

Expected
completion date of Expected date of
the reconstruction commencement
and improvement of commercial
works operation
EERBGETR REABEEE
ZFERT R B Z st B
Liaoyuan Mine BEIRER 30 September 2015 28 February 2016
ZE-AFNAA=+HE ZE—R"FZA=+/\H
Jinxin Mine S EBER Completed 31 August 2015
BRI —T—RFNA=+—H
Xinfeng Mine BIEERE 30 September 2015 31 January 2016
—E-RAFNA=+HB ZZE—RF—A=+—H
Bolong Mine $HRETERE 31 August 2015 31 December 2015
“T-RAFNA=+—HB ZT—HF+ZA=+—H
Fuchang Mine BERRE Completed 31 July 2015

B%TI —Z-AFtRA=+—H
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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The board of directors will continue to use its best endeavours to satisfy
the conditions set forth by the relevant authorities with an aim to resume
the construction and development work of the Group’s mining sites located
in Shanxi Province as soon as possible. We will keep shareholders of the

Company updated for the development as and when appropriate.

The summary of expenditure incurred for the year ended 31 December 2014

for the mine development and improvement works are set out below:

EEQREBRERBNATEEHEBARLZ
i UBRIREREECNIUTEE A ZESZ
ETRFAZETHE ARESRNESHESAMARR
AR EIER

BLUAZELRNETERBE_T-—HE+_H
=t ALFEEAZABESRIINAT

Mines

BEE
Expenditures Liaoyuan Jinxin Xinfeng Bolong Fuchang
(HKS$ in million) Mine Mine Mine Mine Mine
Hx(E&EET) BREE SERE BREE SHEETEE FEERWE
Exploration WiE 6.2 19.3 0.6 20.9 50.9
Construction Bl 0.1 12.7 7.6 6.6 17.0
Equipment and installation B ] 11 3.6 0.4 48.3 8.4
Total st 7.4 35.6 8.6 75.8 76.3

Note:  Due to the suspension on construction and developments of our mines, M BREREXIREEREINRE HBHT

examination, acceptance and related clearance on basically completed
reconstruction and improvement works prior to year 2014 were gradually
performed in current year.

Resources and Reserves of Mines

The mines and projects owned by the Group have significant coal reserves
and resources under the JORC Code. According to the Competent
Person’s Report from John T. Boyd Company disclosed in the circular of
the Company dated 25 March 2013, as of 21 November 2012, the total
aggregate proved and probable recoverable reserves of coal in Liaoyuan
mine was approximately 7.91 Mt, the total aggregate proved and probable
recoverable reserves of coal in Jinxin mine was approximately 3.55 Mt, the
total aggregate proved and probable recoverable reserves of coal in Xinfeng
mine was approximately 7.41 Mt, the total aggregate proved and probable
recoverable reserves of coal in Bolong mine was approximately 22.04 Mt
and the total aggregate proved and probable recoverable reserves of coal in

Fuchang mine was approximately 5.68 Mt.
The Group estimated resources and reserves as of 31 December 2014

were the same as that as at 21 November 2012 because the commercial

operation of all five mines had not been commenced.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEENWED T

JORC Mineral Resources and Reserves as of 31 December 2014: HE_ZT—MNMFE+-_A=1+—HZJORCEEEZR
IS :

MINING RIGHT AREAS
In-Place Resource (Mt) Recoverable Reserves (Mt) Marketable Reserves (Mt)

RuERE(BEM) ARHE(FEM) AEFE(EEM)

Processing
Measured Indicated Inferred Proved Probable Total Yield%  Proved Probable Total

Within Authorized Mining Elevation
B EMRSESEUR

Bolong 18.58 19.27 - 37.85 11.09 10.25 21.34 93 10.27 9.54 19.81 45
sk

Fuchang 8.10 2.31 - 10.41 4.62 1.06 5.68 92 4.23 0.99 5.22 12
"E

Jinxin 1.38 2.28 - 3.66 0.78 1.02 1.80 94 0.72 0.98 1.70 4
t2

Liaoyuan 8.97 6.52 2.53 18.02 4.42 3.49 7.91 94 414 3.30 7.44 17
Xinfeng 6.39 6.59 - 12.98 4.09 3.32 7.41 93 3.79 3.07 6.86 16
2

Total 43.42 36.97 2.53 82.92 25.00 19.14 4414 23.15 17.88 41.03 94
HE

Outside Authorized Mining Elevation
B ERRSEEE MM

Bolong 0.59 0.66 - 1.25 0.36 0.34 0.70 94 0.34 0.32 0.66 2
itk

Jinxin 0.59 2.64 0.45 3.68 0.33 1.42 1.75 95 0.33 1.34 1.67 4
28

Total 1.18 3.30 0.45 4983 0.69 1.76 2.45 0.67 1.66 2.33 6
st

Total
e

Bolong 19.17 19.93 - 39.10 11.45 10.59 22.04 93 10.61 9.86 20.47 47
A%

Fuchang 8.10 2.31 - 10.41 4.62 1.06 5.68 92 4.23 0.99 5.22 12
‘e

Jinxin 1.97 4,92 0.45 7.34 1.1 2.44 3.55 95 1.05 2.32 3.37 8
k=

Liaoyuan 8.97 6.52 2.53 18.02 4.42 3.49 7.91 94 414 3.30 7.44 17
Xinfeng 6.39 6.59 - 12.98 4.09 3.32 7.41 93 3.79 3.07 6.86 16
ZE

Total 44.60 40.27 2.98 87.85 25.69 20.90 46.59 23.82 19.54 43.36 100
#E
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The reserves and resources table was compiled by the technical advisors

from J T Boyd. Their identities and qualifications are:

Mr. Ronald L. Lewis — Chief Operating Officer and Managing
Director, BS (Civil Engineering)

Mr. Lewis has over 40 years of experience in assessment and evaluation
of coal mining companies, with specialized expertise in the areas of coal/
mineral reserve estimation, opencut and underground mine analysis,
and economic assessment of mining operations. He is a Registered
Professional Mining Engineer within the United States and a recognized
expert in mining property valuation. Mr. Lewis is a Registered Member of the
Society for Mining, Metallurgy, and Exploration, Inc., and is qualified as a
Competent Person as defined in the JORC Code. Mr. Lewis accepts overall
responsibility for the CPR and he is independent as required by Rule 18.22.

Mr. Dehui (David) Zhong — Managing Director — China, BS (Mining
Engineering)

Mr. Zhong has over 40 years of experience in the mining industry, primarily in
coal mine design at the Beijing Coal Design and Research Institute. He last

served as the institute’s Chief Engineer.
Mr. James F. Kvitkovich — Vice President, BS (Mining Engineering)

Mr. Kvitkovich has 30 years of experience in assessment and evaluation
of underground coal mining operations throughout the world. He is a
Registered Professional Engineer within the United States and is highly
experienced with regard to reviewing and evaluating CM and LW mining
operations. Mr. Kvitkovich is a Registered Member of the Society for Mining,
Metallurgy, and Exploration, Inc., and is a Competent Person as defined
in the JORC Code. Mr. Kvitkovich is a co-author of this CPR and he is
independent as required by Rule 18.22.

24 NORTH ASIA RESOURCES HOLDINGS LIMITED o it Z5 & RIZ IR B R A 7

RERERRBITERZEMERGRR - #F
ZEMRERBIMT

Ronald L. Lewis/t — L BREBEE S
faiR IBBE8E4 (L KTIR)

Lewisst At BHE D 71 FHE MG E TE@406F
BEERER/ BEMREGE - BERXRM TRERI A
MEREEEGET H A EPINE - BAER
AMEEFRBRIRMEARAREDEGEER -
Lewis/t £ BRE - rekBEmedMes I
BCJORCHRAN FTREZAEIRAL - LewisitE
BEXHAGERATREZEEBET  WAFE18.22
WRFTIRE 2 B AT ©

BREELE -BREACE-FEH 28
S+ (RETRE)
@5 N RIEE RRBA0FEH - TBELRK
PRERET T FERR 48 B R ER AT THF - B REBA R AT PR
A E A8 TA2E7 -

James F. Kvitkovich%c 4 — BIl48 %, - 12
BB (FETLRE)

Kvitkovich 5 A #¢ 55 3 T BEBE VE 2 57k (b (B T
EES0F - WRZBHEERERSM - BAXE
Bl B TRA - ERS R G ERAERE R
REFBEEZRBEXTAREREE 258 -
Kvitkovichft £ BH1E - re kB edfe
8 WACJORCHA IREZEERAL -
KvitkovichfE £ BAGERALTREZAZEE - I
RE18221KFTRE 2 BILATL ©



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

= 2L A by N\
= EEE nq-nﬂﬂ E’ﬂﬂ *ﬁ'
Mr. Paul D. Anderson — Director of Geological Services, BS (Geology)

Mr. Anderson is a Certified Professional Geologist (AIPG) with 36 years of
professional experience in exploration, evaluation, and development of coal
and mineral deposits. Mr. Anderson is a Registered Member of the Society
for Mining, Metallurgy, and Exploration, Inc., and a member of the American
Institute of Professional Geologists, and is qualified as a Competent Person
as defined in the JORC Code. Mr. Anderson is a co-author of this CPR and
he is independent as required by Rule 18.22.

Mr. Jisheng (Jason) Han — Mining Consultant, MS (Mining Engineering)

Mr. Han has 16 years of mining industry experience in both China and the
United States with extensive background in evaluation of underground
mines in China. His technical specialty is geotechnical assessments of
underground openings. Mr. Han is a Registered Member of the Society for
Mining, Metallurgy, and Exploration, Inc., and is a Competent Person as
defined in the JORC Code. Mr. Han is a co-author of this CPR and he is
independent as required by Rule 18.22.

Banking and Finance Systems Integration Services Business
In 2014, the PRC economic slowdown and rising labor costs caused
difficulties to our business environment. Therefore, the turnover and gross
profit decreased and resulted in an increase in loss for the year.

The financial industry continuously suffered a decrease in gross profit
margin. Therefore, the demand for ATMs was suppressed and became price
sensitive. In order to provide value added service, we promoted a Japanese
ATM which integrated withdrawal and deposit functions and a US ATM to
PRC banks. We had received orders from some PRC banks for these ATMs.

During the year 2014, we continuously maintained costs and provided high
quality ATM maintainance services to our clients. We successfully obtained
new ATM maintenance orders from some PRC banks.

In 2015, we will i) keep enhancing our internal control; ii) strive to control
costs; and iii) strictly control expenses. At the same time, we will endeavor
to improve our systems, strengthen coordination, standardize companys’
operation and increase the efficiency to cope with challenges that we are
facing.

Paul D. Anderson 7t & — #b & R %
T BEBEL+(ES)
Andersonft £ REBIEE M EMEE 2 il H
MR - TEER RIEDERES - ST REAEE
15 % B 36 FF F E 4L B o Anderson st & R IRAE -
rekiSherMes RENE£HEMNEY
28 WACORCHRAND IATEZEERAL -
AndersonfE ARG ERATREZAES - I
RE182215PTIRTE 2 BILAL ©
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OUTLOOK

The Company still use its best endeavours to satisfy the conditions set
forth by the relevant authorities with an aim to resume the construction and
development work of the Group’s mining sites located in Shanxi Province as
soon as possible in order to meet the expected time table. The management
is confident that the commencement of commercial operations of the coal
mines will bring strong prospects for the Company.

The Group will continue to identify suitable investments, acquisitions and
projects opportunities in order to enhance the value of the company and to
create higher returns for shareholders.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

Net assets

As at 31 December 2014, the Group recorded total assets of approximately
HK$12,875,722,000 (2013: HK$13,101,882,000, which were
financed by total liabilities if approximately HK$11,335,879,000 (2013:
HK$11,413,646,000) and total equity of approximately HK$1,539,843,000
(2013: HK$1,688,236,000. The Group’s net asset value as at 31 December
2014 was decreased by 8.8% to HK$1,539,843,000 as compared to
approximately HK$1,688,236,000 as at 31 December 2013.

Gearing

As 31 December 2014, the Group’s gearing ratio, computed as the Group’s
other borrowings, promissory notes and liabilities component of convertible
loan notes over the total equity was approximately 1.89 as compared to
approximately 1.78 as at 31 December 2013.

Liquidity

The Group had total cash and bank balances of approximately
HK$40,632,000 as at 31 December 2014 (2013: HK$88,941,000). The
Group did not have any bank borrowings for both years.

Based on the working capital forecast prepared by the management with
reference to the Group’s current business plans and the financial support
by Shanxi Coal Transportation and Sales Group Co., Ltd., the management
considers that the Company will be able to finance its working capital

requirement.
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Funding raising activities — Placing

As disclosed, in the announcement of the Company dated 18 December
2012, on 18 December 2012, the Company entered into a placing
agreement with a placing agent, pursuant to which the placing agent
conditionally agreed to procure, on as best effort basis, places to subscribe
for new convertible bonds (which are convertible into share at the initial
conversion price of HK$0.31 per conversion price) and promissory notes,
each of them had an aggregate principal amount of not more than US$30
million (the “Placing”). Part of the Placing was completed on 24 June 2013
and the remainder was completed on 3 July 2013. The net proceeds from
the placing were approximately US$59,642,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$465,208,000).

It was disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 18 December
2012 that the estimated net proceeds, after the deduction of the estimated
expenses, in relation to the Placing will be approximately US$59,642,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$465,208,000). The net proceeds from the
Placing was intended to be used for the payment of part of the consideration
for the very substantial acquisition and future operation of coal mines
located in Shanxi as announced in the announcement dated 8 October 2012
and as general working capital of the Group.

2013 Convertible Loan Notes B and C

and Promissory Notes B and C HRCHAHER

Partial repayment of Promissory Notes A £85 (&8 AMEE 5 2

Payment of interest of 2010
Convertible Loan Notes A

Payment of interest of 2013
Convertible Loan Notes B and C and KB RCHEAHZHEH L
Promissory Notes B and C

Operating expenses

L3

i
i

BEKCH -ZT—=FrA Rl ERE

KEETH-EBE
HMAQARBHA-_ZT——F+-_A+N\HZA
HEHE R_E——F+_A+1\H  AQ7
HRERETVESHE Bl REREBEAK
HREZFNRFARARBACAERSZA
30,000,000 7t 2 # ] #2 iR (& 75 (A #Z ¥ 25 5 #%
BERABRM0.31EB T A RARG ) RAN 2K
([BRESE]) BEFEIHN =T —=F <A
ZtHMHEEK R TEIR T —=FtA=H
SERK o BLE FIE 2 FTIS RIEIFEEX) £59,642,000
2T (IR E M #7465,208,000/8 7T ) °

BEARRBHA-Z——F+=_A+N\HZA
WETHRE + B I8 2 (AT FT1S 2B F 58 (F0BR 48
st %) 1 49/559,642,000% 7T (HHE KL
465,208,000/ 7T ) © BL & =18 2 FT15 ;B FRE #E
ARSMERERNKREFEZBOREURRA
BIEEMNILEZEE(FEINARA=Z—=
F+ANBZAMH)  URAEAEEZ —REE
B o

US$’000 HK$’000

FERT

FEx

XNAE—ZE-TFABRERRENR

XATBEKCHE T =F AR ERERE

BB
59,642 465,208
(45,949) (358,400)
(1,802) (14,053)
(7,903) (61,645)
(3,988) (31,110)

Balances as at 31 December 2014

RZZ—NE+ZA=+—H2#&#% - -
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Charges on Assets
There was no asset pledged as at 31 December 2014 (2013: nil).

Treasury Policies

The Group generally finance it operations with internally generated
resources, from equity and/or debt financial activities. All financing methods
will be considered so long as such methods are beneficial to shareholders
as a whole. Subsidiaries in the PRC use internally generated resources to
finance their working capital requirements. Bank deposits are mainly in Hong
Kong dollar (“HK$”), Renminbi (“RMB”) and United States dollar (‘US$”).

Contingent Liabilities and Capital Commitments
The Group had no material contingent liability as at 31 December 2014
(2013: nil).

The Group has capital commitments for the acquisition of property,
plant and equipment which were contracted but not provided for
as at 31 December 2014 of approximately HK$315,925,000 (20183:
HK$368,370,000).

Foreign Exchange Exposure

For year ended 31 December 2014, the Group mainly earns revenue in
HK$, RMB and incurred costs in HK$, RMB and US$. Although, the Group
currently does not have any foreign currency hedging policies, it does not
foresee any significant currency exposure in the near future. However, any
permanent or significant changes in RMB against HK$, may have possible
impact on the Group’s results and financial positions.

Employee and Remuneration Policies

As at 31 December 2014, the Group employed approximately 891 full time
staff in the PRC and Hong Kong (2013: 1,131). The Group remunerates
its employees based on their performance, working experience and the
prevailing market price. Other employee benefits include mandatory
provident fund, insurance and medical coverage and training programs.
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Subsequent Event

With reference to the announcement dated 2 January 2015 and the circular
dated 6 February 2015 (Unless otherwise defined, capitalised terms used
below shall bear the same meanings as defined in the said announcement
and circular), pursuant to the terms of the Remaining US$15M Convertible
Bonds, the Conversion Price of the Remaining US$15M Convertible Bonds
will be adjusted if the Year-end-month Average Closing Price as quoted in
the official daily quotation sheet of the Stock Exchange (or the equivalent)
for all the Stock Exchange dealing days on which dealings in the Shares on
the Stock Exchange took place during the Year-end-month in any calendar
year plus a premium of 15% thereof, is lower than the respective applicable
Conversion Price of the Remaining US$15M Convertible Bonds then in force.

The Year-end-month Average Closing Price as quoted in the official daily
quotation sheet of the Stock Exchange for all the Stock Exchange dealing
days on which dealings in the Shares on the Stock Exchange took place
during December, being the Year-end-month, in the year 2014 was
approximately HK$0.1479 per Share, and such Year-end-month Average
Closing Price plus a premium of 15% thereof is approximately HK$0.17 per
Share and is lower than the applicable Conversion Price of HK$0.21 per
Conversion Share currently in force.

Based on the Adjusted Conversion Price of HK$0.17 per Conversion Share
and the aggregate principal amount of the Remaining US$15M Convertible
Bonds of US$15,000,000, in the event that the Remaining US$15M
Convertible Bonds are fully converted, a total of 683,823,529 Conversion
Shares (as compared to 553,571,428 conversion shares based on the
conversion price of HK$0.21) will be allotted and issued, representing
approximately 11.24% of the existing issued share capital of the Company
of 6,082,036,845 Shares as at the Latest Practicable Date of the circular
published on 6 February 2015. Consequently, the total number of
Conversion Shares to be issued under the Remaining US$15M Convertible
Bonds will exceed the (i) general mandate granted to the Directors at the
annual general meeting of the Company held on 31 May 2010; and (i) the
specific mandate granted by the Shareholders at the special general meeting
dated 3 April 2014. As such, the Company sought the Specific Mandate
from its Independent Shareholders at the Special General Meeting which
had been held on 2 March 2015 for the approval of the allotment and issue
of 130,252,101 Additional Conversion Shares.

With reference to the announcement dated 2 January 2015, the resolutions
in respect of adjustment of Conversion Price of the Remaining US$15M
Convertible Bonds from HK$0.21 per conversion share to HK$0.17 per
conversion share and the Specific Mandate for the allotment and issue of the
Additional Conversion Shares had been duly passed by the Shareholders by
way of poll during the Special General Meeting held on 2 March 2015.
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ZRABHA T —RF-—A-_RZAMMBEH
RIE-AF_ARNBZBRH(RXEZEES
S TXPTRFAEEER A MBRAERSE
AEREEE)  BESRT - THASETIRK
BHF 2GR - WRERBEFF&EAOA - RHAE
BRXFAMAERZANCZEE - MR PTIES R
BEMBcESEADTFHUETE(IESE) S
M16% 2@ E - AR S B A 2 2 B R E A 8
T—THEBERTARRESLHEE BT
—ThBEBETARRES 2 LRESELAE -

RIBRD B AN —E—NFE+ = A (A5 A
MIMBERXSERZEE KRB AER B #®E
Pz F#E A FHRTENRTRB0.1479
BT MaFEANTFHRTESING% 2 EE
A RTRHOATEL - ERREEREAL
BN HRESEREBRN0.218TT »

BRIEAEHRETRILBRBROHOATETRHET
—THBESELRRESR A £ E515,000,000
ETEE MR T THEBETARKRESE
BH AR - ARAEEE K EE1T4A 683,828,529
BRBEROG(MIFERLBREBEO2NBTLTE Y
553,571,428 R ik h) - HERR -_ZE—HA
FoARNBHEZBRZEEAIITHEARQR
I8 A B %17 % A R 6,082,036,845 B % 19 2 4
11.24% « Wt - REHK T —FTRBEEE LR
BREFBFEITZABBROBE - SRBEORZ
E-EFRA=Z+—HBRITZARARTEFK
ELERTESZ —MBERE RIBRENR=_Z—N
FHA=AREHFIASG EEEZHRRE -
It AARRBREREIAE ((IRREIAE] B
R-ZE—AF=A-B8T) L SKBIRRF
TARFRIEME - DA AEBC B 12 8617130,252,101 IR 58
SN IRRRAD o

ZRRABHA—T—RAF-—AZRZAM BN
BT - THASETAIRRES LREZRHE
HERLBRN01IBTHAERREBRIILEKN
0178 7T » JA MBS M BIT RSN S et 2 45 5l
BREZRER ER-E-—RAF=A-HB{TZ
MR RIR G ERRFRIARRER AT A ER BB -

ANNUAL REPORT 2014 ¢ 2014 F & 29



REPORT OF DIRECTORS
EEEHRE

The board of Directors (the “Board”) of the Company is pleased to present
their report and the audited financial statements of the Company and its

subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2014.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The Group’s
principal business activities during the year were principally involved in the
distribution of information technology products, and geological survey,
exploration and development of coal, sales of coking coal and coal trading.
Details of the material activities of the Group’s principal subsidiaries are set

out in Note 42 to the consolidated financial statements.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors of the Company, the Company has
maintained sufficient public float of not less than 25% of the Company’s total
issued share capital as required under the Listing Rules throughout the year

ended 31 December 2014 and as at the date of this report.

RESULTS

The Group’s results for the year ended 31 December 2014 and the state
of affairs of the Company and of the Group at that date are set out in the

consolidated financial statements on pages 60 to 184.

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The following is a summary of the published results and the assets, liabilities
and non-controlling interests of the Group, prepared on the basis set out in
the notes to the consolidated financial statements. This summary does not

form part of the audited consolidated financial statements.
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RESULTS S
2014 2011
—E-MmF T—=4 T —T——F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THAT BT THIT
TURNOVER 1]
Continuing operations FEREET 106,246 129,737 86,147 73,497 31,022
Discontinuing operations [EESIE = - - - -
106,246 129,737 86,147 73,497 31,922
LOSS BEFORE TAX BB AR
Continuing operations FEREET (1,100,171)  (4,208,178) (114,044) (946,740) (3,038,980
Discontinuing operations RESIEEE - - - - 257
(1,100,171) (4,203,178) (114,044) (946,740) (3,038,723)
TAX | 177,040 56,980 (320) 81,350 28,486

LOSS BEFORE NON-CONTROLLING R FERRERAEE

INTERESTS (923,131)  (4,146,198) (114,364) (865,390)  (3,010,237)
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS R 470,623 198,238 632 74 460
NET LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO RRFEL T

SHAREHOLDERS (452,508)  (3,947,960) (118,732) (865,316)  (3,009,777)
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ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

EE  BEERFERES

2014 2012 2010
—B-pE = —T-F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
THAR T THL FTHT TR
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE 12,739,018 12,826,791 567,343 578,548 1,400,130
CURRENT ASSETS TBEE 136,704 275,091 82,076 136,137 316,470
CURRENT LIABILITIES hBaE (4,043871) (3063712  (359,006)  (310,517) (55,082)
NET CURRENT (LIABILITIES) ASSETS hE(EE) EETE (3907,167)  (2,788,621)  (277,830)  (174,380) 261,388
TOTAL ASSETS LESS BEABARBER
CURRENT LIABILITIES 8,831,851 10,038,170 289,513 404,168 1,661,518
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBAR (7,202,008)  (8,349,934) (40,756) (40,756)  (433,803)
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS EBRRER (4,531,259)  (4,900,904) 2 (399) (430)
(2,991,416) (3,212,668) 248,759 363,013 1,227,285
PLANT AND EQUIPMENT B R&E
Details of movements in the plant and equipment of the Company and of the AN A G RANEE Y HERBERFERNZ SIS
Group during the year are set out in Note 16 to the consolidated financial — ER 44 B TSR EMT3T16 ©
statements.
SHARE CAPITAL L@
Details of the movements in the Company’s share capital during the year,  ZANA &4 RAKA 2 & 87 15E R & 8 R FEH R &5

together with the reasons for such movements, are set out in Note 29, to the

consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and of the Group
during the year are set out in Note 41(b) to the consolidated financial
statements and in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on page

64, respectively.
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DISTRIBUTION RESERVES

At 31 December 2014, the Company had no retained profits available
for cash distribution or distribution in specie. Subject to the Companies
Act 1981 of Bermuda (the “Act”), the Company’s contributed surplus of
approximately HK$458,561,000 is distributable. The contributed surplus
and the Company’s share premium account following a reduction thereof in
compliance with the Act and the approval of Shareholders of the Company,
in the amount of approximately HK$4,974,717,000 at 31 December 2014,
may be set off against the accumulated losses of the Company. Thereafter,
any balance in the share premium account of the Company may be

distributed in the form of fully paid bonus shares.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s byelaws
(the “Bye-laws”) or the laws of Bermuda, the jurisdiction in which the
Company is incorporated, which would oblige the Company to offer new

shares on a pro rata basis to its existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE AND REDEMPTION OF SHARES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, redeemed or

sold any of the Company’s listed securities during the year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

Sales to the Group’s largest customer accounted to approximately 19.0% of
the Group’s total sales in 2014. Sales to the Group’s five largest customers

accounted for approximately 51.8% of the Group’s total sales in 2014.

Purchases from the Group’s five largest suppliers accounted for 38.2% of
the total purchases for in 2014 and purchases from the largest supplier
included therein amounted to 23.8% of the Group’s total purchases for the

year.

None of the Directors, any of their associates, or any of the substantial
shareholders of the Company (which are disclosed to the Directors) had any

beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest customers and suppliers.

DIk RE
R-ZT—NMFE+_A=+—8 AREWELT
HATEREDRIEYDIK - EFEBEE
—NAN—FRAE(TRAEDZERT - ARQ
F]#47458,561,000/ 7L 2 BIABERA] T 5K ° &
ABBEARRFAR_ZE—NFE+_A=+—B4
4,974,717,0007 7T 2 B0 @ (B BR (R IR 2 RA
RARRBRE 2 BEHIRE ) AT AR EEA AR Z
ZWEER - Hig  ARRRMDBERE 2 EME
MRAERBUR IR DR

BrRERE

AR Z AR AT REARE ) s A 2 B A
Y AEERBAREENDEHARNRFMLAE
BREPIRERARREEN D 2 EERRER

F o

BE - HERERERS
ARALEEANBAAVERRENRE - §
S E AR A LTES «
FERFRHER

AARBRATFPEHZHEERERR _-F
—OFHELEN19.0% - MARERAEF
EHZHELMAEER T -—MFHELRD
51.8% °

i
|Gl

AEBRIAHEEERZRBE_T—OFR
FFEEe8.2%  MERFRRAHREMEL ZRE
HAREEARFEZIREHE23.8% °
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EfRE R
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DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year of 2014 and up to the date of
this report were as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Zhang Sanhuo (Chairman)

Mr. Huang Bogqi (Deputy Chairman & Chief Executive Officer)
(appointed on 6 October 2014)

Mr. Tse Michael Nam

Mr. Zhang Xu (resigned on 6 October 2014)

Non-executive Directors
Mr. Zou Chengjian

Independent Non-executive Directors

Ms. Leung Yin Fai (appointed on 1 April 2014)

Mr. Leung Po Wing, Bowen Joseph GBS, JP

Mr. Zhou Chunsheng

Mr. Lim Yew Kong, John (resigned on 1 April 2014)

In accordance with Bye-law 111(A) and 115 and the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices (the “Code”) contained in Appendix 14 of the Rules
(the “Listing Rules”) Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange, Mr. Huang Bogi, Mr. Zhou Chunsheng and Mr. Leung Po Wing,
Bowen Joseph will retire by rotation at the forthcoming annual general
meeting. Being eligible, all of the retiring directors will offer themselves for

re-election as Directors.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the current Directors and of the senior management
of the Group (the “Management”) are set out on pages 4 to 8 of this Annual

Report.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No Director had a material beneficial interest, either directly or indirectly,
in any contract of significance to the business of the Group to which the

Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party during the year.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

At 31 December 2014, the interests and short positions of the Directors
and chief executives of the Company in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company or its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFQO”)),
as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to
Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by

directors of Listed Companies (the “Model Code”), were as follows:

Long/Short position in the shares

EERITRAZRKRG - HEKR
REZFZEERAR

[
93

F+-A=+—H  FRRAEFRKZ
RARREISEARE AR (EEREF R
[ LB GO ]) EXVER) 2D
I REFP - EEARAREES MBS
3E21KATFE 2 B MArRLEk - iRE LT
EITEFRXHHRESTR([RETR])
RA B Pr 2 Em OR BT

B

=2

T —m
oIl (

oy O

HR

moE O x
SO AT N
I

u/i>

=

5

=]

el

oo
>

B o B =
%w

A

RRBz2ER KR

Approximate

percentage of

issued share

capital as at

Name of Directors Nature of interest No. of shares held Position 31 December 2014
ER=F—IF
+=A=+—-~8”

ZEBITRA
FERGOEE S BAOBES
Mr. Zhang Sanhuo (Note) Beneficial owner 6,814,375,241 Long 112.91%
R=E R E (M) EmEBA oY)
Beneficial owner 7,871,442,869 Short 130.43%
BEEEBA 2y}
Mr. Tse Michael Nam Beneficial owner 1,631,642 Long 0.03%
RS BEEEBA 552)

Note: These shares are held by China OEPC Limited (“China OEPC”) which is
beneficially owned by Best Growth Enterprises Limited and Mr. Zhang Sanhuo is
the ultimate beneficial owner. Therefore, by virtue of the SFO, Mr. Zhang Sanhuo
was deemed to be interested in all the shares held by China OEPC.

On 21 July 2014, Mr. Zhang Sanhuo has transferred HK$15,000,000 convertible
bonds, which is convertible into ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each in the capital
of the Company, to his wife Ms. Hao Ting. Therefore, by virtue of the SFO, Mr.
Zhang Sanhuo was deemed to be interested in all the shares held by his wife as
family interests.

MisE: HERMDBFEER(ES)ZERERAR(F
B R 1) ¥ A - &2 F Al B Best Growth
Enterprises Limited Bz=#A MR=KAE AR
BRESBEEA - At - RIEFEHRBEKL
REEXREWBARPREEREEZMBERS
RS -

R-ZE—NFELA=+—H R=EEEDHE
#15,000,0008 T2 AT R EH (AT LR AR
RIS SR EEO.ONA T LB FEET
Wﬂzi Bt - RIEFH RS G - k=
BEXRENMERAREZETFHAEZMEROPE
ARG ©
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In addition to the above, as at 31 December 2014, certain Directors have
non-beneficial personal equity interests in certain subsidiaries held for
the benefit of the Company solely for the purpose of complying with the

minimum company membership requirements.

Except as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2014, neither the Chief
Executive Officer nor any of the Directors of the Company had or was
deemed to have any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company and its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) (i) which were required to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7
and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which
they were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO); or (ii)
which were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in
the register referred to therein; or (iii) which were required to be notified to

the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year were rights to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in the Company granted to any of the Directors or
their respective spouses or children under 18 years of age, or were any
such rights exercised by any of them; or was the Company, or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire

such rights in any other body corporate.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

At as the date of this report, the Company does not have a valid share option

scheme.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER PERSONS’ FERRREM A T RKRH KB
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND BEER#p =R AR
UNDERLYING SHARES

() Persons who have an interest or short position which is (i) HEEERBERFRBPEFRHIZEXV

discloseable under Divisions 2 and 3 of part XV of the SFO HE2RID BB Z2ERRAE
and Substantial Shareholders ZALTREERR

So far as is known to the Directors, as at 31 December 2014, the BEEMHN R-_ZT—NWE+-_A=1+—
following persons (not being Directors or the Chief Executive Officer of B THATL(WIEARRESHITHAR)
the Company) had, or were deemed to have, interests or short positions RO SMEERD T - AR AEERIE
in the shares or underlying shares which are required to be disclosed HEREEIRDIEXVEE2 M35 G AR
to the Company and the Stock Exchange under the provisions of ARG RBRBRE  Eadoke  E#
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or who were directly or indirectly SEEEAMAERN RN EAIBERERSE
interested in 10% or more of the nominal value of any class of share ERIKE QB2 RERG TR 2 EREERIR
capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at general meetings NEE10% A £z s -

of any member of the Group:

(i) Interests in the shares and underlying shares (i) M RN < s

Approximate

No. of shares percentage of

and/or issued share

Name of substantial underlying capital as at

shareholders Nature of interest shares held Position 31 December 2014

ER=F—mF

+=HA=+—H

FiERGR~ ZEBITRA

FTERREER NEERGEE S BHBE D

Best Growth Enterprises Interest of controlled 6,814,375,241 Long 112.91%
Limited (Note) corporation e

Best Growth Enterprises AR 7,871,442,869  Short 130.43%
Limited (P 3%) KR

China OEPC Limited (Note) Beneficial owner 6,814,375,241 Long 112.91%
hEIEEIR (B )R EmnEAA HaE

ARA AL 7,871,442,869 Short 130.43%
KB

Baofa Industrial Limited Beneficial owner 1,170,109,696 Long 19.39%
BERBEXARAF BEHEAA A

New HongFa Industrial Limited  Beneficial owner 643,878,380 Long 10.67%
BEHEAA ey

ANNUAL REPORT 2014 ¢ 2014 F & 37



REPORT OF DIRECTORS
EEEHRE

38

Name of substantial

shareholders

EFERREHE

Hwa Foo Holdings Limited
EEERAR DA

Golden Year Holdings Limited

Diamond Lion Limited

ERMARAR

Business Ally Investments
Limited (Note) (FffzE)

CCB International Asset
Management Limited (Note)

BIREREEERERAR
(PEE)

CCB International (Holdings)
Limited (Note)
FEIREIRR (R BIR A R (FEE)

CCB Financial Holdings
Limited (Note)
BITERIERBR AR ()

CCB International Group
Holdings Limited (Note)
BITEREEIERBR AT

(PE)

China Construction Bank
Corporation (Note)

PEIRRIRITRD AR A A
(PEE)

Central Huijin Investment
Ltd. (Note)

PIESIREBREMERF]
(PREE)

Nature of interest

Beneficial owner

BEEAA

Beneficial owner

BEEAA

Beneficial owner

BEEAA

Registered owner

A A

Interest of controlled
corporation
A E R

Beneficial owner

BEEAA

Interest of controlled
corporation
T EE

Interest of controlled
corporation
A E

Interest of controlled
corporation
A E

Interest of controlled
corporation
R EE

No. of shares
and/or
underlying

shares held

FsRHn R,
HABERGEE

1,065,092,700

774,655,402

1,287,756,754

4,872,441,319

4,872,441,319

4,872,441,319

4,872,441,319

4,872,441,319

4,872,441,319

4,872,441,319
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Position

Long
HE

Long
HE

Long
HE

Long
HE

Long
HE

Long
HE

Long
HE

Long
HE

Long
HE

Long
HE

Approximate

percentage of

issued share

capital as at

31 December 2014
ER=B— M
+=A=+-~8”

ZEBRITRA
MABD

17.65%

12.84%

21.34%

80.74%

80.74%

80.74%

80.74%

80.74%

80.74%

80.74%
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Note:

China OEPC beneficially owns, 299,413,439 ordinary shares,
HK$931,825,325 CB and 909,600,000 convertible preference shares
(“CPS”) which are all convertible into an aggregate of 6,514,961,802 shares;
and, in short position, 412,169,962 ordinary shares, 472,987,376 CPS
and HK$1,176,703,833 CB which are convertible into an aggregate of
7,459,272,908 shares. China OEPC is beneficially owned by Best Growth
Enterprises Limited (“Best Growth”). Best Growth is beneficially owned by
Mr. Zhang Sanhuo, the Chairman of the Company. By virtue of the SFO,
Mr. Zhang Sanhuo and Best Growth are deemed to be interested in those
shares and derivative interest held by China OEPC. On 21 July 2014, Mr.
Zhang Sanhuo has transferred HK$15,000,000 CB to his wife, Ms. Hao Ting.
Therefore, by virtue of the SFO, Mr. Zhang Sanhuo was also deemed to be
interested in all the shares held by his wife as family interests.

Business Ally Investments Limited (“BAI”) beneficially owns, ordinary shares,
convertible loan notes and CPS which are convertible into an aggregate
of 4,872,441,319 shares. BAIl is wholly and beneficially owned by CCB
International Asset Management Limited (“CCB-IAM”). By virtue of the SFO,
CCBIAM was deemed to be interested in those shares held by BAI.

CCB-IAM is in turn wholly and beneficially owned by CCB International
(Holdings) Limited (“CCB-IH"). By virtue of the SFO, CCB-IH was deemed to
be interested in those shares which CCB-IAM was interested.

CCB-IH is in turn wholly and beneficially owned by CCB Financial Holdings
Limited (“CCB-FH”"). By virtue of the SFO, CCB-FH was deemed to be
interested in those shares which CCB-IH was interested.

CCB-FH is in turn wholly and beneficially owned by CCB International Group
Holdings Limited (“CCB-IGH”). By virtue of the SFO, CCB-IGH was deemed
to be interested in those shares which CCB-FH was interested.

CCB-IGH is in turn wholly and beneficially owned by China Construction
Bank Corporation (“CC Bank”). By virtue of the SFO, CC Bank was deemed
to be interested in those shares which CCB-IGH was interested.

CC Bank is in turn 57.26% owned by Central Huijin Investment Ltd. (“Central
Huijin”). By virtue of the SFO, Central Huijin was deemed to be interested in
those shares which CC Bank was interested.

BT

B AR E A 299,413,439 8 I B
f& - 931,825325 ;T 2 AT R R & F &k
909,600,000 f% 7] ¥ 2 18 5 A% ([ =] 85 #0 &
L)) - 2EA R RE $£6,514,961,802
BE R D 0 A Rk A 412,169,962 i & &
& - 472,987,376 % Al & IR B %k R K&
1,176,703,833 1 Al k&% @ Al iR A
$£7,459,272,908 I i 7 © B B¢ JR A Best
Growth Enterprises Limited([ Best Growth])
B A - Best Growthli AR A X FER =
EREEES - BEBLARHEKD - R
= & 5t & K Best Growth#% 18 & 1A B Bl 68 R
BAEZZERMRITEESHEAEZ - K=
T-WELA-+—H R-&EX4LECEE
15,000,000/ 7T 2 Al IR EH T HZ F R 2
Z+ o Bt - IREBEFSHSREBAEKS - k=K

ENRIERREZFRAZIARDPEAR

Business Ally Investments Limited([BAI]) &
mEA AR RE 4,872,441 319 R 5D 2
Limhk - TRRERZERITERELR -
BAIRZBEBREETEER AR ([ZEEE
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(ii) Interests in shares of associated corporations of the
company

Name of subsidiary

MEQRRE

Name of entity

EREE

BMC Software (China) Ltd. BMC Software (HK) Ltd.

Class and no. of securities

R ERIREE

1 ordinary share of

(i) AR BHEEER D 2 s

Percentage
shareholdings

REF DL

10%
HK$1 (Long position)

1BREEVET 2B (FR)

Except as disclosed above and so far as the Directors were aware, as at
31 December 2014, no other party had any interest or short position in the
shares, the underlying shares or debentures of the Company which would
be required to be disclosed to the Company under provisions of Division
2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which would be required, pursuant to

Section 336 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to herein.

DISCLOSURE OF DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION PURSUANT
TO RULE 13.51B(1) OF THE LISTING RULES

On 1 January 2014, the terms and condition of appointment of Mr. Tse
Michael Nam as an Executive Director of the Company has been changed by
entered into a letter of appointment and superseded the service agreements
with a term of service of two years and subject to the rotational retirements
under the Bye-laws. Mr. Tse’s remuneration is governed by the Bye-laws
and he is currently entitled to receive a monthly remuneration of HK$25,000
which is determined by the Board based on the recommendation from
the Remuneration Committee of the Company with reference to, among
other matters, his duties and responsibilities, salary paid by comparable
companies, time commitment, employment conditions of other members
of the Group and a bonus for each financial year which is subject to the
discretion of the Board.

On 1 April 2014, Ms. Leung Yin Fai had been appointed and Mr. Lim Yew
Kong, John had been resigned as the independent non-Executive Director,
the chairman of each of the Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee
of the Company. Ms. Leung Yin Fai is entitled to a monthly remuneration of
HK$14,000.

On 5 September 2014, Mr. Leung Po Wing, Bowen Joseph, the independent
non-Executive Director of the Company, retired as an independent non-
executive director of the board of PY| Corporation Limited (stock code:
0498). Mr. Leung is also an independent non-executive director of Paliburg
Holdings Limited (stock code: 0617) and Quali-Smart Holdings Limited
(stock code: 1348) and a special consultant to the board of directors of
Sands China Limited (stock code: 1928), as previously reported.
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On 6 October 2014, Mr. Huang Bogi had been appointed as an Executive
Director, Deputy Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and an authorised
representative of the Company. Mr. Huang Bogi is entitled to a monthly
remuneration of HK$120,000 which is determined by the Board based on
the recommendation from the Remuneration Committee of the Company
with reference to, among other matters, his duties and responsibilities,
salary paid by comparable companies, time commitment, employment
conditions of other members of the Group and a bonus for each financial

year which is subject to the discretion of the Board.

During the year, the Executive Directors, Mr. Zhang Sanhuo, Mr. Huang
Bogi and Mr. Tse Michael Nam received emoluments of approximately
HK$1,577,000, HK$374,000 and HK$315,000 respectively. The Non-
Executive Directors, Mr. Zou Chengjian received HK$168,000. The
Independent Non-Executive Directors, Ms. Leung Yin Fai, Mr. Leung
Po Wing, Bowen Joseph Gas, up and Mr. Zhou Chunsheng earned fees

amounting to HK$126,000, HK$164,000 and HK$168,000 respectively.

The basis for determining the Directors’ emoluments (including bonus

payments) remained unchanged during the year.

On 26 March 2015, the terms and condition of appointment of Mr. Leung
Po Wing, Bowen Joseph as an Independent non-Executive Director of the
Company has been revised with a term of service of one year and subject
to rotational retirements under the Bye-laws. Mr. Leung’s remuneration is
governed by the Bye-laws and he is currently entitled to receive a monthly
remuneration of HK$14,000 which is determined by the Board based on the
recommendation from the Remuneration Committee of the Company with
reference to, among other matters, his duties and responsibilities, salary
paid by comparable companies, time commitment, employment conditions
of other members of the Group and a bonus for each financial year which is

subject to the discretion of the Board.

Save as disclosed above, during the year, there were no other changes to
the Directors’ information that are required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule
18.51B(1) of the Listing Rules.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Throughout the year ended 31 December 2014, the Company had complied
with the code provisions and recommended best practices of the Code
except for the establishment of nomination committee. Details of corporate
governance are set out in the section headed “Corporate Governance

Report” in this Annual Report.
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AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2014 had been audited by SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited, who
will retire and being eligible, offer themselves for reappointment as auditor at

the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established an audit committee (the “Audit Committee”) on
12 June 1999 with clear written terms of reference. For the year ended
31 December 2014 and as at the date of this annual report, the Audit
Committee comprised three members, all of whom were independent non-
Executive Directors. The composition of the Audit Committee as at the
date of this annual report was Ms. Leung Yin Fai (Chairman of the Audit
Committee), Mr. Leung Po Wing, Bowen Joseph GBs, yp and Mr. Zhou
Chunsheng. Ms. Leung Yin Fai, the chairman of the Audit Committee is a
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, CPA
Australia, Vietnam Association of Certified Public Accountants and the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. None of the members is a
partner or former partner of SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited, the Company’s

external auditor.

The Audit Committee meets at least twice a year to review the annual and
interim results and the accompanying auditor’s reports, the accounting
policies and practices adopted by the Company, and the financial and

internal control systems of the Company.

The Audit Committee had reviewed the Group’s audited consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2014, including the
disclaimer opinion in the auditor’s report thereon, and had submitted its

views to the Board of Directors.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD
Mr. Zhang Sanhuo

Chairman

Hong Kong, 26 March 2015
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The Board and the Management of the Company are highly committed

to maintaining good corporate governance practices and transparency in

fulfilling their corporate responsibility and accountability to the Company’s

Shareholders. The Board and the Management recognize that the

maintenance of good corporate governance practices is an essential factor

in achieving financial success and enhancing shareholder value.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CODE ON CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

(@)

Corporate Governance Practices

Throughout the year ended 31 December 2014, the Company has
complied with the code provisions and recommended best practices
of the Code except for the deviation as set out below. The Board will
continue to review and monitor the Company’s corporate governance

practices to ensure compliance with the Code.

The Company had adopted an internal corporate governance policy
to maintain a higher level of the Company’s compliance with the Code
throughout the year ended 31 December 2014 and also to report
on whether any non-compliance with the Code was fully disclosed
and explained in this Corporate Governance Report. The execution
and enforcement of the Company’s corporate governance system is
monitored and reviewed by the Board annually. The Company believes
that the commitment of high-standard corporate governance will

provide long-term value and maximized returns to Shareholders.

Securities Transactions

The Model Code has been adopted as the code for Directors’ securities
transaction for the Company. After having made specific enquiry of all
the Directors, each of the Directors confirmed that he had complied
with the Model Code for the year ended 31 December 2014.

The Company has also established written guidelines no less exacting
than the Model Code for relevant employees in respect of their dealing
in the Company’s shares and established written guidelines on inside
dealings in relation to the Company and the securities transaction of the

Company with reference to SFO Chapter 571 Division 4.
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(c) Board of Directors

a4

Throughout the year and up to the date of this report, the Board is
composed of seven members comprising three Executive Directors
(including the Chairman and the Deputy Chairman), one non-Executive
Director and three Independent Non-Executive Directors (“INEDs”). The
biographical details of the current members of the Board are set out on
pages 4 to 7 of the Annual Report. The Company has also maintained
on its website and on the website of the Stock Exchange, an updated
list of the Directors and the Management which identifying their roles

and functions including whether they are INEDs.

Save for being a Director, each Director does not have any financial,
business, family or other material/relevant relationship(s) and in

particular, between the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer.

The Board is tasked with the responsibility of directing and supervising
the Company’s businesses and affairs and promoting its success and
growth. The Board is collectively responsible for the management
and operations of the Company and is responsible for directing and
supervising the overall management of the Company with regards to
the implementation and maintenance of internal control procedures and
ensuring compliance with relevant statutory requirements, the Listing
Rules and other rules and regulations and performing the corporate
governance duties. The day to day management of the Company has

been delegated by the Board to the Management of the Company.
The Board meets regularly. During the year, four regular Board

meetings were held. Notices for regular Board meetings were given to

all Directors at least 14 days prior to the meetings.
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Prior to each Board meeting (for regular meetings, at least 3 days prior),
the Chairman, with the support of the Company Secretary, ensures
that every Director has been properly briefed on issues and provided
with the agenda and accompanying Board papers containing adequate
information provided by the Management to enable them to make
informed decisions at the meeting. Every member of the Board has an
opportunity to propose matters in the agenda for discussion at each

Board meeting.

Minutes of Board meetings and meetings of committees are taken by
the Company Secretary and maintained at the Company’s premises.
Minutes of the Board and committee meetings record in sufficient
detail the matters considered by the Board or committee and decisions
reached, including any concerns raised by the Directors or dissenting
views expressed. Drafts and final versions of minutes are sent to all
Directors for their comments within a reasonable time after the Board
meetings are held. Every member of the Board is entitled to inspect
Board papers and related materials and has unrestricted access to the
advice and services of the Company Secretary to ensure that Board
procedures, and all applicable rules and regulations, are followed.
Where queries are raised by any of the Directors, responses are
provided as promptly and fully as possible. The Directors may also
upon reasonable request, seek independent professional advice in
appropriate circumstances, at the expense of the Company. So far,
there has not been any case where a substantial shareholder or a
Director has a conflict of interest in a matter to be considered by the

Board which the board has determined to be material.
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The attendance of each of the Directors at the annual general BEH
meeting, Board meetings and meetings of the Audit and Remuneration % - 4%

Committees held during the year is set out below:— T

No. of meetings attended/held
HE BTERRE

General Audit Remuneration

Directors Meetings Committee Committee
= BRRRE EREER ¥FMESES

Executive Directors

HITES

Mr. Zhang Sanhuo 2/2 4/4 - 1/1
R=E%E

Mr. Huang Bogi (Note) 0/2 1/4 -

A A ()

Mr. Tse Michael Nam 2/2 3/4 - 0/1
HEF SR

Non-Executive Director

FHTES

Mr. Zou Chengjian 2/2 4/4 - —
FWAgELE

Independent Non-Executive Directors

BYFHTES
Ms. Leung Yin Fai (Note) 2/2 2/4 1/2 1/1
RAE £ (M5E)
Mr. Leung Po Wing, Bowen Joseph 2/2 4/4 2/2 1/1
RERSTE
Mr. Zhou Chunsheng 1/2 3/4 2/2 1/1
AEERE
Note: BisE
o Mr. Huang Bogqi has been appointed as the Executive Director, Deputy o EEBALEN - E—ME+ANBEESEAE
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer on 6 October 2014. TEE  BIXERATREE -
o Ms. Leung Yin Fai has been appointed as the Independent non-Executive . PHBHTRETABIERITEERERE
Director and the chairman of the Audit Committee and Remuneration senFHESeTE AT NEMA—
Committee with effect from 1 April 2014. B AR o
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Two of the regular meetings were for the approval of the interim and
annual results of the Company and the others were to review or discuss
(i) the effectiveness of the financial and internal control systems of the
Company; (i) the policies; (iii) strategic business planning and operation

review; and (iv) the upcoming business transactions.

The Company had maintained an appropriate level of insurance cover
in respect of legal action against the Directors and officers of the
Company and its subsidiaries throughout the year ended 31 December
2014.

Each Director has disclosed to the Company in a timely manner of any
change, the number and nature of offices held in public companies
or organisations and other significant commitments. All such changes
during the year and up to the date of this report, have been disclosed in

the Report of the Directors section of this report.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The roles of chairman and chief executive has been separated since 14
June 2013 and the division of responsibilities between the Chairman
and Chief Executive has been clearly established based on the

requirement of Listing Rules.

During the year, the Chairman fulfilled his responsibilities, including
chairing the board meetings, ensuring that the Board operates
effectively and discharges its responsibilities, ensuring good corporate
governance practices and procedures by anchoring with the Listing
Rules (even though these practices and procedures have not been
formally documented in the Company’s policy), facilitating effective
contribution of Directors, ensuring effective communications with
shareholders and ensuring constructive relations between executive
and Non-Executive Directors. During the year, the Chairman has also
chaired meeting with the independent non-executive directors and the
non-executive director, without the presence of the other executive

director.
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(e) Non-Executive Directors

48

During the year and up to the date of this report, the Company had
been in compliance with Rules 3.10(1), (2) and 3.10A of the Listing
Rules by having at all times three INEDs on its Board, one who has the
appropriate professional accounting qualifications and the number of
INEDs represented at least one-third of the Board.

Each of the INEDs and the non-Executive Director was appointed for an
initial term of not more than two years from the date of his appointment.
Upon the expiry of the initial term, the appointment may be renewed for
another term of not more than two years. In accordance with the Bye-
laws, every Director of the Board (including the INEDs) is subject to
retirement by rotation and re-election by the Company’s Shareholders

at least once every three years.

Each of the INEDs met the independence guidelines set out in Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules and the Company considered each of them to
be so. The Company had received from each of the INEDs an annual

confirmation as to his independence.

The Non-Executive Directors and the INEDs have been participating in
board meetings, taking the lead where potential conflicts of interests
arise, serving on the audit and remuneration committees, scrutinizing
the Company’s performance in achieving agreed corporate goals and
objectives, monitoring performance reporting and making a positive
contribution to the development of the Group’s strategy and policies
through independent, constructive and informed comments and giving
the board and committees in which they serve, the benefit of their skills,
expertise and varied backgrounds and qualifications through regular
attendance and active participation. Each Director has also given

sufficient time and attention to the Company’s affairs during the year.
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() Remuneration Committee

The Company’s Remuneration committee (the “Remuneration
Committee”) was established in June 2005 with specific written terms
of reference detailing the Remuneration Committee’s role and authority.
The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are published

on the Company’s website as well as the Stock Exchange’s website.

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for formulating and making
recommendation to the Board on the Group’s policy and structure
for the remuneration of the Directors and senior management and the
establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for developing
policy on such remuneration and review of the policy and the procedure
annually. The Remuneration Committee has the delegated responsibility
to determine the specific remuneration packages of the Executive
Directors and senior Management and to make recommendations to

the Board for the remuneration of the Non-executive Directors.

In fulfilling its functions, the Remuneration Committee takes into
consideration factors such as salaries paid by comparable companies,
respective time commitment, and responsibilities of the Directors
and senior management and whether the remuneration packages are
competitively attractive to retain the Executive Directors and senior
management. The Remuneration Committee members may consult
the Chairman of the Board about their proposals relating to the
remuneration of the Executive Directors and have access to sufficient
resources including professional advice if considered necessary. No

director can, however, approve his own remuneration.

For the year ended 31 December 2014 and as at the date of this
report, the Remuneration Committee comprised five members, three of
whom were INEDs, in which one of them was also the chairman of the
Remuneration Committee, and two Executive Director. The members of
the Remuneration Committee as at the date of this report are Ms. Leung
Yin Fai (an INED and the chairman of the Remuneration Committee),
Mr. Zhang Sanhuo and Mr. Tse Michael Nam (Executive Directors), Mr.
Leung Po Wing, Bowen Joseph and Mr. Zhou Chunsheng (INEDs).

The Remuneration Committee meets at least once each year and it
met on 31 December 2014 to review and approve the remuneration
package of the other Directors and the senior management (which had
remained unchanged from the previous year) and other related matters

including the Board evaluation.
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(9) Nomination Committee
The Company did not establish a nomination committee which
constitutes a deviation from code provision A.5 of the Code which

stipulates that the issuer should establish a nomination committee.

The Board considers that the appointment and removal of directors
are the collective decision of the Board. Where vacancies on the
Board exist, the Board will carry out the selection process by
making references to the skill, experience, professional knowledge,
personal integrity and time commitments of the proposed candidate,
including the independence status in the case of an independent non-
executive director, the Company’s needs and other relevant statutory
requirements and regulations. Also, the shareholder could propose
a person for election as a Director during the general meeting. The
procedures for shareholders to elect a director has been published in
the Company’s and the Stock Exchange’s websites. Save as disclosed,

during the year, there were no other new appointments to the Board.

Auditors’ Remuneration
During the year, the Company reappointed Messrs. SHINEWING (HK)
CPA Limited as auditors of the Company. The auditors remuneration for

the year ended 31 December 2014 was as follows:

Nature of work

THHHE

Audit services
EIZIRTE
Non-audit services

FEZR
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(i) Audit Committee () BREER

The Company’s Audit Committee (the “Audit Committee”) was
established in June 1999 with clear written terms of reference. The
terms of reference of the Audit Committee are published on the

Company’s website as well as the Stock Exchange’s website.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee include overseeing
the Company’s relations with the external auditors, making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment, reappointment and
removal of the external auditors, approving the remuneration and terms
of engagement of the external auditors, reviewing and monitoring the
external auditors’ independence and objectivity and the effectiveness of
the audit process in accordance with applicable standards, monitoring
the integrity of the Company’s financial statements, annual report
and accounts, half-year report and accounting policies, as well as
overseeing the Company’s financial controls, internal control systems

and risk management systems.

For the year ended 31 December 2014 and as at the date of this
report, the Audit Committee was comprised of three members, all
of whom were INEDs. The composition of the Audit Committee as
at the date of this report was Mr. Leung Yin Fai (the chairman of the
Audit Committee), Mr. Leung Po Wing, Bowen Joseph and Mr. Zhou
Chunsheng. Ms. Leung Yin Fai, the chairman of the Audit Committee is
a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants,
CPA Australia, Vietnam Association of Certified Public Accountants and

the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants.

The Audit Committee has unrestricted access to the auditors of the
Company, the Directors, the Company’s qualified accountant, and
other members of Management. The Audit Committee has met with the
Company’s auditors twice during the year ended 31 December 2014

with regards to review of the Company’s financial report and accounts.

The Audit Committee met twice during the year ended 31 December
2014 to review the annual and interim results and the accompanying
auditor’s report, the accounting policies and practices adopted by the
Company, and to review the financial and internal control systems of

the Company.

The Audit Committee had reviewed the Group’s audited financial

statements for the year ended 31 December 2014.
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Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the preparation
of the financial statements of the Company and that the financial
statements are prepared in accordance with statutory requirements
and applicable accounting standards. It is also the responsibility of the
Directors to ensure the timely publication of the financial statements
of the Company. During the year, the management has provided
sufficient explanation and information to the Board to enable it to make
an informed assessment of the financial and other information put
before it for approval including the monthly updates on the Company’s

performance, position and prospects.

A discussion and analysis of the Groups’ performance, an explanation
of the basis on which the issuer generates or preserves value over the
longer term and the strategy for delivering the Company’s objectives
have been prepared and included in the Chairman Statement and

Management Discussion and Analysis sections of this Annual Report.

The statement of the auditors of the Company, SHINEWING (HK) CPA
Limited, on their reporting responsibilities in respect of the financial

statements of the Company is set out on pages 58 and 59.

The Directors confirm that, except for the issues as explained under
the basis of presentation section in note 1 to the consolidate financial
statements, they are not aware of any other material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the

Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

Directors’ Training and Professional Development

Every Director knows that he should participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh his knowledge and
skills to ensure that his contribution to the board remains informed and
relevant. The Company is responsible for arranging and funding suitable
training for the Directors. Accordingly, during the year, the Company
has made available trainings and development programmes for the

Directors for their participation.
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During the year, all the Directors were provided with monthly
commentary on the Group’s business, operations, and financial
matters as well as regular updates on applicable legal and regulatory
requirements. The Company had also provided the Directors with the
materials and information update including the Directors’ obligations
as required under the Securities and Futures Ordinance and the Listing
Rules. In addition, individual Directors have also participated in other
courses relating to the roles, functions and duties of a listed company
director or further enhancement of their professional development by
way of attending training courses or via online aids or reading relevant
materials. All the Directors had provided the Company Secretary with

their training records for the year under review.

Directors

=

Executive Directors
HITES

Mr. Zhang Sanhuo
R=E%4E

Mr. Huang Boqi
EABEA

Mr. Tse Michael Nam
HEE A

Non-Executive Director
FHTES

Mr. Zou Chengjian
WAagELE

Independent Non-Executive Directors
BYFHTES

Ms. Leung Yin Fai

RAEIE L+

Mr. Leung Po Wing, Bowen Joseph
RERSTE

Mr. Zhou Chunsheng

A&RERE

A:  attending internal briefing sessions/reading materials in relation to corporate
governance and regulatory updates.

B: attending seminars/courses/conference to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills.

A:

B:

FA-- MBERCRIRAEEEY  2E
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EARE - ARRFRAEBEBRREMHRENE
£ BREREZES LB GEN R ETRAR
EOMERERE - I ENEETR2MTHE
MEBMLETARNEESE B LBENR
R BB2MBFIIREIBBERE LY
EARRM B A E— P INR A HERR - FTA
EFCAARMERMEREESEENE
Rk

Type of trainings
b | ctic)
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Company Secretary

Mr. Shek Wing Wa, obtained a master degree in Corporate Governance
from the Open University of Hong Kong in 2009 and a bachelor’s
degree in Business Administration from the Lingnan University in
2001. Mr. Shek is an associate member of The Hong Kong Institute of
Chartered Secretaries since 2010. During the year, he has completed

over 15 hours of relevant professional training.

(m) Internal Controls

54

The Board acknowledges that it is responsible for ensuring a sound
and effective internal control system is maintained within the Company
and its subsidiaries so as to safeguard the Group’s assets and its
Shareholders’ investments. The Directors conduct annual reviews of the
effectiveness of the system of internal controls as well as the adequacy
of resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the accounting
and financial reporting functions, and their training programmes and
budget.

Pursuant to provision C.2.6 of the Code, the Board reviewed the need
for an internal audit function and considered it appropriate to adopt
an internal group policy to review of the effectiveness of the system of
internal control of the Company and certain of its subsidiaries for the
financial year ended 31 December 2014. The review covered all material
controls including financial, operational and compliance controls
and risk management functions of the Company. And the policy will
be reviewed annually by the Board to ensure it fulfilled the statutory

requirement.

The Board considers the internal control systems of the Company
effective and the resources, qualifications and experience of the
accounting and financial reporting functions, adequate for the period in

review.

NORTH ASIA RESOURCES HOLDINGS LIMITED e 1t 55 & RIZ R R A &)

ARNE
AXKERE  RIZZNFREEBERAFK
BHREERBETEN  RZTT-FRES
BEMASIHERELEM - AkEr
T TERABRFHWELGEE - F
W B TERE 6/ N YRR LR o

(m) A BREE 42

%%ﬁfﬂ% HAREBRNARRD A REH

RANHERE RITE B2 NP EHIE - A
1%P$EE/§F&EH><$Z&/§ cEEHF
HEANPERGIE 2= ERTRE - 8
BB RRBREZETIEFERER
LA R 1 55 2 3t B R FE E A TARET o

RIETAEXEC26K  EFEErTR
MEZBE2FEE - BR/RANEEIE
NS A RB REETHEBARREE %
—ME+ A=t BIEMERFENALE
ZHIEAREBIRE - RABEREMEE
REEEE  BEARAZUE 2ERA
MEENREREEREE MEBRESEE
FHEZEGRA  UWHERNAERRE -

EZeRA - ARBZWEEENEE
et R BRBRBEZER BEERER
REBEHRITRRES -



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
TEERWE

(n) Communications with Shareholders and Investors n) ERRERKREEZER

The Board is responsible for maintaining an on-going dialogue with
the Company’s shareholders. A shareholders’ communication policy
setting out the principles of the Company in relation to shareholders’
communications, with the objectives of ensuring a transparent and
timely communication with shareholders via various means, has been
established and published on the Company’s website. And it will be
reviewed annually after the annual general meeting. The annual general
meetings of the Company and other general meetings are valuable
forums for the Board to communicate directly with the shareholders
and to answer questions shareholders may raise. Another key element
of effective communication with shareholders and investors is the
prompt and timely dissemination of information in relation to the Group.
The Company has announced its annual and interim results in a timely

manner in 2014 as required by the Listing Rules.

Separate resolutions are proposed by the chairman at general meetings
for each substantial issue. The detailed procedures of conducting a poll
are explained to shareholders at the commencement of the AGM, to

ensure that shareholders are familiar with such procedures.

The Company’s last annual general meeting (“AGM”) was held on
Thursday, 29 May 2014 at 11:00 a.m. at Units 2001-2, 20th Floor, Li Po
Chun Chambers, 189 Des Voeux Central, Hong Kong. Notice of the last
AGM was sent out on 28 April 2014, i.e. there were 18 clear business
days before the AGM. All the resolutions proposed at that meeting were
approved by the shareholders of the Company by poll. Details of the
poll results are available on the Company’s website. Mr. Zhang Sanhuo,
the Chairman of the Board chaired the last AGM and also invited
Ms. Leung Yin Fai, the chairman of both the audit and remuneration
committees to attend. All the Directors in position, except Mr. Huang
Bogi (appointed at 6 October 2014) and Mr. Zhou Chunsheng, attended
the last AGM. The auditors and the legal advisors of the Company
were also available during the AGM to answer questions from the

shareholders.

The next AGM will be held at Units 2001-2, 20th Floor, Li Po Chun
Chambers, 189 Des Voeux Central, Hong Kong on Thursday, 28 May
2015 at 11:00 a.m.
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The market capitalisation of the Company as at 31 December 2014
was HK$893,176,747.40 (issued share capital: 6,034,978,023 shares
at closing market price: HK$0.148 per share). The public float was
approximately 65.19% as at 31 December 2014.

Constitutional Documents

There was no change to the Company’s Memorandum of Association
and Bye-laws during the financial year 2014. A copy of the latest
consolidated version of the Memorandum of Association and Bye-laws

is posted on the Company’s and the Stock Exchange’s websites.

Shareholders’ Rights — Convening of General Meetings

Shareholders shall have the right to request the Board to convene a
general meeting of the Company. Shareholders holding an aggregate
of not less than one-tenth (10%) of the paid up capital of the Company
may send a written request to the Board of the Company to request
for the convening of a general meeting. The written requisition, duly
signed by the shareholders concerned, must state the purposes of the
meeting and must be deposited at the registered office of the Company.
The Company would take appropriate actions and make necessary
arrangements, and the shareholders concerned would be responsible
for the expenses incurred in giving effect thereto in accordance with the
requirements under Section 74 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda

(the “Companies Act”) once a valid requisition is received.

Shareholders’ Rights — Making Proposals at General
Meetings

The following shareholders are entitled to put forward a proposal (which
may properly be put to the meeting) for consideration at a general
meeting of the Company: (a) any number of members representing not
less than one-twentieth (5%) of the total voting rights of the Company
on the date of the requisition; or (b) not less than 100 members holding

shares in the Company.
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The requisition specifying the proposal, duly signed by the shareholders
concerned, together with a statement of not more than 1,000 words
with respect to the matter referred to in the proposal must be deposited
at the registered office of the Company. The Company would take
appropriate actions and make necessary arrangements, and the
shareholders concerned would be responsible for the expenses
incurred in giving effect thereto in accordance with the requirements
under Sections 79 and 80 of the Companies Act once valid documents

are received.

If a shareholder wishes to propose a person other than a retiring
director for election as a director at a general meeting, the shareholder
should lodge at the principal place of business of the Company at Units
2001-2, 20th Floor, Li Po Chun Chambers, 189 Des Voeux Central,
Hong Kong, the necessary documents as mentioned in the “Procedures
for shareholders to propose a person for election as a director of the
Company” which has already been published in the Company’s and the

Stock Exchange’s website.

Shareholders’ Rights — Enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may make enquiries with the Board at the general
meetings of the Company or at any time send their enquiries and
concerns to the Board in writing through the Company Secretary whose

contact details are as follows:

North Asia Resources Holdings Limited

Units 2001-2, 20th Floor, Li Po Chun Chambers,
189 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong
Telephone: (852) 2889 6289

Fax: (852) 2897 9137
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TO THE MEMBERS OF NORTH ASIA RESOURCES HOLDINGS LIMITED

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited
43/F., The Lee Gardens

33 Hysan Avenue

Causeway Bay, Hong Kong

We were engaged to audit the consolidated financial statements of North
Asia Resources Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred as the “Group”) set out on pages 60 to 184,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 December 2014, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of

significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Directors’ responsibility for the consolidated financial
statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement,

whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report. We conducted
our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements are free from material misstatement. Because of
the matters described in the Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion paragraphs,
however, we were not able to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to

provide a basis for an audit opinion.
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Basis for disclaimer of opinion

As set out in note 1 to the consolidated financial statements, the Group
had net current liabilities of approximately HK$3,907,167,000 as at 31
December 2014 and incurred a loss of approximately HK$923,131,000 for
the year ended 31 December 2014. The consolidated financial statements
of the Group have been prepared on a going concern basis, the validity of
which is dependent on the ongoing availability of finance to the Group (as
set out in note 1(iii)), including loan facilities granted by a non-controlling
shareholder of a subsidiary of the Group (the “Non-controlling Shareholder”).
We were unable to obtain confirmation or verify from the Non-controlling
Shareholder the availability of such future financing. If these finances are
not forthcoming, the Group would be unable to meet its finance obligations
as and when they fall due. In view of the extent of the limitation of audit
evidence relating to the ongoing availability of finance to the Group which
might cast a significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going

concern, we disclaim our opinion in this respect.

Should the Group be unable to operate as a going concern, adjustments
would have to be made to write down the carrying value of the Group’s
assets to their recoverable amounts, to provide for any future liabilities which
might arise, and to reclassify non-current assets and non-current liabilities
as current assets and current liabilities. The effect of these adjustments has

not been reflected in the consolidated financial statements.

Disclaimer of opinion

Because of the significance of the matters described in the basis for
disclaimer of opinion paragraph, we have not been able to obtain sufficient
appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for an audit opinion.
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. In all other material respects, in our opinion the consolidated
financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with the

disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Wong Chuen Fai

Practising Certificate Number: P05589

Hong Kong
26 March 2015
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
mEEER

For the year ended 31 December 2014 & Z —Z—F+_A=+—HILFE

2014 2013
—E-ImF ==
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Turnover R 8 106,246 129,737
Cost of sales and services rendered $HE RAR MRS BB AR (56,642) (107,233)
Gross profit EF 49,604 22,504
Other operating income HAbge s e 8 27,743 1,254
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHER (2,907) (3,354)
Administrative and operating expenses THEEEER (230,452) (201,241)
Change in fair value of derivative AMRERZBETETAR D 2
component of convertible loan notes NEEEH 28 317,592 218,714
Gain on amendment of terms of BT ERZRIER 2 WE
convertible loan notes 28 - 14,538
Loss on redemption of convertible BRI AR EREE B
loan notes 28 - (91,812)
Loss on redemption of promissory notes B [Bl7& 4 Z i 7 E518 32 - (49,521)
Impairment loss recognised in respect of B R EE  HEEE
goodwill 18 - (3,661,555)
Impairment loss recognised in respect of B MR IEIE 2 I E KB
mining rights 17 (709,204) (228,439)
Impairment loss recognised in respect of  SE41% - HE RBEER Y
property, plant and equipment SREES 1B 16 (74,776) (21,172)
Net gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEWB R Rz W F5E - 60,783
Finance costs A& B AR 9 (477,771) (263,877)
Loss before taxation RIS A 1E 10 (1,100,171) (4,203,178)
Income tax credit FR1SHE R 11 177,040 56,980
Loss for the year FEEE (923,131) (4,146,198)
Attributable to: LA AL FE(S -
Owners of the Company RARIER A (452,508) (3,947,960)
Non-controlling interests FEFERR MR (470,623) (198,238)
(923,131) (4,146,198)
Loss per share BREE 13
Basic and diluted (HK$) BEARREE (BT (0.122) (1.834)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
GmeEakAMEEKRER

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE—Z—PF+—-A=+—HILFE

2014 2013
—E—MF —2—=F
HK$°000 HK$’000
THET FAT
Loss for the year FEEER (923,131) (4,146,198)
Other comprehensive income FEHEMEEMKE @ N%RFHE
for the year, net of tax
ltems that may be subsequently reclassified R EMDEEZIBEZIER ¢
to profit or loss:
Exchange reserve realised on disposal of HEMB A REE 2
subsidiaries E R - 204
Exchange differences on translation of foreign ~ HBEBINER 2
operations P& 5 =58 178,501 117
Other comprehensive income for the year, FEEMEAENE - IRTIE
net of tax 178,501 321
Total comprehensive expenses for the year, FEEXEMATERE  HKRRE
net of tax (744,630) (4,145,877)
Total comprehensive expenses attributable to: LA TN ATE(E 2 EMASZ A% :
Owners of the Company RAEIHER A (874,985) (3,947,639)
Non-controlling interests FEIERT RE S (369,645) (198,238)
(744,630) (4,145,877)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e MR

As at 31 December 2014 HiZ—Z—NE+-A=+—HILFE

2014 2013
—EB—QmF —E—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Non-current assets FEMBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BB MR 16 1,293,296 1,006,409
Mining rights R 17 11,399,038 11,772,162
Goodwill e 18 - -
Deposits paid for acquisition of WHEMIZE - BB REHE 2
property, plant and equipment BEfEE 46,684 48,220
12,739,018 12,826,791
Current assets MENEE
Inventories FE 19 1,880 1,291
Trade and other receivables B 5 R E M W FRIE 20 82,777 168,109
Amount due from a related company FE R A8 A RIFRIE 21 9 9
Amount due from a director Bl — R EEFE 22 66 63
Derivative component of convertible AR ERER Y
loan notes THETEZS 28 11,340 16,678
Bank balances and cash WITHEBEIR S 23 40,632 88,941
136,704 275,091
Current liabilities mENAE
Trade and other payables B 5 REMERIE 24 821,560 710,131
Payables for mineral resources ENBRELEREES
compensation fees 25 - 142,168
Amounts due to related companies FEfTRE A RISRIE 21 454,058 434,057
Amount due to a non-controlling B — RIS A A
interest holder I 26 1,793,016 246,914
Other borrowings HihgE 27 37,755 37,755
Derivative component of convertible AT EREER Y
loan notes TTHEI RIS 28 930,730 1,485,672
Income tax liabilities FriEHaE 6,752 7,015
4,043,871 3,063,712
Net current liabilities REBAEFE (3,907,167) (2,788,621)
Total assets less current liabilities BEMAERREBAE 8,831,851 10,038,170
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e IR R

As at 31 December 2014 HZE —Z—NE+_-_A=+—HILFE

2014 2013
—E—MF —2—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET T
Capital and reserves BEARARHE
Share capital RN 29 60,350 28,970
Convertible preference shares A RS S IR 30 19,887 21,071
Reserves ] (8,071,653) (3,262,709)
Equity attributable to owners of the KABEAB AN EGRERS
Company (2,991,416) (8,212,668)
Non-controlling interests IEiE S 4,531,259 4,900,904
Total equity R ARRR 1,539,843 1,688,236
Non-current liabilities EREBEE
Amount due to a non-controlling JERT— B FE IR S A AFE
interest holder 26 1,730,794 2,598,765
Provision for restoration, rehabilitation k18 - {&18 & IBIBR A Bt
and environmental costs 31 67,933 62,330
Promissory notes AR 32 278,634 275,416
Liabilities component of convertible AHREERZE 2 BEID
loan notes 28 2,587,386 2,686,701
Deferred tax liability RIERIEEE 33 2,627,261 2,726,722
7,292,008 8,349,934
8,831,851 10,038,170

The consolidated financial statements on pages 60 to 184 were approved $60E184H Z &R IEHRER T —HF = A

and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 26 March 2015 andare =T/ ABREESSHERFZETIE - WHHATE
signed on its behalf by: ERREZ
Mr. Zhang Sanhuo Mr. Huang Bogqi
R=E%4% EHBEE
Director Director
EF £
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
SREEREBR

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE —Z—MFE+—-A=+—HILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

KDARENER
Convertible Exchange Share ~ Statutory Non-
Share Share  preference  Contributed  translation options surplus Special  Accumulated controlling
captal  premium shares  surplus  reserve reserve resenve  resenve losses interests Total
L EfEE  BRE  iRER FER
ke ReEE  BER  HAEH g B 0EEE KRR ZiER i B it
HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000 HKS'000  HK$'000
Thn Thn Thn Tér Tz T T T Thn B Thn Thn
(Note i) (Noteii) ~ (Noteiii
(Kt (W) (Bt
At1 January 2013 W=F-=£--R 18 3930988 2035 419111 826 2054 80 47843 (422913T) 248759 [  u8757
Loss for the year EREE = - - - - - - - [BO4TI00) (BO4TI60 (198238 (4146,198)
Other comprehensive income~~~ EEEfZENA
for the year - - - - A - - - - A - Rl
Total comprehensive ncome ~~ FEREWA ()28
(expenses) for the year - - - - N - - - BU47960) (3,047,639 (198,238 (4,145,877)
Issue of shares upon conversion of - 3 A EAEE I
convertble preference shares  E47if 5421 (651) (4 - - - - - - - - -
Conversion of convertole ARTAREES
foan notes 1400 32919 - - - - - - - 34319 - 3319
Captalisation of converttle ~~~ TAREFZHERY,
loan notes 3o11 235,660 5476 = = = = = - b - T
Acquisiton of subsidiaries WEHBAR 6690 200700 - - - - - - - 20730 509874 506,134
Disposal of subsidiaries HERBAT - - - - - - - (7gay) 47639 (204 400 196
At 31 Decerber 2013 and NE-Zk
1 January 2014 TZA=t-BR
5-ME-A-H 8970 4408676 21,01 419,111 8567 20545 850 - (8129,458) (3212668 4900904 1,688,236
Loss for the year EEER - - - - - - - - (52508) (452508  (470,623)  (923:131)
Other comprehensiveincome.~~ EEER2 AR
forthe year - - - - IS8 - - - - TI58 100978 178,501
Total comprehensiveincome ~ EE2ERA (%) 28
(expenses) for the year - - - - 1152 - - - (452508)  (374985)  (369,645) (744,630
Issue of shares upon conversion of - B A=A
convertble preference shares — E{7R05 1,345 (161) (1,184 - - - - - - - - -
Conversion of convertile: EnTaRES
[oan notes 30,035 566,202 - - - - - - - 5927 - 5927
At 31 Deosmber 2014 N-E-IE
tZA=1-R 60350 4974717 19887 419,111 86,090 29545 850 - (8581,066) (2991416) 4531259 1,539,843
Notes: s -

i) Contributed surplus represents the reduction of the Company’s issued share i) BARBRIEARE D BITRA RS RAWEFHEM

capital upon cancellation of paid up share capital, and the deemed contribution BONEHE - ERHEARBAEFEREARRRE
from equity holder arisen from the waiver of promissory notes in previous years. BELERE BHESBEMGIEELE -

ii)  Subsidiaries in the People’s Republic of China have appropriated 10% of the profit i) A& A RAMEI M B R 7 #510% 5% FI B E A E &

to the statutory surplus reserve which is required to be retained in the accounts of MATERE - AEREARBNNBQRRE (R
the subsidiaries for specific purposes. ER®Z
i)  Special reserve comprises of reserve arising from transactions with the non- i) $3IFEESFEEIBEREZTIEENHE

controlling interests.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
mERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZ —ZE—F+ - =+—HILFE

2014 2013
—EB—QmEF —E—=F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FaxT FHEIT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES BE K
Loss before taxation R 15 A1 &S 18 (1,100,171) (4,208,178)
Adjustments for: MTHEIEEL AR -
Change in fair value of derivative component AIRREREBITET AL D
of convertible loan notes ZRNTFEES (317,592) (218,714)
Depreciation e 57,850 28,876
Finance costs BLE A 477,771 263,877
Gain on amendment of terms of BT EREE (R
convertible loan notes e zs - (14,538)
(Gain) loss on disposal of property, HEME - WERBBEEZ
plant and equipment & 5! (508) 632
Impairment loss recognised in respect of BREREE R EEE
goodwill - 3,661,555
Impairment loss recognised in respect of B HER IR 2 REEE
mining rights 709,204 228,439
Impairment loss recognised in respect of BHERYE - BB RRE
property, plant and equipment JREEE 74,776 21,172
Impairment loss recognised in respect of ERRAESHREKFIBZ
trade receivables IEEE 9,336 283
Interest income AEWA (158) (379)
Loss on redemption of convertible loan notes ~ FEEIAJ AR E R ZiE 2 BB - 91,812
Loss on redemption of promissory notes & [0l 3 Rk 2 18 = 49,521
Net gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEHB AR ZFilkas - (60,783)
Written back of provision for litigation [ 5 FA B4R (16,073) -
Reversal of impairment loss recognised BEEERESHEYHEZ
in respect of trade receivables DERIEY, S| = (140)
Recovery of other receivables previously U (5 2 B e S 0 L Ath B U SR IE
written off (10,266) -
Operating cash flows before movements in RetEBEESBBALE
working capital ReneE (115,831) (151,565)
(Increase) decrease in inventories FE M) R (589) 117
Decrease in trade and other receivables B 5 & E M EWGRIE R 86,262 160,325
Increase in trade and other payables B 5 K& E h FE 5RIAE AN 44,692 13,656
Decrease in payables for mineral resources ENBELEREESRD
compensation fees (142,168) -
Cash (used in) generated from operations REEE(FIA)REARS (127,634) 22,533
Income tax (paid) refund (BER)EBRER (524) 179
NET CASH (USED IN) GENERATED FROM BB (A FELRSTFE
OPERATING ACTIVITIES (128,158) 22,712
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
GERTRER

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE—Z—PUFE+—-A=+—HILFE

2014 2013
—EB—QmF —E—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FT
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REED
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment g2 - BB kR (188,890) (122,170)
Repayment of considerations for acquisition of U BB A T (B ER
subsidiaries - (140,279)
Net cash outflow from disposal of subsidiaries ~ HE&EMEB A FTIREmHFLE = (2,863)
Net cash (outflow) inflow from acquisition of WiEM B R RIRE ORE)IRA
subsidiaries Pt (550) 9,263
(Advance to) repayment from a director (BRT—RBES) —REFEX &) 393
Interest received EHFILE 158 379
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME - BEMRESRE
plant and equipment 1,220 -
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES ~ REZBFT AR ST (188,065) (285,277
FINANCING ACTIVITIES RALESEE
Advance from non-controlling interests FEIE R R 926,984 352,275
Repayment to non-controlling interest holder — {EiZ IEFRAERSITE A (320,988) -
Issuance of promissory notes BITEHBE = 232,914
Issuance of convertible loan notes BT MR EREE - 232,913
Other borrowing raised (repaid) E5(ER) HMEE = 32,000
Cash paid on redemption of promissory notes ~ fEEI& N ZE SN2 ES = (358,400)
Interest paid BAFLE (357,442) (156,374)
(Advance from) repayment to related (REBERBIZER)ERT
companies EZRENG| 20,001 (27,382)
(Repayment to) advance from a director (A—BEEER) —BEEFEH - (138)
NET CASH FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES MEEDERLFE 268,555 307,808
NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH ReERBREEEYWORD)IGMFE
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (47,668) 75,243
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FUIZEERESEEY
BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 88,941 13,336
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE IEEREFH I
CHANGES (641) 362
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF THE &> R&RBSSEN -
YEAR, represented by bank balances and cash S| AR{TES LIRS 40,632 88,941
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P BmRME

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE—Z—PF+—-A=+—HILFE

1.

GENERAL

North Asia Resources Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is incorporated
in Bermuda as an exempted company with limited liability. The shares
of the Company are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The addresses of the registered office is Clarendon House, 2 Church
Street, Hamilton HM11, Bermuda and principal place of business of
the Company are Units 2001-2, 20/F., Li Po Chun Chambers, 189 Des

Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong.

The functional currency of the Company and its major subsidiaries
are Renminbi (“RMB”). As the Company is listed in Hong Kong, the
directors of the Company consider that it is appropriate to present the

consolidated financial statements in Hong Kong dollar (“HK$”).

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. During the
year, the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) were principally
involved in the distribution of information technology products,
geological survey, exploration and development of coal deposits

(mining operation) and sales of coking coal.

Basis of preparation of the consolidated financial
statements
In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the

Company have given consideration to the future liquidity of the Group.

As at 31 December 2014, the Group had net current liabilities of
approximately HK$3,907,167,000 and the Group incurred a loss of
approximately HK$923,131,000 for the year ended 31 December 2014,
The condition indicates the existence of a material uncertainty which
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern and therefore it may be unable to realise its assets and
discharge its liabilities in the normal course of business. Nevertheless,
the directors of Company are of the opinion that the Group will have
sufficient working capital to meet its financial obligations as and when
they fall due for the next twelve months from 31 December 2014 as
the directors had taken into consideration of the following facts and

circumstances:
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REZE XM REBRBHER 1895
FEBRE2082001-2F ©
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ANNUAL REPORT 2014 ¢ 2014 F &k 67



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P BwRME

For the year ended 31 December 2014 &z — =

1.

68

—WE+ZA=+—HALFE
GENERAL (CONTINUED)

Basis of preparation of the consolidated financial

statements (continued)

(i) as at 31 December 2014, included in the current liabilities of
the Group was derivative component of convertible loan notes
of approximately HK$930,730,000 which represented options
to entitle the holders to convert the convertible loan notes into
ordinary shares of the Company before the maturity dates of the
convertible loan notes. Such derivative component of convertible
loan notes shall not result in any cash outflow for the Group;

(i) the related companies will not demand settlement of the amounts
due from the Group until it is in the financial position to do so; and

(i) as at 31 December 2014, the Group had loan facilities in
aggregate of RMB3,900,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$4,952,000,000) provided from a non-controlling interest
holder of a subsidiary of the Group (the “Non-controlling Interest
Holder”) of which, RMB2,775,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$3,523,810,000) is in use by the Group as at 31 December
2014. The directors of the Company are not aware of any
indication that such facilities will be withdrawn and consider such
facilities will continue to be revolving in due time.

Accordingly, the directors of the Company are of the opinion that it
is appropriate to prepare the consolidated financial statements on a
going concern basis. If adequate finance is not available, the Group
may be unable to meet its obligations as and when they fall due in
the foreseeable future. Should the Group be unable to continue to
operate as a going concern, adjustments would have to be made to
write down the value of assets to their recoverable amounts, to provide
for further liabilities which might arise and to reclassify non-current
assets and non-current liabilities as current assets and current liabilities
respectively. The effect of these adjustments has not been reflected in
the consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R R R MY

For the year ended 31 December 2014 & ZE - =
2.

—E+ZA=+—HALFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

The Group has applied the following new and revised HKFRSs issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the
“HKICPA”) for the first time in the current year.

Amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 12 and Hong Kong
Accounting Standard
(“HKAS”) 27

Investment Entities

Amendments to HKAS 32 Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities

Recoverable Amount Disclosures for
Non-Financial Assets

Novation of Derivatives and
Continuation of Hedge Accounting

Levies

Amendments to HKAS 36
Amendments to HKAS 39

Hong Kong (International
Financial Reporting
Interpretations Committee)
(*HK(IFRIC)")

— Interpretation (“Int”) 21

Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27
Investment Entities

The Group has applied amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and
HKAS 27 Investment Entities for the first time in the current year. The
amendments to HKFRS 10 define an investment entity and introduce an
exception to consolidating subsidiaries for an investment entity, except
where the subsidiaries provide services that relate to the investment
entity’s investment activities. Under the amendments to HKFRS 10, an
investment entity is required to measure its interests in subsidiaries at

fair value through profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P BwRME

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE—Z—PUFE+—-A=+—HILFE

2.

70

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)

Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27
Investment Entities (continued)

To qualify as an investment entity, certain criteria have to be met.

Specifically, an entity is required to:

e obtain funds from one or more investors for the purpose of
providing them with professional investment management

services;

e commit to its investor(s) that its business purpose is to invest funds
solely for returns from capital appreciation, investment income, or
both; and

e measure and evaluate performance of substantially all of its

investments on a fair value basis.

Consequential amendments to HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27 have been

made to introduce new disclosure requirements for investment entities.

As the Company is not an investment entity, the directors of the
Company consider that the application of the amendments has had no
impact on the disclosures or the amounts recognised in the Group’s

consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 32 Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities

The Group has applied amendments to HKAS 32 Offsetting Financial
Assets and Financial Liabilities for the first time in the current year. The
amendments to HKAS 32 clarify existing application issues relating
to the offset of financial assets and financial liabilities requirements.
Specifically, the amendments clarify the meaning of “currently has a
legally enforceable right of set-off” and “simultaneous realisation and

settlement”.

The amendments have been applied retrospectively. As the Group
does not have any financial assets and financial liabilities that qualify
for offset, the application of the amendments has had no impact on the
disclosures or on the amounts recognised in the Group’s consolidated

financial statements.

NORTH ASIA RESOURCES HOLDINGS LIMITED e 1t 5 & RIZ R SR A &

FE P #7R] R &RAE R] & 78 BT T 3R
HEA([HBUMHEHRESER )
(#&)

BEAMBEREERFE105 - BF
MIEHREEBF125 R EBS
BERETRIEEER/ 2B (B)

N

N

e M—HXZEREEFNBEL  HBURA
FEREBEXEREEERE

e MEREEHAG HSESREREMD
EBREMBEREIREEAREE &
BWASME 2@ K

o RAFEEEGFERFEEBRA DR
B2RH -

BEEPBMERNF12F L EE ST LERNE
2TSREAMEHARRIERT - USIAHKREERY
HINEERE -

MRAARLE—EREAER AARAEE
RARARSETHAEERANBRR
BEANADEALEL mPE -

BRI EASENRFEETHEER
ERMEBEZHE BT
AEBERAFEERERAEESHERE
RREWMAERSHEBE I WHZIET - &
AEIHEAERR L ETRERSBEER
SHABZHHRTEWN I RARAME -
BRTE  BRIEIRE (REAENERE
AIRHIIT 2 B R (RS R RS 2
-

ZFERITEWER o AR AEE I HE IR
NeaHERceREERSREE B
REEHA KRB 2GR BHRRZBEE
MR SR EZE



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P BmRME

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZ —ZE—F+ - =+—HILFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)

Amendments to HKAS 36 Recoverable Amount Disclosures
for Non-Financial Assets

The Group has applied amendments to HKAS 36 Recoverable Amount
Disclosures for Non-Financial Assets for the first time in the current
year. The amendments to HKAS 36 require disclosures on additional
information about the fair value measurement when the recoverable
amount of impaired assets is based on fair value less costs of disposal.
If the recoverable amount is fair value less costs of disposal, an entity
shall disclose the level of the fair value hierarchy within which the fair
value measurement of the asset or cash generating unit is categorised
in its entirety. The Group is required to make additional disclosures for

Level 2 and Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy:

e  a description of the valuation techniques used to measure the fair
value less costs of disposals. If there is any change in valuation

techniques, the fact and the reason should also be disclosed;

e each key assumption on which management has based its

determination of fair value less costs of disposal;

e the discount rates used in the current and previous measurement if
fair value less costs of disposal is measured using a present value

technique.

The amendments have been applied retrospectively. The directors
of the Company consider that the application of the amendments to
HKAS 36 has had no material impact on the disclosures in the Group’s

consolidated financial statements.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)

Amendments to HKAS 39 Novation of Derivatives and
Continuation of Hedge Accounting

The Group has applied amendments to HKAS 39 Novation of
Derivatives and Continuation of Hedge Accounting for the first time in
the current year. The amendments to HKAS 39 introduce an exception
to the requirements for the discontinuation of hedge accounting in
HKAS 39 if specific conditions are met. The amendments to HKAS 39
state that the novation of a hedging instrument is not be considered
an expiration or termination if the novation (a) is required by laws or
regulations; (b) results in a central counterparty or an entity acting
in a similar capacity becoming the new counterparty to each of the
parties to the novated derivative and (c) does not result in changes to
the terms of the original over-the-counter derivatives other than the
changes directly attributable to the novation. For all other novations
outside the scope of the exemption, an entity should assess if they meet
the derecognition criteria and the conditions for continuation of hedge
accounting.

The amendments have been applied retrospectively. As the Group does
not have any derivatives that are subject to novation, the application
of the amendments has had no impact on the disclosures or on the
amounts recognised in the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

HK(IFRIC) — Int 21 Levies

The Group has applied HK(IFRIC) — Int 21 Levies for the first time in
the current year. HK(IFRIC) — Int 21 addresses the issue as to when
to recognise a liability to pay a levy imposed by government. The
Interpretation defines a levy, and specifies that the obligating event that
gives rise to the liability is the activity that triggers the payment of the
levy, as identified by legislation. The Interpretation provides guidance on
how different levy arrangements should be accounted for, in particular,
it clarifies that neither economic compulsion nor the going concern
basis of financial statements preparation implies that an entity has a
present obligation to pay a levy that will be triggered by operating in a
future period.

HK(IFRIC) - Int 21 has been applied retrospectively. The application
of this Interpretation has had no material impact on the disclosures
or on the amounts recognised in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 &= —Z—F+_-_A=+—HILFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

(CONTINUED)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised HKFRSs
that have been issued but are not yet effective:

HKFRS 9 (2014)

HKFRS 15

Amendments to HKFRSs

Amendments to HKFRSs

Amendments to HKFRSs

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 19

Amendments to HKAS 16
and HKAS 38

Amendments to HKAS 16
and HKAS 41

Amendments to HKAS 27

Amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKFRS 11

Financial Instruments*
Revenue from Contracts with Customers®

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle'

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle?

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle?

Disclosure Initiative?

Defined Benefit Plans — Employee
Contributions’

Clarification of Acceptance Methods of
Depreciation and Amortisation?

Agriculture: Bearer Plants?

Equity Method in Separate Financial
Statements?

Investment Entities: Applying the
Consolidation Exception?

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an
Investor and Its Associate or
Joint Venture?

Accounting for Acquisitions of
Interests in Joint Operations?

t Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016.

8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017.

) Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet effective
(continued)

The directors of the Company anticipate that, except as described
below, the application of the new and revised standards, amendments
and interpretations will have no material impact on the results and

financial position of the Group.

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduces new requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial assets. HKFRS 9 was
amended in 2010 and includes the requirements for the classification
and measurement of financial liabilities and for derecognitiond. In
2013, HKFRS 9 was further amended to bring into effect a substantial
overhaul of hedge accounting that will allow entities to better reflect
their risk management activities in the financial statements. A
finalised version of HKFRS 9 was issued in 2014 to incorporate all the
requirements of HKFRS 9 that were issued in previous years with limited
amendments to the classification and measurement by introducing
a “fair value through other comprehensive income” (“FVTOCI”)
measurement category for certain financial assets. The finalised version
of HKFRS 9 also introduces an “expected credit loss” model for

impairment assessments.
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

(CONTINUED)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet effective

(continued)
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (continued)

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 (2014) are described as follows:

HKFRS 9 requires all recognised financial assets that are within
the scope of HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement are subsequently measured at amortised cost
or fair value. Specifically, debt investments that are held within
a business model whose objective is to collect the contractual
cash flows, and that have contractual cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal outstanding are
generally measured at amortised cost at the end of subsequent
accounting periods. Debt instruments that are held within a
business model whose objective is achieved both by collecting
cash flows and selling financial assets, and that have contractual
terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding, are measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income. All other debt investments and
equity investments are measured at their fair values at the end
of subsequent reporting periods. In addition, under HKFRS 9,
entities may make an irrevocable election to present subsequent
changes in the fair value of an equity investment (that is not held for
trading) in other comprehensive income, with only dividend income
generally recognised in profit or loss.

With regard to the measurement of financial liabilities designated
as at fair value through profit or loss, HKFRS 9 requires that
the amount of change in the fair value of the financial liability
that is attributable to changes in the credit risk of that liability is
presented in other comprehensive income, unless the recognition
of the effects of changes in the liability’s credit risk in other
comprehensive income would create or enlarge an accounting
mismatch in profit or loss. Changes in fair value of financial
liabilities attributable to changes in the financial liabilities’ credit
risk are not subsequently reclassified to profit or loss. Under
HKAS 39, the entire amount of the change in the fair value of the
financial liability designated as fair value through profit or loss was
presented in profit or loss.
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet effective
(continued)
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (continued)

e |n the aspect of impairment assessments, the impairment
requirements relating to the accounting for an entity’s expected
credit losses on its financial assets and commitments to extend
credit were added. Those requirements eliminate the threshold
that was in HKAS 39 for the recognition of credit losses. Under
the impairment approach in HKFRS 9 (2014) it is no longer
necessary for a credit event to have occurred before credit losses
are recognised. Instead, expected credit losses and changes in
those expected credit losses should always be accounted for. The
amount of expected credit losses is updated at each reporting
date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition and,
consequently, more timely information is provided about expected

credit losses.

e HKFRS 9 introduces a new model which is more closely aligns
hedge accounting with risk management activities undertaken
by companies when hedging their financial and non-financial risk
exposures. As a principle-based approach, HKFRS 9 looks at
whether a risk component can be identified and measured and
does not distinguish between financial items and non-financial
items. The new model also enables an entity to use information
produced internally for risk management purposes as a basis
for hedge accounting. Under HKAS 39, it is necessary to exhibit
eligibility and compliance with the requirements in HKAS 39 using
metrics that are designed solely for accounting purposes. The new
model also includes eligibility criteria but these are based on an
economic assessment of the strength of the hedging relationship.
This can be determined using risk management data. This should
reduce the costs of implementation compared with those for HKAS
39 hedge accounting because it reduces the amount of analysis

that is required to be undertaken only for accounting purposes.
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2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet effective
(continued)
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

HKFRS 9 (2014) will become effective for annual periods beginning on

or after 1 January 2018 with early application permitted.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the adoption of HKFRS 9
(2014) in the future may have significant impact on amounts reported in
respect of the Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities. However,
it is not practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of that effect until
a detailed review has been completed.

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

In July 2014, HKFRS 15 was issued which establishes a single
comprehensive model for entities to use in accounting for revenue
arising from contracts with customers. HKFRS 15 will supersede the
current revenue recognition guidance including HKAS 18 Revenue,
HKAS 11 Construction Contracts and the related Interpretations when
it becomes effective.

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should recognise
revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to
customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the
entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.
Specifically, the Standard introduces a 5-step approach to revenue

recognition.

Step 1:  Identify the contract(s) with a customer

Step 2:  Identify the performance obligations in the contract

Step 3:  Determine the transaction price

Step 4:  Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations
in the contract

Step 5:  Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a

performance obligation
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet effective
(continued)
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers (continued)

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when ‘control’ of the goods or
services underlying the particular performance obligation is transferred
to the customer. Far more prescriptive guidance has been added in
HKFRS 15 to deal with specific scenarios. Furthermore, extensive
disclosures are required by HKFRS 15.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of HKFRS
15 in the future may have a material impact on the amounts reported
and disclosures made in the Group’s consolidated financial statements.
However, it is not practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of the
effect of HKFRS 15 until the Group performs a detailed review.

Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure Initiative

The amendments clarify that companies should use professional
judgement in determining what information as well as where and in what
order information is presented in the financial statements. Specifically,
an entity should decide, taking into consideration all relevant facts
and circumstances, how it aggregates information in the financial
statements, which include the notes. An entity does not require to
provide a specific disclosure required by a HKFRS if the information
resulting from that disclosure is not material. This is the case even if
the HKFRS contain a list of specific requirements or describe them as

minimum requirements.

Besides, the amendments provide some additional requirements for
presenting additional line items, headings and subtotals when their
presentation is relevant to an understanding of the entity’s financial
position and financial performance respectively. Entities, in which
they have investments in associates or joint ventures, are required to
present the share of other comprehensive income of associates and
joint ventures accounted for using the equity method, separated into
the share of items that (i) will not be reclassified subsequently to profit
or loss; and (ii) will be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss when

specific conditions are met.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet effective
(continued)
Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure Initiative (continued)

Furthermore, the amendments clarify that:

i) an entity should consider the effect on the understandability and
comparability of its financial statements when determining the
order of the notes; and

i)  significant accounting policies are not required to be disclosed in
one note, but instead can be included with related information in
other notes.

The amendments will become effective for financial statements with
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016. Earlier application
is permitted. The directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of Amendments to HKAS 1 in the future may have a material
impact on the disclosures made in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.

Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 Clarification of
Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and Amortisation

The amendments to HKAS 16 prohibit entities from using a revenue-
based depreciation method for items of property, plant and equipment.
The amendments to HKAS 38 introduce a rebuttable presumption that
revenue is not an appropriate basis for amortisation of an intangible
asset. This presumption can only be rebutted in the following two
limited circumstances:

a) when the intangible asset is expressed as a measure of revenue; or

b) when it can be demonstrated that revenue and consumption of the
economic benefits of the intangible asset are highly correlated.

The amendments apply prospectively for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2016. Currently, the Group uses the straight-line
method for depreciation and amortisation for its property, plant and
equipment, and intangible assets respectively. The directors of the
Company believe that the straight-line method is the most appropriate
method to reflect the consumption of economic benefits inherent in the
respective assets and accordingly, the directors of the Company do
not anticipate that the application of these amendments to HKAS 16
and HKAS 38 will have a material impact on the Group’s consolidated
financial statements.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet effective
(continued)
Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle

The Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle include a
number of amendments to various HKFRSs, which are summarised

below.

The amendments to HKFRS 2 (i) change the definitions of ‘vesting
condition” and ‘market condition’; and (ii) add definitions for
‘performance condition’ and ‘service condition’ which were previously
included within the definition of ‘vesting condition’. The amendments to
HKFRS 2 are effective for share-based payment transactions for which

the grant date is on or after 1 July 2014.

The amendments to HKFRS 3 clarify that contingent consideration
that is classified as an asset or a liability should be measured at fair
value at each reporting date, irrespective of whether the contingent
consideration is a financial instrument within the scope of HKFRS 9
or HKAS 39 or a non-financial asset or liability. Changes in fair value
(other than measurement period adjustments) should be recognised in
profit and loss. The amendments to HKFRS 3 are effective for business

combinations for which the acquisition date is on or after 1 July 2014.

The amendments to HKFRS 8 (i) require an entity to disclose the
judgements made by management in applying the aggregation criteria
to operating segments, including a description of the operating
segments aggregated and the economic indicator assessed in
determining whether the operating segments have ‘similar economic
characteristics’; and (i) clarify that a reconciliation of the total of the
reportable segments’ assets to the entity’s assets should only be
provided if the segment assets are regularly provided to the chief

operating decision-maker.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet effective
(continued)
Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle (continued)

The amendments to the basis for conclusions of HKFRS 13 clarify that
the issue of HKFRS 13 and consequential amendments to HKAS 39 and
HKFRS 9 did not remove the ability to measure short-term receivables
and payables with no stated interest rate at their invoice amounts
without discounting, if the effect of discounting is immaterial. As the
amendments do not contain any effective date, they are considered to

be immediately effective.

The amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 remove perceived
inconsistencies in the accounting for accumulated depreciation /
amortisation when an item of property, plant and equipment or an
intangible asset is revalued. The amended standards clarify that the
gross carrying amount is adjusted in a manner consistent with the
revaluation of the carrying amount of the asset and that accumulated
depreciation / amortisation is the difference between the gross carrying
amount and the carrying amount after taking into account accumulated

impairment losses.

The amendments to HKAS 24 clarify that a management entity
providing key management personnel services to a reporting entity is a
related party of the reporting entity. Consequently, the reporting entity
should disclose as related party transactions the amounts incurred for
the service paid or payable to the management entity for the provision
of key management personnel services. However, disclosure of the

components of such compensation is not required.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that the application
of these amendments will have a material impact on the Group’s

consolidated financial statements.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet effective
(continued)
Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle

The Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle include a
number of amendments to various HKFRSs, which are summarised

below.

The amendments to HKFRS 3 clarify that the standard does not apply
to the accounting for the formation of all types of joint arrangement in

the financial statements of the joint arrangement itself.

The amendments to HKFRS 13 clarify that the scope of the portfolio
exception for measuring the fair value of a group of financial assets and
financial liabilities on a net basis includes all contracts that are within the
scope of, and accounted for in accordance with, HKAS 39 or HKFRS 9,
even if those contracts do not meet the definitions of financial assets or
financial liabilities within HKAS 32.

The amendments to HKAS 40 clarify that HKAS 40 and HKFRS 3
are not mutually exclusive and application of both standards may be
required. Consequently, an entity acquiring investment property must

determine whether:

(@) the property meets the definition of investment property in terms of
HKAS 40; and

(b) the transaction meets the definition of a business combination
under HKFRS 3.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that the application
of the amendments included in the Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle will have a material effect on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet effective
(continued)
Annual Improvement to HKFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle

The Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle include a
number of amendments to various HKFRSs, which are summarised

below.

The amendments to HKFRS 5 clarify that changing from one of the
disposal methods (i.e. disposal through sale or disposal through
distribution to owners) to the other should not be considered to be
a new plan of disposal, rather it is a continuation of the original plan.
There is therefore no interruption of the application of the requirements
in HKFRS 5. Besides, the amendments also clarify that changing the
disposal method does not change the date of classification.

The amendments to HKFRS 7 clarify that a servicing contract that
includes a fee can constitute continuing involvement in a financial asset.
An entity must assess the nature of the fee and arrangement against
the guidance for continuing involvement in HKFRS 7 in order to assess
whether the additional disclosures for any continuing involvement in
a transferred asset that is derecognised in its entirety are required.
Besides, the amendments to HKFRS 7 also clarify that disclosures
in relation to offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities are
not required in the condensed interim financial report, unless the
disclosures provide a significant update to the information reported in

the most recent annual report.

The amendments to HKAS 19 clarify that the market depth of high
quality corporate bonds is assessed based on the currency in which the
obligation is denominated, rather than the country where the obligation
is located. When there is no deep market for high quality corporate

bonds in that currency, government bond rates must be used.

The amendments to HKAS 34 clarify the requirements relating to
information required by HKAS 34 that is presented elsewhere within the
interim financial report but outside the interim financial statements. The
amendments require that such information be incorporated by way of a
cross-reference from the interim financial statements to the other part of
the interim financial report that is available to users on the same terms

and at the same time as the interim financial statements.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet effective
(continued)
Annual Improvement to HKFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle (continued)

The directors do not anticipate that the application of the amendments
included in the Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle will
have a material effect on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

Except as described above, the directors of the Company anticipate
that the application of the other new and revised HKFRSs will have no

material impact on the consolidated financial statement.

In addition, the annual report requirements of Part 9 “Accounts and
Audit” of the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) come
into operation as from the company’s first financial year commencing
on or after 3 March 2014 in accordance with section 358 of that
Ordinance. The Group is in the process of making an assessment
of expected impact of the changes in the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance on the consolidated financial statements in the period of
initial application of Part 9 of the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(Cap. 622). So far it has concluded that the impact is unlikely to be
significant and will primarily only affect the presentation and disclosure
of information in the consolidated financial statements.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, which for
this financial year and the comparative period continue to be those of
the predecessor Company Ordinance (Cap 32), in accordance with
transitional and saving arrangements for the Part 9 of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622), “Accounts and Audit”, which are set
out in sections 76 to 87 of Schedule 11 of that Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments that
are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period, as
explained in the accounting policies set out below.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration

given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction in the principal
(or most advantageous) market between market participants at the
measurement date under current market conditions (i.e. an exit price)
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated
using another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an
asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the characteristics
of the asset or liability if market participants would take those
characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at the
measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure
purposes in these consolidated financial statements is determined on
such a basis, except for share-based payment transactions that are
within the scope of HKFRS 2, leasing transactions that are within the
scope of HKAS 17, and measurements that have some similarities to
fair value but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in HKAS 2

or value in use in HKAS 36.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements
are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which
the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the
significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety,

which are described as follows:

e Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the
measurement date;

e |evel 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within
Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly

or indirectly; and

e Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the Company

and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the Company:
e has power over the investee;

* is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement

with the investee; and
e has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the

three elements of control listed above.

When the Group has less than a majority of the voting rights of an
investee, it has power over the investee when the voting rights are
sufficient to give it the practical ability to direct the relevant activities
of the investee unilaterally. The Group considers all relevant facts and
circumstances in assessing whether or not the Group’s voting rights in

an investee are sufficient to give it power, including:

e the size of the Group’s holding of voting rights relative to the size
and dispersion of holdings of the other vote holders;

e potential voting rights held by the Group, other vote holders or
other parties;

e rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

e any additional facts and circumstances that indicate that the Group
has, or does not have, the current ability to direct the relevant

activities at the time that decisions need to be made, including

voting patterns at previous shareholders’ meetings.

NORTH ASIA RESOURCES HOLDINGS LIMITED e 1t 5 & RIZ R SR A &

3. TEEFEE(H)

mER%E
RAMBRRBERRARKRTEH 2 &
BREMBARZHMHRE - MGEHER
HEARAT

o HWRIRETGITEES

s HEZEWKRENZEBMESHERE

SHEEH K&

S
X

o BRENTEEENAZEZEORE

5B RIS RR EXPAH =R A RE
PR ZENE - AARBEEEHRED
RIEHIREETT °

A ERBER KRBT ZRREREEAZ
B EREREZEEUETAEEERGE
AENEERRIRE T ZHAERE - A%
BEVH AT ERE N - EHEARKER
BIRETZRERER AT EENE -
AEEEZRMAEBREERIBEN - 81

e AEEREBEZRERFERGBHEMEE
BB AR ZREREE KD UL
B

o AKE - HORESAAHEMALR
B2 BERERE

o HMEKNRHELZEN: Kk
o RPAKEEFZREHARRRRLTAE

BRBLBNHEBEINEIINEZENE
A(BIEERBIRAGHRRIER)



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P BmRME

For the year ended 31 December 2014 &z — =
3.

—E+ZA=+—HALFE
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control
over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control of the
subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired
or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss from the date the Group gains control until
the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income are
attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to
the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests even if
this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of
subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with the Group’s
accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash
flows relating to transactions between members of the Group are
eliminated in full on consolidation.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing subsidiaries
that do not result in the Group losing control over the subsidiaries are
accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the
Group’s interests and the non-controlling interests are adjusted to
reflect the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any
difference between the amount by which the non-controlling interests
are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or received is
recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, a gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss and is calculated as the difference between
(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received and the
fair value of any retained interest and (i) the previous carrying amount of
the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and any
non-controlling interests. All amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in relation to that subsidiary are accounted for
as if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities of
the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or transferred to another
category of equity as specified/permitted by applicable HKFRSSs).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Business combinations

Businesses combinations are accounted for by applying the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred in a business combination
is measured at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the
acquisition-date fair values of the assets transferred by the Group,
liabilities incurred by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree
and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for control
of the acquiree. Acquisition related costs incurred to effect a business
combination are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities
assumed are recognised at their fair value, except that:

e deferred tax assets or liabilities arising from the assets acquired
and liabilities assumed in the business combination are recognised
and measured in accordance with HKAS 12 Income Taxes;

e assets or liabilities related to the acquiree’s employee benefit
arrangements are recognised and measured in accordance with
HKAS 19 Employee Benefits;

e liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based payment
transactions of the acquiree or the replacement of the acquiree’s
share-based payment transactions with the share-based payment
transactions of the Group are measured in accordance with
HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment at the acquisition date; and

e assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for sale in
accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and
Discontinued Operations are measured in accordance with that
standard.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the aggregate of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests
in the acquiree, and the fair value of the Group’s previously held equity
interest in the acquiree (if any) over the net of the acquisition-date
amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed.
If, after re-assessment, the net of the acquisition-date amounts of
the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the
aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Business combinations (continued)

Non-controlling interests, unless as required by another standards,
are measured at acquisition-date fair value except for non-controlling
interests that are present ownership interests and entitle their holders
to aproportionate share of the entity’s net assets in the event of
liquidation are measured either at fair value or at the present ownership
instruments’ proportionate share in the recognised amounts of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets on a transaction-by-transaction basis.
Other types of non-controlling interests are measured at their fair value

or, when applicable, on the basis specified in another HKFRS.

Goodwill
Goodwill arising from a business combination is carried at cost less

accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to each of
the Group’s cash-generating units (or groups of cash-generating units)

that is expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination.

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested
for impairment annually or more frequently when there is indication
that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition
in a reporting period, the cash-generating unit to which goodwill has
been allocated is tested for impairment before the end of that reporting
period. If the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less
than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce
the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to
the other assets of the unit on a pro rata basis based on the carrying
amount of each asset in the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is
recognised directly in profit or loss. An impairment loss recognised for

goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the attributable
amount of goodwill is included in the determination of the amount of

profit or loss on disposal.

Investments in subsidiaries

In the Company’s statement of financial position, investments in
subsidiaries are stated at cost less accumulated impairment loss. The
results of the subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on the

basis of dividends received and receivable.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or

receivable and represents amounts receivable for goods sold in the

normal course of business, net of discounts and sales related taxes.

Service income is recognised in the period when the services are

provided, using a straight-line basis over the term of the contract for the

contracted period or using a fixed rate charged on the service provided

to its customers.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the goods are

delivered and titles have passed, at which time all the following

conditions are satisfied:

e the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant risks and

rewards of ownership of the goods;

e the Group retains neither continuing managerial involvement to the

degree usually associated with ownership nor effective control over

the goods sold;

e the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

e it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the

transaction will flow to the Group; and

e the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction

can be measured reliably.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Revenue recognition (continued)

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable
that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the amount of
income can be measured reliably. Interest income from a financial asset
is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding
and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected
life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial

recognition.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings held for use in the
production or supply of goods, or for administrative purposes (other
than construction in progress) are stated in the consolidated statement
of financial position and Company’s statement of financial position
at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and accumulated

impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment (other than construction in progress)
less their residual values over their useful lives, using the straight-line
method. The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect
of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

Construction in progress includes property, plant and equipment in
the course of construction for production or for its own use purposes.
Construction in progress is carried at cost less any recognised
impairment loss. Costs include professional fees and, for qualifying
assets, borrowing costs capitalised in accordance with the Group’s
accounting policy. Such construction in progress is classified to
the appropriate categories of property, plant and equipment when
completed and ready for intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on
the same basis as other property assets, commences when the assets
are ready for their intended use.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise
from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in
the profit or loss in the period in which the item is derecognised.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of that
entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in the respective functional
currency (i.e. the currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the
dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms

of historical cost in a foreign currency are not translated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, and
on the retranslation of monetary items, are recognised in profit or loss

in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial statements,
the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign operations are translated
into the presentation currency of the Group (i.e. HK$) at the rate of
exchange prevailing at the end of each reporting period. Income and
expenses items are translated at the average exchange rates for the
year. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under the heading of
the exchange translation reserve (attributed to non-controlling interest

as appropriate).

Mining rights

Mining rights are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses (see the accounting policy in respect
of impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets below).
Amortisation for mining rights is recognised on the units of production
method based on the total proven and probable reserves of the mine
or contractual period from the date of commencement of commercial
production which approximates the date from which they are available

for use.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Cash and cash equivalents
Bank balances and cash in the consolidated statement of financial

position comprise cash at banks and on hand.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as defined

above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts.

Financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when a group entity

becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair
value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition
or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial
assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added
to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs
directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised immediately

in profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into the following specified
categories: financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”)
and loans and receivables. The classification depends on the nature
and purpose of the financial assets and is determined at the time of
initial recognition. All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets
are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that
require delivery of assets within the time frame established by regulation

or convention in the marketplace.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest income over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees and points
paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the
expected life of the debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt
instruments.

Financial assets as FVTPL

Financial assets at FVTPL has two sub-categories, including financial
assets held for trading and those designated as at FVTPL on initial
recognition.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

e it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the
near term; or

e on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of identified financial
instruments that the Group manages together and has a recent
actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

e it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging
instrument.

A financial asset other than a financial asset held for trading may be
designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if:

e such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would otherwise
arise; or

e the financial asset forms part of a group of financial assets or
financial liabilities or both, which is managed and its performance
is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with the Group’s
documented risk management or investment strategy, and
information about the grouping is provided internally on that basis;
or
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Financial assets as FVTPL (continued)

e it forms part of a contract containing one or more embedded
derivatives, and HKAS 39 permits the entire combined contract
(asset or liability) to be designated as at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value, with changes in
fair value arising from remeasurement recognised directly in profit or
loss in the period in which they arise. The net gain or loss recognised
in profit or loss includes any dividend or interest earned on the financial
assets and is included in the other gains and losses line item in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income. Fair value is determined in the manner described in note 6.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables (including trade
and other receivables, amount due from a related company, amount
due from a director and bank balances and cash) are measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any identified
impairment losses (see accounting policy on impairment loss on
financial assets below).

Impairment loss on financial assets

Financial assets other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for indicators
of impairment at the end of each reporting period. Financial assets are
considered to be impaired when there is objective evidence that, as a
result of one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition
of the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of the financial
assets have been affected.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment could
include:

e significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or
e breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in interest or
principal payments; or

e it becoming probable that the borrower will enter into bankruptcy
or financial re-organisation; or

e disappearance of an active market for that financial asset because
of financial difficulties.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (continued)

Impairment loss on financial assets (continued)

For certain categories of financial assets, such as trade and other
receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired individually
are, in addition, assessed for impairment on a collective basis.
Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables could
include the Group’s past experience of collecting payments, an
increase in the number of delayed payments in the portfolio past the
credit period from 30 to 180 days, observable changes in national or

local economic conditions that correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of impairment
loss recognised is the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at

the financial asset’s original effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the impairment
loss directly for all financial assets with the exception of trade and
other receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced through the
use of an allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of the
allowance account are recognised in profit or loss. When a trade and
other receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written off against
the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously

written off are credited to profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a subsequent
period, the amount of impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
losses was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is
reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount
of the asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed
what the amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been

recognised.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are classified as
either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance
of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability

and an equity instrument.
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3.

—E+ZA=+—HALFE
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (continued)

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest
in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity
instruments issued by the Group are recognised at the proceeds

received, net of direct issue costs.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest expenses over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash payments (including all fees and points
paid or received that form as integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the
expected life of the financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter

period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.
Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities including trade and other payables, payables
for mineral resources compensation fees, amounts due to related
companies, amount due to a non-controlling interest holder and other
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the

effective interest method.

Convertible loan notes

Convertible loan notes issued by the Group that contain liability,
conversion option and derivative (which is not closely related to
host liability component) components are classified separately into
respective items on initial recognition in accordance with the substance
of the contractual arrangements and the definition of financial liabilities
and an equity instrument. Conversion option that will be settled by the
exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another financial asset for a fixed
number of the Company’s own equity instruments is classified as an
equity instrument. A conversion option that will be settled other than by
the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another financial asset for a
fixed number of the Company’s own equity instruments is a conversion
option derivative. At the date of issue, both the liability and derivative

components are measured at fair value.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (continued)
Convertible loan notes (continued)

On initial recognition, the fair value of the liability component is
determined using the prevailing market interest of similar non-
convertible debts. The difference between the gross proceeds of the
issue of the convertible loan notes and the fair values assigned to
the liability component and derivative component, representing the
conversion option for the holder to convert the convertible loan notes

into equity, is included in equity (convertible bonds reserve).

In subsequent periods, the liability component of the convertible loan
notes is carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
The derivative component is measured at fair value with changes in fair

value recognised in profit or loss.

The equity component, representing the option to convert the liability
component into ordinary shares of the Company, will remain in
convertible bonds reserve until the embedded option is exercised (in
which case the balance stated in convertible bonds reserve will be
transferred to share premium). Where the option remains unexercised
at the expiry date, the balance stated in convertible bonds reserve will
be released to the accumulated losses. No gain or loss is recognised in

profit or loss upon conversion or expiration of the option.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible loan
notes are allocated to the equity, liability and derivative components
in proportion to their relative fair values. Transaction costs relating to
the derivative components are charged to profit or loss immediately.
Transaction costs relating to the liability component are included in the
carrying amount of the liability portion and amortised over the period of

the convertible loan notes using the effective interest method.

Convertible preference shares

Convertible preference shares are classified as equity if it is non-
redeemable and any dividends are discretionary. Dividends on
convertible preference shares classified as equity are recognised as

distributions within equity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 &z — =
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—E+ZA=+—HALFE
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (continued)
Embedded derivatives

Derivative embedded in non-derivative host contracts are treated as
separate derivatives when they meet the definition of a derivative, their
risks and characteristics are not closely related to those of the host
contracts and the host contracts are not measured at fair value with

changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual
rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the
financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of the asset to another entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to
control the transferred asset, the Group continues to recognise the
asset to the extent of its continuing involvement and recognises an

associated liability.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had been
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity

is recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the
Group’s obligation are discharged, cancelled or expire. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and

the consideration paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost
of inventories are calculated using the weighted average method for its
mining and coal products and first-in-first out method for its information
technology products. Net realisable value represents the estimated
selling prices for inventories less all estimated costs of completion and

costs necessary to make the sale.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets with
finite useful lives other than goodwill (see the accounting
policy in respect of goodwill above)

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible and intangible assets with finite useful lives
to determine whether there is any indication that those assets
have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the
extent of the impairment loss, if any. When it is not possible to estimate
the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs. Where a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can
be identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual cash-
generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest
group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and consistent

allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and
value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows

have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount
of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is recognised as an expense immediately

in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount
of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or
cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is

recognised as income immediately in profit or loss.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions attaching to
them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a systematic
basis over the periods in which the Group recognises as expenses the
related costs for which the grants are intended to compensate.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation for expenses
or losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving immediate
financial support to the Group with no future related costs are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they become
receivable.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable
and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable
profit differs from “loss before tax” as reported in the consolidated profit
or loss because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years and it further excludes items that are never
taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial
statements and the corresponding tax base used in the computation
of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for
all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally
recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which those
deductible temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries, except where the
Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary difference and
it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Deferred tax liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected
to apply in the period in which the liability is settled based on tax rates
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Leasing
Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the

lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-
line basis over the lease term, except where another systematic basis is
more representative of the time pattern in which economic benefits from

the leased asset are consumed.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to the PRC government retirement benefit scheme pursuant
to the relevant labour rules and regulations in the PRC and the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“MPF Scheme”) in Hong Kong
are recognised as an expense when employees have rendered service

entitling them to the contributions.

Short-term employee benefits

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees in respect
of wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave in the period the
related service is rendered at the undiscounted amount of the benefits

expected to be paid in exchange for that service.

Liabilities recognised in respect of short-term employee benefits are
measured at the undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be

paid in exchange for the related service.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take
a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale,
are added to the cost of those assets until such time as the assets are

substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in

which they are incurred.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation
(legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that the
Group will be required to settle that obligation, and a reliable estimate
can be made of the amount of the obligation. The amount recognised
as a provision, is the best estimate of the consideration required to
settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking
into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation.

Provision for restoration, rehabilitation and environmental
costs

Provisions for the Group’s restoration, rehabilitation and environmental
expenses are based on estimates of required expenditure to restore the
sites of Group’s mines in accordance with PRC rules and regulations.
The Group estimates its liabilities for final reclamation and mine closure
based upon detailed calculations of the amount and timing of the
future cash expenditure to perform the required work, escalated for
inflation, then discounted at a discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
liability such that the amount of provision reflects the present value of
the expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in Note 3, the directors of the Company are required to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an on-going
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in
the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

Critical judgements in applying the entity’s accounting
policies

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those involving
estimation (see below), that the directors have made in the process
of applying the entity’s accounting policies and that have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in consolidated financial
statements.

Going concern basis

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a going
concern basis, the validity of which depends upon the basis as set out
in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements.

Control over subsidiaries

The Group owns 49% equity interest in Shanxi Coal. The Group’s
ownership of 49% equity interest in Shanxi Coal gives the Group the
same percentage of the voting rights in Shanxi Coal. The Group’s
49% equity interest in Shanxi Coal was acquired on 7 June 2013 and
there has been no change in the Group’s ownership in Shanxi Coal
since then. The remaining 51% of the registered capital of Shanxi Coal
is owned by two equity interest holders, who holds 41% and 10%
respectively. The directors of the Company made an assessment as at
the date of completion of acquisition as to whether or not the Group has
control over Shanxi Coal in accordance with the definition of control and
the related guidance set out in HKFRS 10.

The directors of the Company concluded that it has had control over
Shanxi Coal since the completion of acquisition on 7 June 2013 on
the basis that under the amendments made to the memorandum and
articles of association of Shanxi Coal on 21 December 2009, the Group
are able to appoint five directors out of nine on the board of directors
of Shanxi Coal through its wholly owned subsidiaries and a resolution
to be passed by the board of directors of Shanxi Coal requires a simple
majority. Upon Shanxi Coal were effectively acquired by the Group on
7 June 2013, the Group is able to control the decision making of the
board of directors of Shanxi Coal through its wholly owned subsidiaries.

In addition, all the shareholders of Shanxi Coal agreed that they
will approve the plans and proposals, including operating and
investment plan, financial budgeting, profit appropriation, extraction
of discretionary reserve and the issuance of bonds, proposed by
the board of directors of Shanxi Coal. Accordingly, Shanxi Coal is
accounted for as subsidiary of the Company.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period,
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the

carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a straight-line
basis over their estimated useful lives, after taking into account their
estimated residual values. The determination of the useful lives and
residual values involve management’s estimation. The Group assesses
annually the residual values and the useful lives of the property, plant
and equipment and if the expectation differs from the original estimates,
such a difference may impact the depreciation in the year and the

estimate will be changed in the future period.

Impairment of property, plant and equipment

The Group tests at the reporting date whether property, plant
and equipment have suffered any impairment in accordance with
accounting policies stated in Note 3. Determining whether property,
plant and equipment are impaired requires an estimation of the
recoverable amount of the property, plant and equipment. Such
estimation was based on certain assumptions, which are subject to
uncertainty and might materially differ from the actual results. These
calculations require the use of estimates such as the future revenue and

discount rates.

As at 31 December 2014, the carrying amounts of property, plant
and equipment are approximately HK$1,293,296,000, net of
accumulated depreciation and impairment of HK$195,857,000 (2013:
HK$1,006,409,000, net of accumulated depreciation and impairment of
HK$61,648,000).
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
Impairment of mining rights

Under the full cost method of accounting for mining rights, such
costs are capitalised by reference to appropriate cost pools, and are
assessed for impairment when circumstances suggest that the carrying
amount may exceed its recoverable value. This assessment involves
judgement as to (i) the likely future commerciality of the asset and when
such commerciality should be determined; and (ii) future revenues
and costs pertaining to the asset in question, and the discount rate to
be applied to such revenues and costs for the purpose of deriving a
recoverable value. While conducting an impairment review of its assets,
the Group makes certain judgements in making assumptions about the
future product prices, reserves and future development and production
costs. Changes in these estimates may result in significant changes to
the consolidated statement of profit or loss. As at 31 December 2014,
the carrying amount of mining right is HK$11,399,038,000, net of
accumulated amortisation and impairment losses of HK$944,165,000.
(2013: HK$11,772,162,000, net of accumulated amortisation and
impairment losses of HK$228,439,000).

Estimated impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an estimation of the
value-in-use of the cash-generating units (“CGUs”) to which goodwill
has been allocated. The value in use calculation requires the Group
to estimate the future cash flows expected to arise from the CGUs
and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value.
Where the actual future cash flows are less than expected, a material
impairment loss may arise. As at 31 December 2014, the carrying
amount of goodwill is nil, net of accumulated impairment loss of
HK$3,674,327,000 (2013: nil, net of accumulated impairment loss of
HK$3,674,327,000). Details of the recoverable amount calculation are

disclosed in Note 18.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
Impairment loss recognised in respect of trade receivables
When there is objective evidence of impairment loss, the Group takes
into consideration the estimation of future cash flows. The amount of
the impairment loss is measured as the difference between the assets’
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows
(excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted
at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective
interest rate computed at initial recognition). Where the actual future
cash receipts are less than expected, a material impairment loss
may arise. As at 31 December 2014, the carrying amount of trade
receivable is HK$23,980,000 (net of allowance for doubtful debts of
HK$22,744,000) (2013: carrying amount of HK$44,673,000, net of
allowance for doubtful debts of HK$13,211,000).

Mine reserves

Engineering estimates of the Group’s mine reserves are inherently
imprecise and represent only approximate amounts because of the
subjective judgements involved in developing such information. There
are authoritative guidelines regarding the engineering criteria that
have to be met before estimated mine reserves can be designated
as “proven” and “probable”. Proven and probable mine reserve
estimates are updated on regular intervals taking into account recent
production and technical information about each mine. In order to
calculate reserves, estimates and assumptions are required about
a range of geological, technical and economic factors, including
quantities, grades, production techniques, recovery rates, production
costs, transport costs, commodity demand and commodity prices.
In addition, as prices and cost levels change from year to year, the
estimate of proven and probable mine reserves also changes. This
change is considered a change in estimate for accounting purposes
and is reflected on a prospective basis in related amortisation rates and
impairment of mining rights.

Despite the inherent imprecision in these engineering estimates,
these estimates are used in determining depreciation expenses and
impairment losses. The capitalised cost of mining rights is depreciated
over the estimated unit of production. The estimated unit of production
are reviewed annually in accordance with the production plans of the
Group and the proven and probable reserves of the mines.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
Estimation of current and deferred income tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in various jurisdictions. Significant
judgement is required in determining the provision for income taxes.
There are transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of business.
Where the final tax outcome of these matters are different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will impact the
current and deferred income tax provisions in the period in which
such determinations are made. As at 31 December 2014, the carrying
amount of income tax liabilities is approximately HK$6,752,000
(20183: HK$7,015,000) and deferred tax liabilities of approximately
HK$2,627,261,000 (2013: HK$2,726,722,000).

Fair value of derivative component of convertible loan notes

The directors of the Company use their judgement in selecting
an appropriate valuation technique for financial instruments not
quoted in an active market. Valuation techniques commonly used
by market practitioners are applied. For derivative component of
the convertible loan notes, assumptions are made based on quoted
market rates adjusted for specific features of the instrument. As at
31 December 2014, the carrying amount of derivative component of
convertible loan notes recognised as current asset is HK$11,340,000
(2013: HK$16,678,000) and the carrying amount of derivative
component of convertible loan notes recognised as current liability is
HK$930,730,000 (2013: HK$1,485,672,000).

Provision for restoration, rehabilitation and environmental costs
The provision for restoration, rehabilitation and environmental costs
has been determined by the management of the Group based on their
best estimates. The management of the Group estimated this liability
for final reclamation and mine closure based upon detailed forecast of
the amounts and timing of future cash flows for a third party to perform
work, escalated for inflation, then discounted at a discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the liability, such that the provision reflects the
present value of the expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation. However, the estimate of the associated expenditures may
be subject to change due to new government environmental policy in
the future. The provision is reviewed regularly to ensure that it properly
reflects the present value of the obligation arising from the mining
activities. As at 31 December 2014, the carrying amount of provision for
restoration, rehabilitation and environmental costs was HK$67,933,000
(2013: HK$62,330,000).
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5.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will
be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the return to
stakeholders through optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The

Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debts (which
included convertible loan notes disclosed in Note 28, other borrowings
disclosed in Note 27, amounts due to related companies disclosed
in Note 21, amount due to a non-controlling interest holder disclosed
in Note 26, promissory notes disclosed in Note 32, net of cash and
cash equivalents) and equity attributable to owners of the Company
(comprising issued share capital, convertible preference shares and
reserves). The directors of the Company review the capital structure
monthly. As a part of this review, the directors of the Company consider
the cost of capital and the risks associated with each class of capital.
Based on the recommendations of the directors, the Group will balance
its overall capital structure through new share issues and share buy-

backs as well as issue of new debt or the redemption of existing debt.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(a) Categories of financial instruments

Financial assets ERMEE

Loans and receivables (including cash and

5. EAREREE
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2014 2013
—E-mE

=H==4F
HK$’000

T

HK$’000
THET

EREEEFIA(BERE R

cash equivalents) BEZEEY) 118,857 250,612
FVTPL derivative BAFEFABSEZTETA 11,340 16,678
Financial liabilities - SR
Amortised cost 4K N 7,672,071 7,118,557
FVTPL derivative BATFEGFABRZITETR 930,730 1,485,672
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
The Group’s major financial instruments include trade and other
receivables, amount due from a related company, amount due
from a director, bank balances and cash, trade and other payables,
convertible loan notes, other borrowings, promissory notes,
amounts due to related companies and amount due to a non-
controlling interest holder. Details of these financial instruments
are disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated with these
financial instruments include market risk (currency risk and interest
rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies on how to
mitigate these risks are set out below. The management manages
and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are

implemented on a timely and effective manner.

Market risk
Currency risk
Certain financial assets are denominated in currencies other than

the functional currency of the respective group companies.

The following table shows the Group’s exposure at the end of
the reporting period to currency risk arising from transactions or

recognised assets denominated in a currency (HK$) other than the

functional currency (RMB) of the entity to which they relate.

ERITHA

(b)

(%)

MERREEEEREE
AEEXIZSRMTIANEL S REME
Wﬁﬁ~ﬁwfﬁﬁéﬂﬂﬁﬁ~ﬁw
—REEHIE - ROTEBRERS -
&EMEHmE~ﬂ@&EW?$~,
fhiEE - AHBRE - EABEEARRE
RIEN — B IR S A AIE © %
SeMIEFBREEMNTNRE - &
ZECHIAAMZRARBIET SRR
(BEERBRFERRE)  EERRERRR
PHECRAK - BRIEZZRR ZBORERN
TX - BEREEEREEZZRAR &
R B B B Ot B EGE B R

5 E R
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As at As at

31 December 31 December

2014 2013

—E-F —ZT=4F

+=A=+—-HB +ZA=+—H

HK$’000 HK$’000

FTHERT FHT

Assets AE 14,450 5,018

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency hedging N6 B B AN &SNS O BUR

policy. However, the management monitors foreign exchange EEEETINERR  WRERERE

exposure and will consider hedging significant foreign currency

exposure should the need arise.
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

6. ERMITA(E)
b HEEBREEEEREKE

(continued)

Market risk (continued)
Currency risk (continued)
Sensitivity analysis

The Group is mainly exposed to the currency of HKS.

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a 5% increase
and decrease in the functional currencies of the relevant group
entities against the relevant foreign currencies. The sensitivity
analysis includes only outstanding foreign currency denominated
monetary items and adjusts their translation at the year end
for a 5% change in foreign currency rates. A positive number
below indicates a decrease in loss after tax where the functional
currencies of the relevant group entities strengthen 5% against the
relevant currency. For a 5% weakening of HK$ against the relevant
currency, there would be an equal and opposite impact on the loss

after tax, and the balances below would be negative.
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HK$’000 HK$’'000
TR TET

Impact on loss for the year HEEBBZYE

(525) (188)

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in relation to
fixed-rate amounts due to related companies (see Note 21), other
borrowings (see Note 27 for details), convertible loan notes (see

Note 28 for details) and promissory notes (see Note 32).

The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in relation
to variable-rate amounts due to non-controlling interest holder (see

Note 26) and bank balances.

The Group currently does not have an interest rate hedging policy.
However, the management monitors interest rate exposure and will
consider hedging significant interest rate exposure should the need

arise.
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

112

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)

Market risk (continued)

Interest rate risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below has been determined based on
the exposure to interest rates for variable-rate amount due to
non-controlling interest holder and bank balances, the analysis
is prepared assuming amount due to non-controlling interest
holder and bank balances at the end of each reporting period
was outstanding for the whole year. The basis point increase
or decrease is used when reporting interest rate risk internally
to key management personnel and represents management’s

assessment of the reasonably possible change in interest rates.

50 basis points have been used for variable-rate amount due to

non-controlling interest holder and bank balances.

For variable-rate amount due to non-controlling interest holder
and bank balances, if the interest rates had been 50 basis points
(2013: 50 basis points) higher/lower and all other variables were
held constant, the Group’s loss after tax and accumulated losses
would increase/decrease by approximately HK$13,062,000 (2013:
HK$10,338,000).

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that debtors will default on their
obligations to repay the amounts owing to the Group, resulting in
a loss to the Group. The maximum exposure to credit risk in the
event that the counterparties fail to perform their obligations at
the end of the financial year in relation to each class of recognised
financial assets is the carrying amount of those assets as stated in

the consolidated statement of financial position.

The Group has no significant credit risks as it has policies in
place to ensure that sales of products and services are made to
customers with appropriate credit history. The Group has adopted
a policy of only dealing with creditworthy counterparties, where
appropriate, as a means of mitigating the risk of financial loss
from defaults. The Group only transacts with entities with good

repayment history.

NORTH ASIA RESOURCES HOLDINGS LIMITED e 1t 5 & RIZ R SR A &

6. M A(HE)

(b)

BHEERBEEERRERK
(&)

% Rk ()

FE R ()

BURE DT

TSR E 3 TR IR T B PR JE R R
@I A ARBITEBRZNEEREE
MwmEEBDTRERRNZMERRZ
e IR s s B A RIRIT R SR B F
BEE - BBAKARAIREZERE
ABWENXAR  XREREH M X
ZEEA R 2 FT M -

ARBCHFEEMNIFERERTEA
N RIT AR PR G0 E RS -

it )2 BB IER IR A ARER
THERRIE EF T RRE0EES(ZF
— =4 : 50fEEE) - iFAA A fth B 84k
FAg - AIREERBZEERREE
181532 035 4 4913,062,00058 7T (=
T — =4 : 10,338,000 7T) °

EE Rk
EERBREASEBEHEARBEELRR
KEREMERAEBELBRZR
@ o e T 7 B IR 2 AR R R B
TERSHERRASREEZEE - B
ARBEE 2 ZRAREERRBES BT
ARRKFAFIZEEEZREE

BN AL E S il BURERE m MRS
HETRARERGRLHZER ML E
EXFERR - AEBRMZBRR/R
HEREREERFZIHFHETR

BEREBEEROABBRZUBELRR
b o REBEEERERCHERTFIERR
5 o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P BmRME

For the year ended 31 December 2014 &= —Z—F+_-_A=+—HILFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) SRTHEE)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies b BEEKREEEEREKE
(continued) (#&)
Credit risk (continued) EERE (&)
The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk REPME @ AEBABEMERNES
by customer, with exposure spreading over a number of EERR  RBROGRIEEFHIER
counterparties and customers. o
The Group’s concentration of credit risk by geographical locations RESMHME  AEBEFERREE

is mainly in the PRC with exposure spread over a number of
customers, which accounted for all trade receivables for both years
ended 31 December 2014 and 2013.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the counterparties
are banks with high credit ratings assigned by international credit-

rating agencies.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and
maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate
by the management to finance the Group’s operations and mitigate

the effects of fluctuations in cash flows.

As at 31 December 2014, the Group had net current liabilities of
HK$3,907,167,000. The directors of the Company have given
careful consideration on the measures currently undertaken in
respect of the Group’s liquidity position. As detailed in Note 1
to the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company believe that the Company will be able to operate as a

going concern.
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 6. SR TR (&)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies b MERKEEEERKE
(continued) (#&)
Liquidity risk (continued) REE SRS (E)

TRERBEEFPFHINARENRITES
BEERTZERIHABERN - ZRBE
AEESFANRZ AHZSRAGBEYZ
AUBBRSRERE  BRASREN

The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual
maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities based on the
agreed repayment terms. The table has been drawn up based on

the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the

earliest date on which the Group can be required to pay. The table BRAS -
includes both interest and principal cash flows.
Liquidity risk tables TBERRRIR

114

More than More than
1 year but 2 years but Total Carrying
Within 1 year less than less than undiscounted amount at
or on demand PACELES 5 years cash flows 31 December
R®
—FRH —FENE MENE AME +=A=t-H
EER BERMER BREFR HRERELE ZEREE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
FHET TER THERT TR TER
2014 —T-mE
Non-derivative financial FiTESRERE
liabilities
Trade and other payables ESREMENTE 790,428 - - 790,428 790,428
Amounts due to related [ A R
companies 455,522 - - 455,522 454,058
Amounts due to a non- BN —REERER
controlling interest holder BEAFE 2,051,260 1,611,014 201,264 3,863,538 3,523,810
Other borrowings HibfEE 38,539 - - 38,539 37,755
Promissory notes AH R 28,080 251,287 - 279,367 278,634
Convertible loan notes ARRERE 28,080 462,434 3,013,886 3,504,400 2,587,386
3,391,909 2,324,735 3,215,150 8,931,794 7,672,071
2013 —T-=F
Non-derivative financial ETESRERE
liabilities
Trade and other payables B SR EMEMNFE 696,781 - - 696,781 696,781
Payables for mineral resources ~ [EfTREZRHES
compensation fees 142,168 - - 142,168 142,168
Amounts due to related [ R AR
companies 434,057 - - 434,057 434,057
Amounts due to a non- B —R IR R
controlling interest holder BEAFE 509,759 1,464,828 1,366,548 3,341,135 2,845,679
Other borrowings Hinfg g 39,675 - - 39,675 37,755
Promissory notes S 28,080 28,080 251,287 307,447 275,416
Convertible loan notes RRESZ 28,068 28,080 3,986,906 4,043,054 2,686,701
1,878,588 1,520,988 5,604,741 9,004,317 7,118,557
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 &= —Z—F+_-_A=+—HILFE

6.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Fair value

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying amounts
of current financial assets and current financial liabilities recorded at
amortised cost approximate their fair values due to their immediate or

short-term maturities.

The directors of the Company also consider that the fair values
of the long-term portion of financial assets and financial liabilities
approximates to their carrying amount.

The fair value of other financial assets and financial liabilities is
determined in accordance with generally accepted pricing models
based on discounted cash flow analysis using prices or rates from
observable current market transactions.

Derivative component of convertible loan notes

The fair value of the derivative component of convertible loan notes is
determined by the inputs to Black-Scholes model with trinomial tree
method including spot price, risk free rate, expected option period and
expected volatility. Please refer to Note 28 for the details of the inputs.

Fair value measurements recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position

ERMTH
A
ARREFRRENERNYHEHME - &
BERAANRZMeREERNRERE
BEZREEEAHERE °

(4&)

ARBDEENRA  cHEEMEBRAGER
#D 2 A EEREERE

Hh %mﬁié‘?&%wﬂiﬁﬁz B AT B ]
BEMEX5H2ERINE  REUBRS
REDHT LA ’/lu%mfﬂ%‘t?im @

RRERZE 2 TETAIRD
THRERRBEZTET AR D 2 2 FERE
Rfs-E AT EERL = EE
EZBAB(BRREEE  EREAE - H
TR HIR R IEHNIR)EE - FEBAEZ
FHIEE2 RN 28 o

R HIRRRER D FEFE

The following table provides an analysis of financial instruments that are RERERBREATEFEZEHTARE
measured subsequent to initial recognition at fair value, grouped into AREEZABREESR—Z=ZE  HMH
Levels 1 to 3 based on the degree to which the fair value is observable. R -

e level 1 fair value measurements are those derived from quoted
prices (unadjusted) in active market for identical assets or liabilities.

s FEATEMELAEREEREE
AR S < RECRBR)FH -

e Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived from inputs . ATFEFEFRE—EREIR
other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are 1ELMI\ ZEEXBBZAUBRERES
observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or E(AER) KEELR2S(ABERITE)
indirectly (i.e. derived from prices). i ©

e Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived from valuation o F-EAFEFEFEAGBERKIMN(BEL

techniques that include inputs for the asset or liability that are not
based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

There were no transfers among level 1, 2 and 3 in the current and prior
years.

FEERNAEEMEBECEEXAR
28 ATNHERGAERFH -

RAFERBEFE  F—B -
B EE I -

F_ERE

ANNUAL REPORT 2014 » 2014 3 115



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P BwRME

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE—Z—PUFE+—-A=+—HILFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 6. TMITAE(E)
Fair value (continued) NFEE)
Fair value measurements recognised in the consolidated NREMBERRRER QAT ETF=
statement of financial position (continued) (#&)
As at 31 December 2014 and 2013, the only financial instrument RZE—MERZT—=ZF+ZA=+—
measured at fair value was the derivative component of convertible loan A B—RAFEFEZemIAAIRR
notes which belongs to level 3 financial instruments. BEREBZITESD  BE=-ESmIA -

Fair value

Valuation techniques and

Fair value as at
RT5IBHZATE
31 December 31 December

2014
—T-mF
+-B=+—H
HK$’000
TEx

Financial instrument

ERIE

Derivative component of
convertible loan notes
TARERZEZITEHS

- Financial assets 11,340 16,678  Level 3
- SREE 5=
- Financial liabilities (930,730) (1,485,672)  Level 3
- eRAR E=F

hierarchy

APESR

significant key or unobservable inputs

REFEREERRATTRRGAE

Valuation technique:
hERE
Key observable inputs:
BRUEEAAE:
Risk-free rate
B R
Effective interest rate
ERFI=

Key unobservable inputs:

BRATEZRAE -
Volatility
I

Valuation technique:
hERE
Key observable inputs:
BRIBEZHAE:
Risk-free rate
B R
Effective interest rate
ERAI=

Key unobservable inputs:

BRATEZRAE -
Volatility
X1
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Black-Scholes model with trinomial tree method
MR- B RE T R R BB

0.40% (2013: 0.55%)

0.40% (ZZ—=4%: 0.55%)
11% (2013: 10%)

1% (ZB—=% : 10%)

47% (2013: 46%) (Note i)
47% (ZZ—=%F : 46%) (Hi3F)

Black-Scholes model with trinomial tree method
HE - BT R R =B B

0.40%-1.15% (2013: 0.5%-0.6%)
0.40%-1.15% (ZZ—=% : 0.5%-0.6%)
10%-11% (2013: 10%-11%)

10%-11% (ZB—=% : 10%-11%)

47%-59% (2013: 40%-49%) (Note i)
47%-59% (= Z—=% : 40%-49%) (FfizEii)



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P BmRME

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE—Z—PF+—-A=+—HILFE

6.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Fair value (continued)
Fair value measurements recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position (continued)

Notes:

()  Anincrease or a decrease in the volatility used in isolation will have no effect
on the fair value measurement of the derivative component of convertible
loan notes classified as financial assets.

(i) Anincrease in the volatility used in isolation would result in an increase in
the fair value measurement of the derivative component of convertible loan
notes classified as financial liabilities, and vice versa. A 10 % increase in
the volatility with all other variables constant would increase the fair value
of derivative component of convertible loan notes classified as financial
liabilities at 31 December 2014 by HK$2,521,000 and a 10% decrease in
the volatility with all other variables constant would decrease the fair value
of derivative component of convertible loan notes classified as financial
liabilities at 31 December 2014 by HK$2,299,000.

There were no transfers into or out of Level 3 during the years ended 31
December 2014 and 2013.

Please refer to note 28 for the reconciliation of Level 3 fair value

measurements.

Valuation process

Some of the Group’s assets and liabilities are measured at fair value for
financial reporting purposes. The appropriate valuation techniques and
inputs for the fair value measurements are determined by the directors

of the Company and the independent qualified valuer.

In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group uses
market-observable data to the extent it is available. Where Level 1
inputs are not available, the Group engages independent qualified
valuer to perform the valuation. The directors of the Company
work closely with the independent qualified valuer to establish the
appropriate valuation techniques and inputs to the model. The directors
of the Company will review the cause of fluctuations in fair value of the

assets and liabilities semi-annually.

SRT A ()

DNFE(E)
NEE MBI RER QX FEAE
(&)

Bt

() FrEMZRERMAA D WL & ETRY
PEREMAEZ TRRERBENTEDH 2
AFEHEEHE -

(i) PAIEMZIRIEEN  BYMSKERSERD
MEBEZTRARERERITERD 2 ATE
BN - RZIFR o RIBHEIN10% @ FiE
HhBHERFTE BN _F—HF+-A
=t—BOEALRABZITRRERRER
PTE D R FELE 2,621,000 7T » K
ERD10%  EEGESESTE B2
RZZE-—NOF+-_A=+—HHEREWME
BZABRBEERERITERDNAFERD
2,299,000/ 7T °

REBEEZZ—NFEFER_ZT—=F+=A
=t—HIFE  FZEHESEAREY -

BERAFE=EBATETEZHE F2HHE
28 °

e e A7

AEBHDEERBERMBRBMIZAF
BEFft 8 - ATVEFEEAZEE GHERIIR
BAEHARREZRBIYSERGERME

E °

REFEEXABZAFER - AEEER
AHEERzmERBEEE - WS —EH
ANERAHRER  AEEREBH LA ERMG
BEEVETEE - AR EFERBIA ERMG
BEEEZEIE - BUREER ZEE HER
MkBAE AABEEHEFLFREEE
RaBEz A FERBZER o
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7.

118

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group’s operating segments, based on information reported to the
board of directors (being the chief operating decision maker (“CODM”))
for the purpose of resources allocation and performance assessment

are as follows:

Banking and finance — Provision of systems integration, software
systems integration development, internet service, software

services and solution engineering, maintenance

software solutions and professional outsourcing

services for the banking and finance,

telecommunications and public sector

clients

Mining operation — Geological survey, exploration and
development of coal deposits (mining

operation), and trading of coking coal

Coal operation — Provision of coal trading and logistics

services

The management of the Group monitors the operating results of
its business units separately for the purposes of making decisions
on resource allocation and performance assessment. Segment
performance is evaluated based on the operating profit or loss which
in certain respects, as explained in the table below, is measured
differently from the operating profit or loss in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss. The Company’s financing (including finance
costs and finance revenue) and income taxes are managed on a group

basis and are not allocated to the operating segments.
For the purposes of monitoring segment performance and allocating

resources between segments, the CODM also reviews the segment

assets and segment liabilities.

NORTH ASIA RESOURCES HOLDINGS LIMITED e 1t 5 & RIZ R SR A &

7 EER
ARBRERAIRERRFERANEFS
(EBEEREE ([EBEEREE]))2
WERZEEDBWT

- RERSEKX M
FE - DEHER
% BHERT R
IR REkEM
RI|ITELR SR
£ BAXRKEAA
EXREFPRERHER
SNFI AR 75

RITREMEL
SRR AR TS DA K2
AT R

- BREZMWERRE &
B3 REES
) BHE R

PRAR S5

— REERE SRR
AR7%

AEBEREEHERBEM R EREETT
fBRIEEE - AEBIRD I R R4 77 EE
HORTE o 73 BB R IRAR IR AR &0 7 KB 18 5F
i - AT R - ERETHIEZFE
BRI EEERR ZEEENLEE - AR
AZBE(BERERANRBERA) RFAE
BREEEEEE  TEOETREDH

HREEDARERNRDBEOEER - £
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P BmRME

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE—Z—PF+—-A=+—HILFE

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 7. 7EER(E)
Segments revenues and results DEBM AR ELE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenues and results by TREIIZAZRIEED BN AKE
I ONSES -

reportable and operating segments.

Banking and finance
systems integration

services and

software solutions

RITRERMARERRK

Mining operation Coal operation
URBHFRT R RExH e
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014
“B-QME —T-=F “B-RF —F-=F “B-NF _T-=F “B-OF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
TEx TEL TEx THEL TiEx TEL FHET THEL

For the year ended #E+-A=1+—H
31 December FFE

TURNOVER EEH
Sales to external customers ESNFZREER 2

HE 56,091 79,428 44,644 9,794 5,511 40515 106,246 129,737
RESULTS 4
Segment loss HEEE (3703) (1,143 (920,652) (4,046,641) @18)  (6,140) (924,573) (4,053,924)
Unallocated income AABHA 317,825 294,703
Unallocated expenses ROWZ (15,652)  (180,080)
Finance costs V%N @77,771)  (263,877)
Loss before taxation B RIE R (1,100,171) (4,203,178

The accounting policies of the reportable and operating segments
are the same as the Group’s accounting policies described in Note 3.
Segment loss represents the loss from each segment without allocation
of central administrative expenses, directors’ and chief executive’s
emoluments, change in fair value of derivative component of convertible
loan notes, gain on amendment of terms of convertible loan notes,

loss on redemption of convertible loan notes, loss on redemption of

AE2HREEED 2 BT RREARERN
i3z Rt ERAER - D EEBRIES D APE
EZBR MURSEPRITEHEX  E=
RITHEZHME  ATHRRERZERZ2TET
AHo AFEES - EFTARREREEE
Rz BETHRRERRREZEBE &
CEANREZER  HEMEBAR 2 WEF
B HENBARZWEFER BT HEMIK
ARBERA - I ERD AL KRB

romissory notes, net gain on disposal of subsidiaries, certain other R TS p P
o Y £ o MEBEERBEREZHEHR -

income and finance costs. This is the measure reported to CODM for

the purposes of resource allocation and performance assessment.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 & ZE —Z —PUF+—

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Segments assets and liabilities

The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities by

reportable and operating segments.

Segment assets

Banking and finance systems integration

B=+—HLEE
7. oEER(E)
PTHEERAE

EREE-

DREE

2014
—g-mF

HK$’000
THET

RITREBRSERIRTE A K

TXREAEZREBEDWATZAEEE

2013
T
HK$’000

THETT

services and software solutions R R T & 28,294 26,575
Mining operation P 275 12,787,897 12,951,233
Coal operation IR E 3,944 15,182
Total segment assets DERE EAAEE 12,820,135 12,992,990
Unallocated RoOHE 55,587 108,892
Consolidated assets A EE 12,875,722 13,101,882

Segment liabilities

Banking and finance systems integration

—E-mF
HK$°000
FHE

HRIT M2 Bl R AT SR A ARTS PA B2

HK$’000

T

services and software solutions BERRR TG 2R 40,107 33,827
Mining operation e 4,561,148 3,919,769
Coal operation TERETS 239,037 232,205
Total segment liabilities DEE BB 4,840,292 4,185,801
Unallocated vl 6,495,587 7,227,845
Consolidated liabilities FeaaR 11,335,879 11,413,646
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P BmRME

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZE —Z—PUF+_-_A=+—HILFE
7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 7. 7EHER(E)

Segments assets and liabilities (continued) PHMEERAE(E)

For the purposes of monitoring segment performances and allocating HREESHEXRRERDHHEABEEIR -

resources between segments:

— all assets are allocated to reportable segments other than certain = ETWE - BERSE  SFEMRK
property, plant and equipment, certain prepayments, deposits B e RHEMEYGKRIE  BR—BE
and other receivables, amount due from a director, derivative FHIE - TRREXREZENITETAEL
component of convertible loan notes, bank balances and cash, and D RITERRRESURZ BT 2HRD
assets jointly used by reportable segments. HMHRFRZEEIN  FTEEEHSER

ERERDE -

- all liabilities are allocated to reportable segments other than certain — BRETHMEMNTKIE  ETERAEEA
other payables, certain amounts due to related companies, other TI2RIE - EMEER  THRBRERER
borrowings, derivative component of convertible loan notes, WITETARNS - AIRKREREENE
liabilities component of convertible loan notes, promissory notes, EHH « RELEE - IEHARE - BLE
income tax liabilities, deferred tax liability and liabilities jointly liable HEaBERZER2®|ROBHRAEZ
by reportable segments. BEN TBAESSRER 2RI

Other segment information H fth 5 Ep & F

Banking and finance
systems integration
services and
software solutions Mining operation Coal operation Unallocated Consolidated
ROREMAREARENR
REBARR REER RRER
2014 2013 2014 2014 2014 2014
“E-ME —3-=F -E-MF “E-Mf “3-mE £ ZB-ME
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 i HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TER T T iy T T THR TR Tn
For the year ended 31 December BETZA=t-BLEE
Amounts included in the measure of HENTERI N TEER
segment losses or segment assets: STRUATHE :
Depreciation g 224 161 57,308 25,467 155 2,768 163 480 57,850 28,876
Addition of non-current assets REFRIAE 45 % 8918 331032 13 2,864 612 4 389,048 334,190
Impairment loss recognised in respect of AEHEYFEL
trade receivables HEER - 283 9,336 - - - - - 9,336 283
(Gain) loss on disposal of property, HENE  BRRREZ
plant and equipment (h=)EE (10) - (498) 632 - - - - (508) 632
Impairment loss recognised in BEINELREER
respect of goodwil - - - 366155 - - - - - 3,661,5%
Impairment loss recognised in BREARE HEER
respect of mining rights - - 709,204 228,439 - - - - 709,204 228,439
Impairment loss recognised in BENE  BERRE
respect of property, plant ZREER
and equipment - - 74,776 21,172 - - - - 74,776 21,172
Reversal of impairment loss recognised in REBRIESRYGE
respect of trade receivables ZREER - 140 - = = = = = = (140
Recovery of other receivables previously e G 2 BGUE
written off - - (10,266) - - - - - (10,266) -
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 7. DEER(E)
Other segment information (continued) Hith o EE R (K)

Banking and finance
systems integration
services and

software solutions Mining operation Coal operation Unallocated Consolidated
RIRERES
SRBHAR

L YiE FRER e B

2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
Z3-Bf Z%-=f C-%-mF -%-Zf -F-mF -¥-Zf -3-MF -¥-ZF -F-PIF C%-=F
HK$'000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$(000
TER Tin TET AT TEm BT Tax  TEn TR Thn

For the year ended 31 December BEt-A=t-BLEE
Amounts regulariy provided to CODM but not ~ 3F&% &8l ﬂlﬂﬁ&gﬁﬁﬂ
included in the measure of segment losses: ~ TEEERF AR 230
Interest income FEMA (30) 29 (122) (339) (5) 8) (1) ©) (158) (379)
Interest expenses G - - 147,152 59,463 4,358 4237 326,261 200,177 471, 263,877
Income tax expenses (cred) FEREx(E8) 25 130 (177,215 (57,121) - il - - (17,0400 (56,980)
Geographical information EER
The Group’s operations are located in Hong Kong and the PRC. REBEBURESRTE -
The Group’s revenue from external customers is presented based AEERBINBRE 2 WAL EMEZT ©
on the location of the operation. Information about the Group’s non- BRAREBIERBEEZERAEAERE
current assets is presented based on the geographical locations of the EfEEMLERY) -

assets.

Hong Kong Elsewhere in the PRC Mongolia Consolidated
£ HEAMHE E Ee)
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2014 2013

—B-mE -T-=f -8-mE —T-=F -R-MF -—T-=Ff ZT-PF _—T-=%
HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TER TAL TER TAT TER TEL TER TEL

Segment revenue AEHIA
Revenue from external RENPEE ZHA
customers - - 106,246 129,080 - 657 106,246 129,737
Non-current asses FRYEE 496 44 12738522 12,826,747 - - 12739018 12,826,791
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 7. 7EHER(E)
Revenue from major products and services FEERRREZBA
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue from its major NTAAESEEZZERERBEZWAD

products and services:

2014 2013
—T-mE = e
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET
Sale of automatic teller machines HEBBIEEHK 30,074 59,736
Sale of coal SHE R 5,511 39,858
Sale of mining products HEBEER 44,644 9,794
Provision of logistics services R AR = 657
Rendering of computer technology services MBI IR 26,017 19,692
106,246 129,737
Information about major customers EBREEREFZER
Revenue from customers of the corresponding years contributing over EAREEHEBAFEAEEI0% A LEZEFRE
10% of the total sales of the Group is as follows: BAEM A DT -

2014
—ZE-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FAT
Customer A' ZEA 20,189 13,933
Customer B? = FEB? 18,718 N/A®
1 Revenue from banking and finance systems integration services and 1 R1T R R R E K ARTS A RE M FRIR T R
software solutions. A o
2 Revenue from mining operation. 2 FEEEBEA o
3 The corresponding revenue did not contribute over 10% of the total revenue s WALBBRFHAEEREBFEE 2 RATR
of the Group in the respective year. W AREBE10% °
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8. TURNOVER AND OTHER OPERATING INCOME 8. EEBNHMIKE WL
Turnover represents invoiced value of goods sold and services EHEBIRHE S R RIRHRE (FOBRETE T IT
rendered, net of discounts allowed and sales taxes where applicable. MEHEER(WER)) 2 BRE - NFE®R
Revenues recognised during the year are as follows: ZWALT

2014 2013
—ET—NF —E—=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FE T FHET
Turnover EER
Sale of goods HEEM 80,229 109,388
Rendering of services RERS 26,017 20,349
106,246 129,737
Other operating income HAh g e
Gain on disposal of property, plant HEME  BE & RERE
and equipment 508 =
Interest income FEHA 158 379
Net foreign exchange gains HINEE W 25 /5 58 197 -
Reversal of impairment loss recognised in BOERRE S ERFIBY
respect of trade receivables RERE = 140
Written back of provision for litigation (Note 1) & s & ] (FHE1) 16,073 =
Recovery of other receivables previously U [2] % il $5 2 E At B U 5108
written off 10,266 -
Sundry income LN 2 288
Government grant (Note 2) BT B & (Bi7E2) 539 447
27,743 1,254
Notes: P&
1. Amount represented written back of provision for a legal case taken up 1. HEERAR RN =T — = F UL BT
by the Company upon acquisition of Lexing Holdings Limited (“Lexing”) in BRAR)([EHE )R F R BB EE -
2013. The case was fully settled during the year. ZRHEERFRTLE ©
2. Pursuant to the notices issued by the relevant government authorities, 2. RIR B BT AR L 2 AN - AARIET
certain PRC subsidiaries of the Company were entitled to enjoy subsidies TR BARZARESEHREMNBHERSEZ
for provision of specialised information technology services. There is no AR o AEBBEEAMBARE Z &G -

further condition that the Group is required to fulfill.
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9. FINANCE COSTS 9. ME N
2014 2013
—E2—NmF —T—=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHT
Interest expenses on borrowings wholly ARAFANBBREEZEZEEZF
repayable within five years: BRX :
— effective interest expenses on convertible — AR EXRZER 2 ERFE
loan notes 53 292,990 180,778
— promissory notes — R 31,298 17,909
— other borrowings —HEEE 1,920 1,490
— amount due to a related company —FEN —EEE A T RIE 53 -
— amount due to a non-controlling — R — IR EEITE A
interest holder RIE 299,309 127,523
Total borrowing costs ER RN 625,570 327,700
Less: amounts capitalised in construction B ERIRENMEz S5
in progress (151,621) (66,057)
Imputed interest for provision for restoration, IR1E - BERIRERABEZ
rehabilitation and environmental costs (Note 31)  fEEFFI 5 (FfzX31) 3,822 2,234
477,771 263,877
10.LOSS BEFORE TAXATION 10. B R BT s 18

2014 2013
—E-IF

HK$’000 HK$’'000
T BT

Loss before taxation has been arrived at after BRF5 A ESIE B F0BR -

charging:
Auditor’s remuneration ZERN BN & 1,872 2,971
Amounts of inventories recognised as expense EHRARYZFESE 35,157 96,321
Depreciation e 57,850 28,876
Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments EZRITHEZEN

(Note 15) (FF5E15) 3,233 4,285
Exchange (gain) loss, net M 3, (W an ) 518 (197) 1,443
Impairment loss recognised in respect of trade B #RE 5 EUGRIE Y

receivables BIEEE 9,336 283
(Gain) loss on disposal of property, plant and HEDE - BENKEG

equipment EE 2 (as) B8 (508) 632
Payments under operating leases in respect of B £t MIEF 7 484

land and buildings HERIE 11,072 7,381
Staff costs (excluding directors’ and chief ETRAN(TBEEER

executive’s emoluments) (Note 14) THBEME) (HiE14) 104,865 90,397
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11.INCOME TAX

126

PRC Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT”)

REEEMER ([ BEMSEHR])

1. FiB8 %

2014
—g-mf

2013
—E—=F
HK$’000
T

HK$’000
TERT

- current — 7R R 261 117

— under-provision in previous years —BAEFERETT - 13
261 130

Deferred tax (Note 33) RIERE (M5E33) (177,301) (57,110)
Income tax credit FRiSBiE % (177,040) (56,980)

(i)

(i)

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of Bermuda and the British
Virgin Islands (the “BVI”), the Group is not subject to any income

tax in Bermuda and the BVI.

No provisions for Hong Kong Profits Tax have been made for
subsidiaries established in Hong Kong as these subsidiaries did
not have any assessable profits subject to Hong Kong Profits Tax

during both years.

Profits of the subsidiaries established in the PRC are subject to
PRC EIT.

Under the Law of the PRC on EIT (the “EIT Law”) and

Implementation Regulation of EIT Law, the tax rate of the PRC

subsidiaries was 25% for both years.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e P BmRME

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE—Z—PF+—-A=+—HILFE

11.INCOME TAX (CONTINUED)

The income tax credit for the year can be reconciled to the loss before

taxation per the consolidated statement of profit or loss as follows:

1. Fr 8% (&)

HERINT ¢

FRMGEHEARHRGEBER ZBRATER

2014
—E-IF
HK$000 HK$'000
FTHERT FHET
Loss before taxation R R 18 (1,100,171) (4,203,178)
Tax credit at rates applicable to loss in the EBEBREEREEEA
jurisdictions concerned PR E 2 BIHEE R (253,949) (689,013)
Tax effect of income not subject to tax BERBRAZRIETE (52,538) (46,067)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for AR HMBRAT 2 BB E
tax purpose 126,932 677,564
Tax effect of tax losses and deductible ANFERR < B IE S 18 NPT N A
temporary differences not recognised TR ERE IR E 235115 523
Under-provision in previous years BAEFEREBTE = 13
Income tax credit for the year FREHER (177,040) (56,980)

12. DIVIDENDS

No dividend was paid or proposed during both years ended 31

December 2014 and 2013, nor has any dividend been proposed since

the end of the reporting period.

12.RE

BHE_Z-—NOMFr_FT—=F+=-_A=+—
AIEMEFETEDRSERZE @ BRE

HRR AR IR SR S (R AR, o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P BwRME

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE—Z—PUFE+—-A=+—HILFE

13.LOSS PER SHARE 13.BREE

REFARTEA AR TRER R EEE
BN T BB -

The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share attributable to

the owners of the Company for the year is based on the following data:

2014
—E-mE

HK$’000
THET

&8
AREHER ARG FEER

Loss
Loss for the year attributable to the owners

of the Company (452,508) (3,947,960)

2014
—ZE-mF
Number of shares SR ¢E
Weighted average number of ordinary shares R ESRERNEE
for the purpose of basic loss per share LB NiE TR & 3,711,018,433  2,152,917,616
The computation of diluted loss per share does not assume the MR ARABMBRERER R AT ERELERE
conversion of the convertible loan notes and the conversion of BYRFREERD W ETREEEIER

convertible preference shares since their exercise would result in a WEBRZLBIIRREREE R ATEREL

128

decrease in loss per share.

The basic and diluted loss per share are the same.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P BmRME

For the year ended 31 December 2014 &= —Z—F+_-_A=+—HILFE

14.STAFF COSTS (EXCLUDING DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVE’S EMOLUMENTS)

BEIRA(TERESERITR

HEW)

2014 2013

—E—MEF —T =4

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHxT FHT

Wages and salaries TERFG® 84,532 75,492
Retirement benefit scheme contributions ROREF B LR 20,333 14,905
104,865 90,397

The subsidiaries in Hong Kong operate the MPF Scheme which are
available to qualified employees. The assets of the scheme are held
separately from those of the subsidiaries in independently administered
funds. Monthly contributions made by the subsidiaries are calculated
based on certain percentages of the applicable payroll costs or fixed

sums as stipulated under the relevant requirements, as appropriate.

Pursuant to the regulations of the relevant authorities in the PRC,
the subsidiaries of the Group in the PRC participate in respective
government retirement benefit scheme (the “Scheme”) whereby the
subsidiaries are required to contribute to the Scheme to fund the
retirement benefits of the eligible employees. Monthly contributions
made to the Scheme are calculated based on certain percentages
of the applicable payroll costs as stipulated under the requirements
in the PRC. The relevant authorities of the PRC are responsible for
the entire pension obligations payable to the retired employees. The
only obligation of the Group with respect to the Scheme is to pay the

ongoing required contributions under the Scheme.

The retirement benefit scheme contributions represent gross
contributions by the Group to the Scheme operated by the relevant

authorities of the PRC and the MPF Scheme operated in Hong Kong.

AEEFTEWMBRRARARESRTE - #E
AREERSM - qu%U/éfEEﬁWELETZﬁE
D BBYERESRA - WEAREA
RERFMRAX 2B T B L HREIZER
HERTAZ BEE KB EARRIBEAME)

RETEERERZRD - NEE T EME
REAEZMBBBITRABH S (BB
2]) > REERER 2 RAKBHNRE ETE
K - BRI B2 AIZh B R EEA
MR cETEALEE - FRERERE
ARERKEENZHMERS - AEEHE
Bt & 2 —BEERTESN AR E 24

e
A °©

BRAREFFTEERRIEAERRNTREEAER
R BB ERBBHB A AR 28R
SEh |t BT o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P BwRME

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZ —ZE—NFE+ A =+—HIFEE
15.DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS

(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the nine (2013: ten)

15,55 - THRABRSREEA
SiE
() EBRTHEARME
ERREAAE(ZE—=4: +8)%
ERARERIMEWT :

directors and the chief executive were as follows:

BE-_Z-NFE+-A=+—-BLFE

For the year ended 31 December 2014

130

Salaries, Retirement
allowances benefit
and other scheme
benefits  contributions
e 2HEK RAEF
ik Hitn @ Fl sTEIfR ot
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
Tz TR TET TET
Executive directors HTES
Mr. Zhang Sanhuo (“Mr. Zhang”) R=ERE(REE] - 1,560 17 1,577
Mr. Tse Michael Nam (“Mr. Tse”) SEERAE(HEE]) - 300 15 315
Mr. Zhang Xu RIBEA
(resigned on 6 October 2014) (R=Z—ME+ANHET) - 303 - 303
Mr. Huang Bogi HEEEE
(appointed on 6 October 2014) (R=F—WmE+AKRA
BZf) - 369 5 374
Non-executive director FYTES
Mr. Zou Cheng Jian FrfprE 168 - - 168
Independent non-executive directors ~ BUFHTES
Mr. Lim Yew Kong, John Lim Yew Kong, John7& 4
(resigned on 1 April 2014) (R=Z—MENA—AEHT) 38 - - 38
Mr. Leung Po Wing, RELE s, o
Bowen Joseph GBs, JP 164 - - 164
Mr. Zhou Chunsheng BEELE 168 - - 168
Ms. Leung Yin Fai REBRL
(appointed on 1 April 2014) (R=ZF—mFmA—A
BZE) 126 - - 126
664 2,532 37 3,233
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P BmRME

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE—Z—PF+—-A=+—HILFE
15.DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND SENIOR 15.F % - (THABNREHREE A

MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED) Ef<(E)
(@) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments () EBERITHARME (&)
(continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2013 HE-T=§+t-A=T—-HLEFE
Salaries, REUENE
allowances benefit
and other scheme
Fees benefits  contributions Total
e 2K BRINER
ik Hitfafl BE 5 k]
HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T THT ;
Executive directors HTES
Mr. Zhang REAE
(appointed on 7 June 2013) (R=ZF—=F,~AtR
EZAE) - 884 9 893
Mr. Tse s - 2,068 15 2,083
Mr. Zhang Xu wIBSAE
(appointed on 7 June 2013) (R=Z—=%F,A+tH
EZf) - 224 - 224
Mr. Yang Xiaogi G E A
(resigned on 14 June 2013) (R=ZF—=F,A1+EA
BT - 426 - 426
Non-executive director FHTES
Mr. Zou Cheng Jian PrpEAE
(appointed on 7 June 2013) (R=F—=F"A+tH
BZHE) 97 - - 97
Mr. Wu Chi Chiu S LA
(resigned on 16 May 2013) (R=F—=FHA1+~A
BHE) 102 - - 102

Independent non-executive directors ~ BuEHTES

Mr. Lim Yew Kong, John Lim Yew Kong, JohnZt £ 150 - - 150
Mr. Leung Po Wing, Bowen Joseph as, s~ & 584 HcBs, up 150 - - 150
Mr. Zhou Chunsheng BEERE
(appointed on 14 June 2013) (R=2—=FAtHA
EZAE) 92 - - 92
Mr. Mak Ping Leung BRREE
(resigned on 14 June 2013) (R=—Z—=%,A1+mA
BHE) 68 - - 68
659 3,602 24 4,285
No directors of the Company waived or agreed to waive any BE-_ET-—"NEER-_ZF—=F+=A4
emoluments during the two years ended 31 December 2014 and =+—HIIMEEE  AAFHEES
2018. WEXRBREEMHE o
Mr. Tse was also the chief executive of the Company until 6 June MEENMARNABTHREH BHEE-Z
20183 and replaced by Mr. Zhang from 7 June 2013 and their —=FRNANH MAZZE—=F/XH
emoluments disclosed above included services rendered by them +HEARREAES  LRXREEOEHES
as the chief executive. BIEKEEERTTRABEREREUEN
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e P BwRME

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE—Z—PUFE+—-A=+—HILFE

15.DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b) Senior management’s emoluments
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the Group,
two (2013: two) were directors (including the chief executive) of
the Company whose emoluments are set out above. For the year
ended 31 December 2014, the emoluments of the remaining three
(2013: three) highest paid individuals, which are individually below
HK$1,000,000 were as follows:

15.5% - THABRSREEA

EM< (&)

(b) SREEAEMS
REBRESERTMATBRERRAM
Z(ZE—=F MR EE(RETR
BE)  BEZMEHER EX - BEZT
—ME+-—A=+—BLFE  H&H=
FZ(ZE—=F  ZR)BaFMHALZ
B < (#91K 741,000,000 L) 20T

2014 2013

—ZT-F T

HK$’000 HK$’'000

FHxT FT

Salaries, allowances and other benefits e o EBREAMEF 1,639 1,628
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RIREFIFHEIER 31 22
1,670 1,650

(C) No emoluments have been paid by the Group to any directors,
the chief executive or the five highest paid individuals as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation
for loss of the office during the two years ended 31 December
2014 and 2013.

132 NORTH ASIA RESOURCES HOLDINGS LIMITED e it 25 & RiZ R B R A 7

() z—z—mER-_Z—=5+—-7
=+—HIEMEFE - NEBWEFE
ES -  THARKAAERH AL
SME - ARSI EMAREERIER
INAZ B 2 5B BRI E -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P BmRME

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE T —WNF+_A=+—HILFE
16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16. W% - MERR%E

Furniture,

fixtures
Mining  Construction Leasehold  and office Motor  Plants and
structure inprogress  Buildings improvements  equipment vehicles machineries

F

EE&ER
RREZN  ARIE BF HENERE BLOERR "E  HRERRE &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TAT TAL TET TAL TET TAL AL TAL
cosT A
At1 January 2013 W=E-=4-A—-H 13,596 51,166 - 3,201 18,595 16,284 44,121 146,963
Additions NE - 320,402 - = 2,675 798 1,182 325,057
Acquisition of subsidiaries WERBAR 192,342 356,229 88,573 = 6,519 13,525 67,313 724,501
Disposal of subsidiaries HEHBAR (13,029) (44,955) = = (11,121) (14,683) (43,853)  (127,641)
Disposals e - - - - - - (864) (864)
Exchange realignment B A% - - - 2 25 14 - 4
At 31 December 2013 RZE-=%+_f
=+-A 192,909 682,842 88,573 3,203 16,693 16,938 67,899 1,068,057
Additions RE = 384,804 = = 813 228 5,089 390,934
Acquisition of assets through FRNENBAR
acquisition of a subsidiary WEEE - - - - - 550 - 550
Disposals LE - - - - - (725) = (725)
Exchange realignment R A% 5,495 19,510 2,531 ) 326 443 1,040 30,337
At 31 December 2014 RZE-IE
t-A=1-H 198,404 1,087,156 91,104 3,295 17,832 16,434 74928 1,489,153

ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION ~ ERFERHE
AND IMPAIRMENT

At 1 January 2013 W-Z£-=%-f-H 2,330 = = 2,915 17,032 5,684 15,961 43,922
Provided for the year ERNRE 14,996 = 5,742 286 1,240 3,060 3,552 28,876
Impairment recognised for ERERRAE
the year - 21,172 - - - - - 21172
Eliminated on disposals of HENBA AR
subsidiaries (2,330) - - - (9,921) (4193 (15728  (32172)
Eliminated on disposals HERLHE - - - - - - (232) (232)
Exchange realignment A% - - - 2 44 36 - 82
At 31 December 2013 RZE-=&
+-A=t-H 14,996 21,172 5,742 3,203 8,395 4,587 3,553 61,648
Provided for the year EREE 26,559 = 10,171 = 1,793 2,538 16,789 57,850
Impairment recognised for EMERRAE
the year = 74,776 - - - - - 74,776
Eliminated on disposals HERYH = = - - - (19) - (19)
Exchange realignment ERAE 428 604 164 2 90 119 9 1,696
At 31 December 2014 i e i:3
+-A=t-H 41,983 96,552 16,077 3,295 10,278 7,231 20,441 195,857
CARRYING VALUES RAE
At 31 December 2014 R=ZE-MEF
+-A=1-H 156,421 990,604 75,027 = 7,554 9,203 54,487 1,293,296
At 31 December 2013 W=%-=
+-A=1+-H 177,913 661,670 82,831 - 8,298 11,351 64,346 1,006,409
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P BwRME

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE—Z—PUFE+—-A=+—HILFE

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED) 16. ¥1% - BB K=& (&)

The above items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a U EYWE  BMERREEB ULNELSEEIEUT
straight-line basis at the following rates per annum: FRAENE -
Mining structure 10% RIEEEY 10%
Leasehold improvements 33'/3% or over the lease terms, THEWMEEE 33'/:% IR TR &
whichever is shorter (AESEEHE AE)
Furniture, fixtures and office  20% to 33'/s% Ff - BEEENR  20%E33'/:%
equipment WAERE
Motor vehicles 33'3% b 33"/5%
Plants and machineries 10% B & 10%
Buildings 10% or over the lease terms, whichever =2 10% kA E - LARR
is shorter RERAE
During the two years ended 31 December 2014 and 2013, the Group RBEZE_ZT-—NFER-_ZT—=F1+2A
had continuously suffered loss from the mining operation. The directors =+ —HIEREFE  AEEZHBEBRE
of the Company conducted a review of the Group’s property, plant BEIRKLEEL - ARAEZEEZAEE
and equipment and determined that a number of those assets were Y% - BERSRE  WERZBEEDRE -
impaired.
Particulars regarding impairment loss recognised are disclosed in BRI E BB N FES4 1 5 -
Note 34.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P BmRME

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE—Z—PF+—-A=+—HILFE

17. MINING RIGHTS 17. BRUERE
HK$'000
FHBT
COST [5%:S
At 1 January 2013 MN-_E—=%—H—H 1,553,928
Acquired from acquisition of subsidiaries WHEH B A RIS 12,000,601
Eliminated on disposal of subsidiaries HEHTB AR LS (1,553,928)
At 31 December 2013 and 1 January 2014 R-ZE—=F+-A=+—HEK
—F—WmNFE—A—H 12,000,601
Exchange realignment R 342,602
At 31 December 2014 R-E—WNF+=-A=+—H 12,343,203
AMORTISATION AND IMPAIRMENT B RRE
At 1 January 2013 R-ZE—=F—H—H 1,112,714
Impairment loss recognised for the year FAB R EEIE 228,439
Eliminated on disposal of subsidiaries H BB N B R S 8 (1,112,714)
At 31 December 2013 and 1 January 2014 RZEBE—=F+_A=1+—HK
—E-mFE—H—H 228,439
Impairment loss recognised for the year FABERBEEE 709,204
Exchange realignment PEE A% 6,522
At 31 December 2014 RZZE—WE+=_A=+—H 944,165
CARRYING VALUES BREE
At 31 December 2014 RZE—WNF+=—_A=+—H 11,399,038
At 31 December 2013 RZZE—=F+=A=+—H 11,772,162
In 2018, the Group acquired five mining licenses by acquisition R-TE—=F  AEEFBWENBRFE
of subsidiaries for exploration and mining of coal in the PRC. The BRMOEEFAIE - AR EBE RS
five mining licenses in relation to the coal mines will expire from 25 %o WhHDEEREAEZRETFIFEER S
December 2015 to 26 December 2017 and subject to renewal. In the E—RAF+_A-—+tHRHE_ZT—+tF+=
view of the directors of the Company, the Group will be able to renew BZ+/"BEREEIE - WEEH - ARAE
the mining licenses in relation to the coal mines with the relevant ERE - ANE B AT LARRK A AN 7 48 B8 B
government authority continuously at insignificant cost. WIS E A GRS A BB -
Particulars regarding impairment loss recognised are disclosed in BEHCERREREZFIERM 41K E -
Note 34.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P BwRME

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE—Z—PUFE+—-A=+—HILFE

18. GOODWILL 18. &
HK$'000
FHET
COST A
At 1 January 2013 R-_E—=%—H—H 2,666,539
Acquired from acquisition of subsidiaries WM B A RIS 3,661,555
Eliminated on disposal of subsidiaries HEHT B A ARS8 (2,653,767)
At 31 December 2013, 1 January 2014 and R-ZE—=%+_"A=+—H  _Z—WUF
31 December 2014 —A—BR-_ZT-—NFE+_A=+—H 3,674,327
IMPAIRMENT RE
At 1 January 2013 MN-_E—=%—H—H 2,666,539
Impairment loss recognised in the year FREERRERE 3,661,555
Eliminated on disposal of subsidiaries B A BR S 8 (2,653,767)
At 31 December 2013, 1 January 2014 and RZE—=F+-_A=+—H  —_ZF—EF
31 December 2014 —A—BRZZE—WF+=A=+—H 3,674,327
CARRYING VALUES EREE
At 31 December 2013, 1 January 2014 and R-E—=F+—_A=+—H —Z—WF
31 December 2014 —A—BRZZT—NFE+=-A=1+—H =
Goodwill of HK$2,653,767,000 and HK$12,772,000 were allocated to f&182,653,767,0007% Jt & 12,772,000 7T
mining operation segment and banking and finance systems integration CHEERE DR OB TEES S REBTERESRE
services and software solutions segment respectively. The respective ESERRSREERRARESEZ - BER
goodwill was fully impaired as at 1 January 2013. The subsidiaries BR-ZT—=F—F—HEBERME - BB
attributing the goodwill of the mining operation was disposed of in BEEEEEMZNBRARIER-E—=F
2013. For further details, please refer to Note 37. HE - BT SIS - F2HMEST7 -
The goodwill of HK$3,661,555,000 arising from acquisition of the RZE—=FURBENBRAAELAZZZ
subsidiary during 2013 was allocated to the mining operation segment 3,661,555,000/8 L2 DB 2 ERED 20 - AW
and was fully impaired as 31 December 2013 and 2014. R =FRZENFF+_A=F+—H%
HURME °
Please refer to Note 34 for particulars regarding impairment testing of BERABEZAENRFAE B2 E34 -
goodwill.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P BmRME

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE—Z—PF+—-A=+—HILFE

19.INVENTORIES 19. 78
2014 2013
—E-NF —TE—=4F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FE T FHBT
Information technology products held for BIEEE 2 EMBHREMR
resale, at cost B AT 1,880 1,291
20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 20. E 5 R H b B FRIE
2014 2013
—E-NF —TE—=4F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FE T FHBT
Trade receivables E 5 W RIE 46,724 57,884
Less: Allowance for impairment of B B SRR ARG
trade receivables (22,744) (13,211)
23,980 44,673
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables TERTRIA « 1=2e R H M EYGRIE 58,797 123,436
Total trade and other receivables B 5 R E M EWGRIE AT 82,777 168,109
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P BwRME

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE—Z—PUFE+—-A=+—HILFE
20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

138

The Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.

The Group normally grants to its customers credit periods ranging

from 30 days to 180 days which are subject to periodic review by

management.

(@)

(b)

The ageing analysis of the trade receivables, net of impairment
losses recognised, based on the invoice dates which approximated

the respective revenue recognition dates at the end of the reporting

period was as follows:

20. B 5 & H fb fE R E (4])
AR B B A A o

REE-—RETEFPIOREIBORTEZRE
B8 W EREEESERE -

(@) RIMEHKR - MO RBREBRRR
SRTH BN RERBE YRR )
A HEZBESRYEREONIAT -

2014 2013

—E—MEF —zT—=
HK$°000 HK$'000
THET FHTT
Within 90 days 90K A 4,528 31,471
91 days to 180 days 91 RE180K 5,518 5,009
181 days to 365 days 181 RE365K 6,564 2,623
Over 365 days 365 KA E 7,370 5,670
23,980 44,673

The movements in provision for impairment losses of trade

receivables were as follows:

(o) BIZRUSHREBEREEZZEHNT

2014 2013

—E-mE —E=F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FHET

At 1 January w—HA—AH 13,211 13,068
Impairment loss recognised during the year FRABRERRERESE 9,336 283
Reversal during the year F R B[O - (140)
Exchange realignment T 5, B 197 -
At 31 December R+-—A=+—H 22,744 13,211
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e

BTSRRI EE

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE—Z—PF+—-A=+—HILFE
20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

()

At the end of the reporting period, the analysis of trade receivables

that were past due but not impaired are as follows:

20. B 5 R H i U oE ()

© MEHKR DAMERREZIEZER
HRIEDITIMT

Past due but not impaired

Neither BB ERRE
past

due nor less than 91 to 181 to 1to
Total impaired 90 days 180 days 365 days 2 years

EXIEED DR 9% IES
ot RRE LIIFN 180K 365K 182
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T  TEr 0 TET TET TET THR
31 December 2014 —ZT-mE+ZA=1+—A 23,980 10,046 3,787 6,392 2,827 978
31 December 2013 “Z-=5+ZA=1—H 44,673 36,480 1,538 985 4,949 721

Trade receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to
a wide range of customers for whom there was no recent history of

default. The Group does not hold any collateral over the balances.

Trade receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a
number of independent customers that have a good track record
with the Group. Based on past experience, management believes
that no impairment allowance is necessary in respect of these
balances as there has not been a significant change in credit

quality and the balances are still considered fully recoverable.

At 31 December 2014, included in the impairment loss are
individual impaired trade receivables with an aggregate balance of
approximately HK$22,744,000 (2013: HK$13,211,000) which have
been in severe financial difficulties and the directors concluded
the collection possibilities are remote. During the year ended 31
December 2013, other receivables of HK$127,000 (2014: nil)
which were lost contact with the Group were individually written off

and recognised in consolidated statement of profit or loss.

RBBIFARIEZ B 5 U IR 8 2 25T
VERFLHCEFER - AEELTFE
HE R AR RS -

ERMERREZE S EYGHRIAE—#EA
SEERFRZGUHIBITFAY - RIE
PELR BANEEERTESAE AL
BB/ E2KE - HEEERSBE]
ZEEREHRERE - AEELEREZ
SR TR o

R-ZZE—MFE+-A=+—H HREEER
FERCREERZEKRFR - SHRAst0E
22,744,000 L (=F — =4 © 13,211,000
BIT)  EBABABRENR  REERRK
BRENKESEN BE_T—=F1+_4
=+ —BLIEFE - EtEKRIE127,0008
T(ZE—TF  E)2BEHBARREELE
B ZRHERIUME  YRGeEER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e P BwRME

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE—Z—PUFE+—-A=+—HILFE
21.AMOUNTS DUE FROM (TO) RELATED COMPANIES

The amount due from a related company is unsecured, non-interest

bearing and repayable on demand.

Included in amount due to related companies as at 31 December 2014
is an amount of HK$20,000,000 (2013: nil) which is unsecured, carries
interest at 8.0% per annum and repayable on demand. The remaining
balance is unsecured, non-interest bearing and repayable on demand.

The related companies are wholly owned by a director of the Company.

22. AMOUNT DUE FROM A DIRECTOR

The amount is unsecured, non-interest bearing and repayable on
demand. The maximum amount outstanding for amount due from
a director during the year is approximately HK$66,000 (2013:
HK$63,000).

23. BANK BALANCES AND CASH

At the end of the reporting period, about 62% (2013: 78%) of bank
balances and cash was denominated in RMB. RMB is not a freely

convertible currency.

The Group’s bank balances and cash denominated in currencies other
than functional currencies of the relevant group entities are set out as

follows:

us$

ET

HK$ BT

21. B (3) BBE A RFKE
RN RR S 2

BE -

AR REER  REREER

R-ZTE—NE+-_A=+—8  Ef@EE
A &) 3} 18 420,000,000 L (Z 2 — = F :
) REER  RFEFERLOENEREAR
EREER - AEEER - 2L RARENRE
B-BEARARRR—REEREHS -

22. B —REERE

ZEFBERT LB RARERIBEE -
ERNRR—BEEFBzESAKRESELD
566,000 7L (= —=4F : 63,000/%7T) °

il

23.BITERREE
RBERR @ SRITERLIBEFH62%(=F
—=F 78%)AAREE -  AREIWIES
R -

AEBULIFEBERRRADEEE 2 G
FHEZSRITESRRIRSHIIT

2014 2013
—E-mF —F—=
HK$’000 HK$’'000
THERT FHET
5,216 18,842
9,965 364

Bank balances carry interest at market rates ranging from 0.01% to
0.36% (2013: 0.01% to 0.36%) per annum.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P BmRME

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE—Z—PF+—-A=+—HILFE

24. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 24. B Kk HAFEAKIE
2014 2013
—ZE—MF —E—=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FE T FHBT
Trade payables B SR E

— third parties —%=5 6,515 14,521
— a non-controlling interest holder ——EZIERESFEA 325 325
6,840 14,846
Receipts in advance TEUWRIE 13,743 1,388
Accrued staff costs FEEFB IAA 52,690 33,378
Other taxes payable HAth FE AR I8 18,912 11,962
Accrued interests FEETHIE 3,051 1,519
Considerations for acquisition of subsidiaries BB A Rl 2 RE 400,990 374,977

Payables for construction works and purchase of 28T 2 & B A 5% 18 fE (< 208
machineries 280,126 224,816
Accrued expenses and other payables FERTE A R E M e RO 45,208 47,245
821,560 710,131

The ageing analysis of the trade payables based on the invoiced dates MEKR REXZAHAE2EFHEMNRK
at the end of the reporting period was as follows: HERERDTAT :

2014
—E-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx FHBT
Within 90 days 90AN 400 1,155
91 days to 180 days 91 RE 180K 2,585 8,757
181 days to 365 days 181 KRE365K 3,183 3,491
Over 365 days 365K A 672 1,443
6,840 14,846
The average credit period on purchases of goods is 90 days. The BEEmMTFHREHRAIOKR - AEEE
Group has financial risk management policies in place to ensure that all B SRR EREBR - BREIPENNIE
payables are settled within the credit timeframe. HRERARHAR A 4EE ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P BwRME

For the year ended 31 December 2014 &z — =

—WE+ZA=+—HALFE

25. PAYABLES FOR MINERAL RESOURCES COMPENSATION 25. B BEE RAEEE

26.

142

FEES

HK$’000

FET

At 1 January 2013 RZTE—=F— -
Acquired from acquisition of subsidiaries ﬁfuﬁlﬁ%ﬁﬁ BA Tﬁﬁ 142,168
At 31 December 2013 and 1 January 2014 R-ZE—=F+-A=+—HK
—E—mFE—H—H 142,168
Amount paid during the year FRENRIE (142,168)
At 31 December 2014 RZZE—WE+=—A=+—H =
In accordance with the relevant regulations in the PRC, the Group REFEERER  AEBAELZHBAER

is required to pay mineral resources compensation fees to Shanxi
government at a pre-agreed rate of raw coal reserve by reference to the

grade of underlying mine reserves and coal content.

AMOUNT DUE TO A NON-CONTROLLING INTEREST
HOLDER

As at 31 December 2014, the current amount due to a non-
controlling interest holder amounting to HK$1,793,016,000 (2013:
HK$246,914,000) is unsecured, bears interest at variable rates ranging
from 6.72% to 11.76% per annum and is repayable within twelve
months from the end of the reporting period. The amount is entrusted
loans provided by a non-controlling interest holder of a subsidiary

through banks.

As at 31 December 2014, the non-current amount due to a non-
controlling interest holder amounting to HK$1,730,794,000 (2013:
HK$2,598,765,000) is unsecured, bears interest at variable rates
ranging from 6.60% to 11.76% per annum. The amount is entrusted
loans provided by a non-controlling interest holder of a subsidiary
through banks. The maturities of the balance are ranging from 29
January 2016 to 12 March 2017 and accordingly, the balance is

classified under non-current liabilities.
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26.
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BN —BFERERFEALZ
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P BmRME

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE—Z—PF+—-A=+—HILFE

27.

28.

OTHER BORROWINGS

As at 31 December 2014, the balance of HK$32,000,000 (2013:
HK$32,000,000) represents unsecured borrowing, which carried
interest at 6% per annum from an independent third party wholly
repayable within one year. Moreover, the balance of approximately
HK$5,755,000 (2013: HK$5,755,000) represents unsecured borrowing
which is non-interest bearing and repayable on demand from a former

subsidiary of the Company.

CONVERTIBLE LOAN NOTES
2010 Convertible Loan Notes A

On 14 September 2010, the Company issued convertible loan notes A
which had a maturity date on 14 September 2013 with an aggregate
principal amount of US$30,000,000 (the “2010 Convertible Loan Notes
A”). The convertible loan notes can be converted up to an aggregate
of 136,764,706 ordinary shares at HK$0.01 each. The notes were
denominated in US$ and entitled the holder to convert them into
ordinary shares of the Company at any time from (and including) the
date which is three months after the issue date up to ten business
days prior to the maturity date. The effective interest rate of the liability
component is 26.51% per annum. None of the 2010 Convertible Loan
Notes A was converted into ordinary shares of the Company during
both years ended 31 December 2014 and 2013.

At the issue date, the 2010 Convertible Loan Notes A were bifurcated
into a liability component and an equity component. The equity
component is presented in equity under the heading of “Convertible

bonds reserve” on initial recognition.

27.

28.

Hie &

RZZE—WNF+_A=+—8  #&&A
32,000,000/ 7t ( == — =4 : 32,000,000
BT EERES - REFEEE - /B
BUE=ZFETAEE AR —FREHE
B oo b - B8R R H5,755,0008 L (=%
—=% : 57550008 ) MIEHEE - BR
B RBRANRABRMEREIREREE -

JRRERER

AR—_Z-ZEFTRREREE

RZZE—ZFAATMA  AARETEASE
#3878 /330,000,000 7T 2 AJE AT R B TR
BAE-_ZT—TFARRERZE])  H
HBMAA-—Z—=FAA+WA - IRKRE
REBAIRRAHRS S £136,764,706 R &
REEO.ONB T Lk - REFRBUAFET
FHE BT AAEMNRETABER=E
AZR(BEZR)BREIHANHEAEER
IEEARE - BERE S EIR AR AR AR L AR o
BEHBDZERFHNEAR2651E - BHE=-ZT
—OER=T—=F+=-A=+—HItWEA
FE - WEAE_T-TEABRBRERZER
BRBARBEBAR -

NETHHY  ARCZT-—ZFBRRERER
DRABEMORERERD - HRBONER
ERHNEDR 25 A [ A RBRESRFEE] -
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28.CONVERTIBLE LOAN NOTES (CONTINUED)

144

2010 Convertible Loan Notes A (continued)

Subsequent to the issue date, the Company and the subscriber of the
2010 Convertible Loan Notes A entered into a supplemental agreement
on 29 October 2010 (“Supplemental Agreement A”) to amend the
adjustment mechanism on the conversion price of 2010 Convertible
Loan Notes A. In accordance with the Supplemental Agreement A, the
conversion price of 2010 Convertible Loan Notes A will be adjusted
to the average closing price of one share during the month in which
the financial year-end day of the Company falls in any calendar year,
plus a premium of 15% if such price is lower than the conversion
price in force. According to the Supplemental Agreement A and the
announcement dated 3 January 2011, the conversion price was
adjusted to HK$1.30 per share. The Supplemental Agreement A was
approved by the shareholders at the special general meeting held on 18
April 2011 and approved by the Stock Exchange on the same day. Due
to the amendment of terms, the number of shares convertible by 2010
Convertible Loan Notes A is no longer fixed, the 2010 Convertible Loan
Notes A after amendment contained a derivative component in addition

to the liability component.

According to the Supplemental Agreement A, the conversion price of
2010 Convertible Loan Notes A was adjusted to HK$0.27 per share
on 3 January 2012. The details of the adjustment were set out in the
Company’s announcement dated 3 January 2012. In the event that the
2010 Convertible Loan Notes A are fully converted, a total number of

861,111,111 new ordinary shares will be issued.

One of the undertakings under the relevant subscription agreements
(the “Subscription Agreements”) in respect of the issue of the 2010
Convertible Loan Notes A requires Mr. King Jun Chih Joseph (“Mr.
King”) and Mr. Chan Kwan Hung (“Mr. Chan”) to remain as executive
directors of the Company, so long as the subscribers hold any
outstanding amount of the 2010 Convertible Loan Notes A prior to 31
December 2014.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P BmRME

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE—Z—PF+—-A=+—HILFE

28.CONVERTIBLE LOAN NOTES (CONTINUED) 28. AR EMRRE (&)

2010 Convertible Loan Notes A (continued)

Both Mr. King and Mr. Chan resigned from the directorship of the
Company on 27 January 2011 (the “Resignation”) and caused a breach
of covenants of 2010 Convertible Loan Notes A. Thus, it was alleged
by the subscribers that the Resignation had constituted a breach of the
Subscription Agreements and an event of default under the terms and
conditions (the “Conditions”) of the 2010 Convertible Loan Notes A,
which would entitle the subscribers to give notice to the Company that
each of the 2010 Convertible Loan Notes A is due and payable at its
principal amount. In addition, it was further alleged by the subscribers
that the resignation of Mr. King had also constituted a change of control
event as defined in the Conditions, which would entitle the subscribers
to require the Company to redeem all or some of 2010 Convertible Loan

Notes A on demand.

As stated in the Company’s announcement dated 15 December 2011,
the Company had received redemption letters from the subscriber of
2010 Convertible Loan Notes A (“Bond Holder A”) on 30 November
2011, requesting for the redemption of 2010 Convertible Loan Notes A

in accordance with the Conditions.

The Company and Bond Holder A had entered into a supplemental
agreement (“the Supplemental Agreement B”) in relation to the
alteration of certain terms and conditions of 2010 Convertible Loan
Notes A on 6 January 2012. The maturity date of 2010 Convertible Loan
Notes A was changed to 13 December 2012. Various terms regarding
increased charge on convertible preference shares and ordinary shares,
amendment on redemption upon change of control and additional
terms on redemption as a result of a major assets acquisition and/or
disposal and guaranteed return were altered in accordance with the
Supplementary Agreement B. Details of the aforesaid alterations are set
out in the Company’s circular dated 8 February 2012. Pursuant to the
resolution passed in a special general meeting on 23 February 2012,

the alterations were approved by the shareholders.
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PRAREZIEHIREB =M - I TREAER
ERANFEERBELAEREBOAR T —
ZEUBRRERFR -

BEARRBAE=ZT——F+=-_A+ARABZ
Afffrt  ARFR—_ZE——F+—A=+
HEEAE_T—TFARRERERREA
([MBEHFEAAD ZEBR R - ZRIBEE
HEENAE-_T-—TFEARRERZIRE -

RAREEFIHFEAAR T —Z_F—AXH
A ((HREH#EBl)  ABFREE
BAE T —THEABRRERERE THRIR
Gt - AT —ZFAIRRERERE 2 5IH
BAa—ZT——+_A+=H - @&
BREERREBRZ HIE N2 ZBEER - #
HEEHEEABRKRG 2B REERE
EUEE R ok AR 7% B 3R i B AR 1 2
FIMERERBH T BB T LAMER - EilE
HABHRARRBRRA=ZTE—Z—F AN
BBk BE-_"ZT——&-_A-_+=AR
BREFFIASEBIRER - FHBHER
ARERBLA ©

ANNUAL REPORT 2014 » 2014 3 145



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P BwRME

For the year ended 31 December 2014 &z — =

. CONVERTIBLE LOAN NOTES (CONTINUED)

28

146
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2010 Convertible Loan Notes A (continued)

As explained in the Company’s announcement dated 8 October
2012 and circular dated 25 March 2013, the Group entered into
several contracts to acquire the entire equity interests in Lexing (the
“Acquisition”) and to dispose of entire equity interests in North Asia
Resources Group Limited (“NARG”) and Good Loyal Group Limited
(*GLG") (NARG and GLG and their subsidiaries collectively referred to
as the “Disposal Group”) and the sum of the outstanding loans from the
Disposal Group to the Group (the “Sale Loans”) (the “Disposal”) on 7
June 2013.

Moreover, on 6 September 2012, the Company and the Bond Holder A
entered into the subscription agreement (the “Subscription Agreement
A”) in which the Company agreed to allot and issue ordinary shares (the
“Subscription Ordinary Shares”) and convertible preference shares (the
“Subscription CPS”) at HK$0.17 per Subscription Ordinary Share and
Subscription CPS to the Bond Holder A (the “Subscription”).

The consideration of the Subscription that is payable by Bond Holder A
to the Company shall be satisfied by setting off against the aggregate
of (@) US$15,000,000 principal amount of the 2010 Convertible Loan
Notes A (the “Set-Off Convertible Loan Notes”) and (b) the difference
between (i) an amount that would yield the internal return rate of 18%
calculated on the Set-Off Convertible Loan Notes from the issue
date of the 2010 Convertible Loan Notes A up to and including the
date of completion of the Subscription (such amount shall take into
account of any interest (other than default interest) previously paid
with respect to the Set-Off Convertible Loan Notes, and (i) interest on
the Set-Off Convertible Loan Notes accrued from the date of the last
interest payment (i.e. 14 March 2012) up to and including the date of

completion of the Subscription at the rate of 8% per annum.
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28.CONVERTIBLE LOAN NOTES (CONTINUED)

2010 Convertible Loan Notes A (continued)

Further, on 6 September 2012, the Company, Bond Holder A and City
Bloom Limited (“City Bloom”), an independent third party to the Group
and the vendor of Lexing, entered into a supplemental agreement (the
“Supplemental Agreement C”) to amend terms and conditions of the
non-capitalised portion of the 2010 Convertible Loan Notes A with
outstanding principal amount of US$15,000,000 immediately after
the Subscription (the “Remaining US$15M Convertible Loan Notes”)
(the “Alterations”). The principle terms of the Remaining US$15M
Convertible Loan Notes as altered was detailed in the Company’s

announcement dated 8 October 2012.

The completion of the Acquisition, Disposal, Subscription and
Alteration (collectively referred to as the “Transactions”) should take
place simultaneously. Since the Transactions were not yet completed
on 12 December 2012, the Company had entered into an extension
agreement on 14 December 2012 (the “Extension Agreement”) for the
extension of the completion date of the Transactions. The Bond Holder
A has also given an undertaking to and covenanted with the Company
that it will not request for any redemption of the whole or any part of the
2010 Convertible Loan Notes A on or before 13 March 2013 and it will
not otherwise exercise or enforce any rights under the 2010 Convertible
Loan Notes A to request the Company to redeem the whole or part of
the 2010 Convertible Loan Notes A on or before 13 March 2013.

As detailed in the Company’s announcement dated 18 March 2013, the
Company had entered into another extension agreement in relation to
the further extension of the completion date of the Transactions from
13 March 2013 to 30 June 2013. Bond Holder A has also given an
undertaking to and covenanted with the Company that it will not request
for any redemption of the whole or any part of the 2010 Convertible
Loan Notes A on or before 30 June 2013 and it will not otherwise
exercise or enforce any rights under the 2010 Convertible Loan Notes
A to request the Company to redeem the whole or part of the 2010

Convertible Loan Notes A on or before 30 June 2013.

AE—Z-ZFTHRREREE
(,%;)

N RZZE——F N ANH AR - &
%%ﬁAA&W@ﬁ@zﬁuﬂﬁﬂj'ﬁ$
$EZ@Q%EE&%£Z§EOﬂﬁﬁﬁ
mE(HRHBHEC])  UERAE-_T—F
Eﬂﬁ%%ﬁ?ﬁ?%%ﬁéKZ% A 2 A&
RERIEHN  ERERERHE I REERESHE
#15,000,000( T (A T —FHEBEEXT
ARBRERER]D (M%) - #BERZHT
—THARSEZTAIBRBRERZERZ FEKRK

2B HRARTAERR T ——F+H
NBZ R ff e
TRUWE  HE  REBREXFEGES

[R5 ])ERKET - ERRXZN_T—ZF
TZATZHRMARTK - RRARRZZT—=
FHZATMBIIHER ST B EOT
%%ﬁﬂﬁ%%ﬁﬁcﬁﬁﬁﬁAAmﬁ$
NAFI N2 REIEERR T —=F
EH+EEQZWE@ AR OAEZ
T —SFARRERER - T AETEIH
TAE - —ZF AR EREEE T & EA
A BERARFTR-_E—=F=A+=H
RZAIER 2 PRI DA T —TFABR
BRER -

BRAATIBEHAZZE—=6=A+/\BHA
fMifrat - RARGIY B —HESBHE - N
REARBRINEHKEBHBA T —=F=
ﬁ+£Eﬁ—iLE§:§—:¢ﬁﬂ:+
B o BHFFA AATMEKRA R - A
TEERR_T—=F~A= +B&Z?%
Bl 2 MREMABHAE T —TF A BRE
%F'W\@ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁiﬁ—ziﬂﬁ
REFZER TOEMERN - Z2RAQER
—E—=FXNA=TARZATERZ I
DAE_Z—TFAHRREREIR -

”i

i

ANNUAL REPORT 2014 » 2014 3 147



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P BwRME

For the year ended 31 December 2014 &z — =

—WE+ZA=+—HALFE

28.CONVERTIBLE LOAN NOTES (CONTINUED)

148

2010 Convertible Loan Notes A (continued)

The Transactions were approved by shareholders of the Company in
the extraordinary general meeting held on 12 April 2013 and completed
on 7 June 2013. As a result, upon the completion of the Subscription
on 7 June 2013, as detailed in the Company’s announcement dated
7 June 2013, the Company has issued 351,122,243 Subscription
Ordinary Shares and 547,638,384 Subscription CPS to Bond Holder
A to settle the Set-Off Convertible Loan Notes. According to the
settlement deed, an additional loan from a related company of
approximately HK$4,102,000 had been used to settle the outstanding

interests.

A loss on redemption of the Set-Off Convertible Loan Notes of
approximately HK$91,812,000 was recognised during the year ended
31 December 2013.

Upon the completion of the Alteration on 7 June 2013, the Remaining
US$15M Convertible Loan Notes will be due on 6 June 2016. The
Remaining US$15M Convertible Loan Notes can be converted up to
an aggregate of 430,555,555 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each. The
effective interest rate of the liability component is 14.68% per annum.
A gain on amendment of terms of the Remaining US$15M Convertible
Loan Notes of approximately HK$14,538,000 was recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit and loss during the year ended 31
December 2013.
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28.CONVERTIBLE LOAN NOTES (CONTINUED) 28. IR EMRFEE (&)

2013 Convertible Loan Notes A

On 7 June 2013, the Company issued convertible loan notes to the
shareholders of City Bloom with an aggregate principal amount of
approximately HK$3,548,272,000 (the “2013 Convertible Loan Notes
A”) with coupon rate equal to the rate of dividend per share from time
to time declared and paid by the Company to the shareholders as if
the 2013 Convertible Loan Notes A have been converted in full into
shares at the same time when the relevant dividend is payable to the
shareholder, in respect of the Acquisition. The 2013 Convertible Loan
Notes A had a maturity date of 6 June 2018 and can be converted up
to an aggregate of 20,872,186,547 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each at
HK$0.17 per share. The notes were denominated in HK$ and entitled
the holders to convert them into ordinary shares of the Company at any
time during the period commencing from immediately after the date of
issue of the 2013 Convertible Loan Notes A up to the maturity date. The
effective interest rate of the liability component is 9.78% per annum.

The Company may redeem whole or part of the 2013 Convertible Loan
Notes A at 100% of the outstanding principal amount together with
declared but unpaid dividend of the 2013 Convertible Loan Notes A (the
“Redemption Amount”) at any time after six months of the date of issue
of the 2013 Convertible Loan Notes A and before the maturity date with
prior notice to the shareholders of City Bloom.

The shareholders of City Bloom may at any time after one year of the
date of issue of the 2013 Convertible Loan Notes A and before the
maturity date with prior notice to request the Company to redeem
whole or part of the 2013 Convertible Loan Notes A at Redemption
Amount. On 2 September 2013 and 3 September 2013, the holders
of the 2013 Convertible Loan Note A converted HK$13,600,000 and
HK$10,200,000 of 2013 Convertible Loan note A into 80,000,000
and 60,000,000 ordinary shares of the Company respectively. On 27
January 2014, 28 March 2014, 4 April 2014, 23 June 2014, 19 August
2014, 29 September 2014, 11 November 2014 the holders of the 2013
Convertible Loan Notes A converted HK$8,500,000, HK$4,828,000,
HK$34,000,000, HK$5,100,000, HK$27,200,000, HK$93,546,000
and HK$337,412,000 into 50,000,000, 28,400,000, 200,000,000,
30,000,000, 160,000,000, 550,268,000 and 1,984,775,000 ordinary
shares of the Company respectively.

AE—_ZE-=FTBRREREE

R-ZT—=FXAtH AAAHRKEEE
BITRG HBFL) £3,548,272,000/8 70,2 A
BREFREB(ABE - =FaHRERE
BDTHEZRR  REEXHEERARQF]
TRARRSRRETZ SRZEER - HA
BT =—FRREREEDRAREIR
AR BB R BRD - AEZT
—=FURREFREBRZIHAA=ZT—N
SANAH - AIERER0ITEBTABRARS
£20,872,186,547 I & AR EI{E0.01 8 L 2
ZERBABITEE BTRAEA
REREAE T ——Fr R ERZE
4 =E|H A AR BERS I EER LR AN
L@k - BEHH ZERFNEARTS
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RRAF A RARE - —=F AR ERER
17 B 7S (8 A & R 25 B AT BE R 3 8 = 55 A
SERELZ R - AR EEA S Z100%ER
ABR—Z-=FBRERFEZETIRKER
MRS (EEEDEREHLLIAR -
—=FARRERER -

W2 RO RAE - T =Fa R E &
RERETHM—AFE &I B AERE R
FEBLBHN  ERAAGIZEREERDRD2
R LLAE T ——FAIBBREREZE -
RZE—=FhNhAZBE=ZTE—=FhLA=
H AT —=Fr#REFREEFEA
2 5l #% 13,600,000 7t & 10,200,000 % 7T 2
AT —=FaABRRERXRERLBRAERR
7)80,000,000 % & 60,000,000 % I i i o 7
—TNF—A=+tH ZZET—WNF=A
—t+N\A  ZE—EFEAEA « ZF—0mF
NAZT=B - ZFE—WmFENA+IE =F
—mEANAZTAA ZE—NF+—RA+—
H AT =FrA#RREFEEFEAS
8,500,000/ 7T * 4,828,0007% 7T * 34,000,000
7 7T~ 5,100,000 7% 7T+ 27,200,000/ 7T
93,546,000 7 7t & 337,412,000 /& 7t 5 7
& 33 A4 50,000,000 A% -+ 28,400,000 &
200,000,0004% ~ 30,000,000/% * 160,000,000
fi% ~ 550,268,000/% & 1,984,775,0003% 28 A F)

EER -
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28.CONVERTIBLE LOAN NOTES (CONTINUED)

150

2013 Convertible Loan Notes B

On 24 June 2013, the Company issued convertible loan notes which
had a maturity date on 23 June 2016 with an aggregate principal
amount of US$23,000,000 (equivalent to HK$179,400,000) (the “2013
Convertible Loan Notes B”) and with coupon rate of 8% per annum,
settled semi-annually. The 2013 Convertible Loan Notes B can be
converted up to an aggregate of 578,709,677 ordinary shares of
HK$0.01 each at HK$0.31 per share (subject to adjustment). The notes
were denominated in US$ and entitled the holders to convert them into
ordinary shares of the Company at any time from (and including) the
date of the issue date and up to five business days prior to the maturity
date. The effective interest rate of the liability component is 20.61% per

annum.

2013 Convertible Loan Notes C

On 3 July 2013, the Company issued convertible loan notes which had
a maturity date on 2 July 2016 with an aggregate principal amount
of US$7,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$54,600,000) (the
“2013 Convertible Loan Notes C”) and with coupon rate of 8% per
annum, settled semi-annually. The 2013 Convertible Loan Notes C can
be converted up to an aggregate of 176,129,032 ordinary shares of
HK$0.01 each at HK$0.31 per share (subject to adjustment). The notes
were denominated in US$ and entitled the holders to convert them into
ordinary shares of the Company at any time from (and including) the
date of the issue date and up to five business days prior to the maturity
date. The effective interest rate of the liability component is 22.61% per

annum.

The Company may redeem whole or part of the 2013 Convertible
Loan Notes B and 2013 Convertible Loan Notes C at 100% of the
outstanding principal amount together with unpaid interest at any
time after twelve months of the date of issue of the 2013 Convertible
Loan Notes B and the 2013 Convertible Loan Notes C and before the
maturity date with prior notice to notes holders.

NORTH ASIA RESOURCES HOLDINGS LIMITED e 1t 5 & RIZ R SR A &

28. IR IRER TR (&)

BE_ZE—=FHRERERE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P BmRME

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE—Z—PF+—-A=+—HILFE

28. CONVERTIBLE LOAN NOTES (CONTINUED) 28. A E R =8 (&)
The movements of the liability and derivative components of the TR EREEEBMITETAS D 2 &
convertible loan notes are set out below: BEFIMOT -

2010 2013 2013 2013
Convertible Convertible Convertible Convertible
Loan Notes A Loan Notes A Loan Notes B Loan Notes C Total
AE-Z-2F AE-E-=F BE-T-=fF (F-%-=F%
TRARENRE TRREREE TARENRE TRRERE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TEL FET TET TET FET
Liabilities component EEHD
At 1 January 2013 R=ZE—-=%—H—H 293,925 — = — 293,925
Issue of convertible loan notes FRNETAIRRERTE
during the year = 2,224,897 132,184 38,458 2,395,539
Effective interest expenses (Note 9) BB &% H (M 519) 38,131 124,151 14,184 4,312 180,778
Interest paid during the year FREMHFIE (9,379) - (7,195) = (16,568)
Conversion of convertible loan notes B AIAREHZH - (15,270) = = (15,270)
Redemption of convertible loan notes BB AR E 215 (156,937) - = = (156,937)
Amendment of terms of convertible  {E&T AR ERZE
loan notes 5,234 = = = 5,234
At 31 December 2013 RZE—=%F
and 1 January 2014 +ZA=+-Hk
—Z-WFE-F—H 170,980 2,333,778 139,173 42,770 2,686,701
Effective interest expenses (Note 9)  EFRFI 5% H (KizF9) 25,017 230,091 28,684 9,198 292,990
Interest paid during the year EREHFIE (9,360) - (14,352) (4,368) (28,080)
Conversion of convertible loan notes AR EREZRE - (364,225) - - (364,225)
At 31 December 2014 RZZE—Mm%F
+-A=+—-H 186,637 2,199,644 153,505 47,600 2,587,386
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28. CONVERTIBLE LOAN NOTES (CONTINUED) 28. TR ERERE (&)
2010 2013 2013 2013
Convertible Convertible Convertible Convertible
Loan Notes A Loan Notes A Loan Notes B Loan Notes C Total
AE=Z-2% z BE-—Z-=F (E-%-=F
TRRENRE TRREREE TAREXRE TRREREE #ct
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TR THET TR THT TR
Derivative component FTEIESS
At 1 January 2013 R-E—=%—F—H = = = = =
Issue of convertible loan notes FRETTAREREE
during the year - 1,664,318 46,433 15,838 1,726,589
Conversion of convertible loan notes SRR ERZ R - (19,109) - - (19,109)
Amendment of terms of convertible  {EET AR EHZE IR
loan notes (19,772) - - - (19,772)
Change in fair value ATEZEE) 3,094 (182,539) (28,802) (10,467) (218,714)
At 31 December 2013 R-ZE—=%
and 1 January 2014 +-A=+-BK
—2-Pm$¥—-H—H (16,678) 1,462,670 17,631 5,371 1,468,994
Conversion of convertible loan notes ¥R ERZE - (232,012 - - (232,012
Change in fair value ATEES 5,338 (307,866) (11,554) (3,510) (317,592)
At 31 December 2014 RZZ—MmE
+-BA=+—-8H (11,340) 922,792 6,077 1,861 919,390

2014 2013
—E—mE SH==4F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
Presented by: 5%
Current assets MENAE 11,340 16,678
Current liabilities mEEE (930,730) (1,485,672)
(919,390) (1,468,994)
The fair value of the derivative component of the 2010 Convertible Loan A ZFABBREREETETES D
Notes A was estimated at the date of amendment of terms and the end ZAFEDRIRIEFIET B R SREHR
of each reporting period respectively using the Black-Scholes model MEAmAR — R R EE E EBEE & =18
with trinomial tree method. The change in fair value of the derivative REBAHEMET - STET A D 2 A FEE
component is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. BRERE IR R IER ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 &= —Z—F+_-_A=+—HILFE
28. CONVERTIBLE LOAN NOTES (CONTINUED)

The derivative component of the 2010 Convertible Loan Notes A
represented the conversion option of the holder and the redemption
option of the Company, revalued on 13 March 2013 and 7 June 2013,
the date when the amendment of terms became unconditional, and 31
December 2013 and 2014 based on the valuation performed by Greater
China, using the Black-Scholes model with trinomial tree method. The

significant inputs to the models were as follows:

2. AR EREE (8)

AT —TFIHRRERERZITETIA
aﬁhhﬁA%&&%&K@ﬁm%@%'
HRZ-ZZT—=Ff=ZRA+=HRZZT—Z=ZFR

AtBUEKIETTRAEKRHEER)UR=ZF
—=FRZFT—
EFEMAAHE —
R=BAEBH EETZEEER -
BERBABAT :

mE+-—A=+t—HRE=ZE
Hr e AT iR e B R A
it

31 December 31 December 7 June 13 March
2014 2013 PIK] PINK]
—B-NE -2-= 2= —E-=

+=ZA=t—-H +=A=+-H ~AtH =ZHAt=H

Spot price (HKS) REE(ET) 0.21 0.18 0.31 0.28

Risk free rate BB R 0.4043% 0.5502% 0.3892% 0.1197%

Expected option period (year) RHHERR () 1.44 2.44 0.78 0.28

Expected volatility BHRIE 46.52% 46.47% 43.91% 44.72%
The derivative component of 2013 Convertible Loan Notes A which AlB-—_E—=—Fn R EFREEZTET AR
represented the conversion option of the holder and the redemption 25+ ? B AH N R & AN B H S
option of the Company, was valued on 7 June 2013 (date of issuance), ER=—_F—=FAtRA(%7H) =T
2 September 2013, 3 September 2013, 31 December 2013, 27 January —Einﬂ —B-=—EE—=%FhAA=H " =
2014, 28 March 2014, 4 April 2014, 23 June 2014, 19 August 2014, 29 T—=%+=AH :+— H - —ZT—NF—A8

September 2014, 11 November 2014 and 31 December 2014 based on —_—++A8 - — g E A=-+NH -

the valuations performed by Greater China, using the Trinomial Lattice

Tree model. The significant inputs to the models were as follows:

31 December

REB(ET)

Spot price (HK$)
Risk free rate gyl ped

HHBEAR(F)

Expected option period (year)

Eﬁz/\ﬂ +_
TR —MER

== P_TlillleEEl
B - :?—Eil\ﬂ‘HLEI

A=+hR8 - —mFE+—A+—BK=
%*EiJr:H E+f BRBZEZEMA=X
BEBRIGETZMESEMN - RE 2 EKEH
ANEWT :
11 November 29 September 19 August
2014 2014 2014 2014
—E2-MmE —Z-mE —E-mE —E-mE
t=A=+-B +t-A+-B AA=thAH NA+hA
0.17 0.17 0.17 0.17
1.1464% 1.0039% 1.2090% 0.9922%
3.44 3.57 3.69 3.8
59.28% 61.45% 61.14% 63.11%

Expected volatility BEERIE

ANNUAL REPORT 2014 » 2014 3 153



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e P BwRME

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE—Z—PUFE+—-A=+—HILFE
28. CONVERTIBLE LOAN NOTES (CONTINUED)

—Z-mE
AHA=t=H

23 June

28. IR IRERRE (H)

28 March
2014
—g-mF
=ZR=tAH

4 April
2014
—2-QmF
MAME

27 January

2014
—F-mE
—-R=ttH

2014

Spot price (HK$) BEE(ET) 0.17 0.17 0.17 0.17
Risk free rate |ERFE 1.1807% 1.3520% 1.2942% 1.2260%
Expected option period (year) TEHR AR () 3.96 418 4.20 4.36
Expected volatility TEHRR i 61.35% 60.73% 61.34% 59.91%

31 December

—E-=F
+=A=+-H

2 September
2013
—E-=F
NAZ=H

3 September
2013
—E-=f
NAZH

2013

Spot price (HK$) REE(ET) 0.18 0.24 0.24 0.31
Risk free rate HEBRF|R 1.2598% 1.4303% 1.4044% 0.7715%
Expected option period (year) TBHEREER(F) 4.44 4.80 4.80 5.00
Expected volatility TEHR IR 44.76% 50.99% 50.94% 61.25%

The derivative component of 2013 Convertible Loan Notes B which
represented the conversion option of the holder and the redemption
option of the Company, was valued on 24 June 2013 (date of issuance),
31 December 2013 and 31 December 2014 based on the valuations
performed by Greater China, using the Trinomial Lattice Tree model.

The significant inputs to the models were as follows:

Spot price (HK$) REE(ET)
Risk free rate B 1| 2
Expected option period (year) TEERHAREHAMR (&)
Expected volatility TEHR R i

BT —=FrA#REREBEZITET A
DEFEANABERRRAINELE - 2
RZB—Z=F A THA(ETH) =%
—=F+ZA=+—BRZIZE—HNF+=
=+ —BRBEERNA=XGEERIET
ZIhEEf - BE 2SR ABELT :

o A

31 December 31 December 24 June
2014 PANK]
—E2-mF =2-=
TEEET=E AAZTMWA
0.04 0.02 0.04
0.4236% 0.5680% 0.7230%
1.48 2.48 3.00
57.51% 49.74% 47.48%
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28.CONVERTIBLE LOAN NOTES (CONTINUED) 28. AR EMRFE (&)

BT -0 HRREREZZITETA
o EFHA AN L IEERARA R &L -
EHR=-ZZ—=F+A=B(%TH) =%
—=F+ZA=+—HERZZE—WF+=A
=+—HRBEEMNA=XBEEREET
ZIEEEMN - BRI ERBABENT :

The derivative component of 2013 Convertible Loan Notes C which
represented the conversion option of the holder and the redemption
option of the Company, was valued on 3 July 2013 (date of issuance),
31 December 2013 and 31 December 2014 based on the valuations
performed by Greater China, using the Trinomial Lattice Tree model.

The significant inputs to the models were as follows:

31 December
2014

—B-mF

31 December

2013
—g-=

t=A=t-8 t=A=t-A

Spot price (HK$) BEBGET) 0.04 0.02 0.04
Risk free rate 42 [ i T =R 0.4347% 0.5781% 0.6780%
Expected option period (year) TEHA R HARR (£F) 1.50 2.50 3.00
Expected volatility TEHR 1R 57.31% 49.55% 47.53%
29. SHARE CAPITAL 29. IR A
Number of shares
LU E
2014 2014
“E-m% —E-mF
HK$’000 HK$'000
Ti#n Ti&n
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each SR0.01B T2 L @R
Authorised: B
At 1 January iz el = 76,905,061,616  77,452,700,000 769,051 774,527
Decrease on issue of preference shares BIRERAD - (547,638,384) - (5,476)
At 31 December Rt=A=1-A 76,905,061,616  76,905,061,616 769,051 769,051
Issued and fully paid: BRIRAR:
At 1 January ®—A—H 2,896,989,712 1,194,825,759 28,970 11,948
Issue of shares upon: R TSR TR -
Conversion of convertible preference shares (Note a) XA AT EAE LR (Hizta) 134,545,454 542,051,786 1,345 5,421
Capitalisation of convertible loan note (Note b) MRREFEE 2 A (Fib) - 351,122,243 - 3,511
Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note c) IEEMEB R (Hizke) - 668,989,924 - 6,690
Conversion of convertible loan notes (Note d) SEMBERESRER (HiEd) 3,003,442,857 140,000,000 30,035 1,400
At 31 December Rt=A=1+—H 6,034,978,023  2,896,989,712 60,350 28,970
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29. SHARE CAPITAL (CONTINUED)

Notes:

(@)

156

On 28 March 2014, 118,400,000 of convertible preference shares were
converted into consideration shares respectively. 134,545,454 of ordinary
shares were issued and allotted as consideration shares upon conversion of
the convertible preference shares respectively.

On 11 March 2013, 24 May 2013, 27 May 2013 and 7 June 2013,
75,000,000, 17,118,400, 16,505,173 and 368,382,000 of convertible
preference shares were converted into consideration shares respectively.
85,227,272, 19,452,727, 18,755,878 and 418,615,909 of ordinary shares
were issued and allotted as consideration shares upon conversion of the
convertible preference shares respectively.

On 7 June, 2013, pursuant to the Subscription Agreement A, the Company
allotted and issued 351,122,243 ordinary shares with par value of HK$0.10
to capitalise the Set-Off Convertible Loan Notes. The fair value of the
351,122,243 ordinary shares of the Company, determined using the closing
market price of HK$0.31 per share at the date of issue, amounted to
approximately HK$108,847,000.

On 7 June 2013, the Group acquired the entire equity interest of Lexing for
an aggregate consideration of approximately HK$5,040,870,000, of which
668,989,924 ordinary shares of the Company with par value of HK$0.01
each were issued as part of the consideration for the Acquisition. The fair
value of the 668,989,924 ordinary shares of the Company, determined using
the closing market price of HK$0.31 per share at the date of Acquisition and
the date of exchange control, amounted to approximately HK$207,390,000.

On 27 January 2014, 28 March 2014, 4 April 2014, 23 June 2014, 19
August 2014, 29 September 2014, 11 November 2014 the holders of the
2013 Convertible Loan Notes A converted HK$8,500,000, HK$4,828,000,
HK$34,000,000, HK$5,100,000, HK$27,200,000, HK$93,546,000 and
HK$337,412,000 into 50,000,000, 28,400,000, 200,000,000, 30,000,000,
160,000,000, 550,267,805 and 1,984,775,052 ordinary shares of the
Company respectively.

On 2 September 2013 and 3 September 2013, the holders of the 2013
Convertible Loan Note A converted HK$13,600,000 and HK$10,200,000
of 2013 Convertible Loan Note A into 80,000,000 and 60,000,000 ordinary
shares of the Company respectively.

NORTH ASIA RESOURCES HOLDINGS LIMITED e 1t 5 & RIZ R SR A &

29. R A< (48)

BT -

(@)

R-ZZT—MFE=H=+/\8 ' 118,400,0004%
AERELREEIRANRERD - iR EiR
B - B 81T RELE134,545,454% LB

CZE—ZFF
CZE-—=FRA=-++tH
kE=ZZT—=%XA+H 75000000 -
17,118,400 -+ 16,505,173 & 368,382,000 f%
AEBRELERESIEBERERD - ©
Rt EBEBERE B9l &7 KR
85,227,272 ~ 19,452,727 - 18,755,878 &
418,615,900/ @A E AR B ©

R-ZZE—=FAtA  REAEREWRS
AN B BC B K B 17351,122,243 % B R EE
0108 Tz L@k - AEKIKETRRERE
BETER - AAF351,122,243 LB 2
AF{E# 5108,847,000/8 7 + JHiR%THE
ZWHEERO.SIETETE -

RZT—=F~"A+t8 AEBLEKE
#75,040,870,000 # 7T 4t 18 % F 2 & 2P A%
RNz - AQRBEITEREEOIB T
668,989,924 % & i A% 1E & 2B 5 W HE K (& °
AN F)668,989,924 R EBR < AR FELA
207,390,000/ 7 + ThER AR ULEE A 81 RSN E
EHBEZ T EER.3IBTERE °

R-ZZE—MNE—A=-++H —T—WF=
A=Z+N\HBH - ZZET—W&EWAMNAH - =%
—mEXA-+=0 - —2-—HWENA+N
H - ZZ—WmOFAAZF+IAA  ZT—NF
+—A+—B AE-Z—=FAHREX
Z ¥ A A 8,500,000 7% T+ 4,828,000
7 JL 34,000,000 /& Jt - 5,100,000 &
JT * 27,200,000 % Jt * 93,546,000 7 7T K&
337,412,000 7 7T 7 5l ¥ # /3 50,000,000 -
28,400,000 * 200,000,000 * 30,000,000 -
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE—Z—PF+—-A=+—HILFE

30. CONVERTIBLE PREFERENCE SHARES 30. AT EIRE K R
Convertible preference shares at HK$0.01 each, authorised, issued and SREMBEC.OVE T 2 AJHEIRELR - JEF
fully paid: BEITRERE :

Number of shares Amount
BRHEE HE
HK$’'000
T
Convertible preference shares (Note a) A EREER (M 5a)

At 1 January 2013 RZZT—=F—HA—H 2,036,487,776 20,365
Conversion during the year (Note 29a) FRN I (HF29a) (477,005,573) (4,770)

At 31 December 2013 and 1 January 2014 R-E—=F+-A=+—H
k=Z—mME—HA—H 1,659,482,203 15,595
Conversion during the year (Note 29a) FA R (HE29a) (118,400,000) (1,184)
At 31 December 2014 R-Z-—ME+-A=+—H 1,441,082,203 14,411

Convertible preference shares (Class A) (note b) A& #8 % & (A%E) (Fi:ib)

At 1 January 2013 R-T—=%—F—H = =
Issued of convertible preference shares upon the — 3RBE RS 2817 A B2 (8 L A%
Subscription (Note b) (Mtzxb) 547,638,384 5,476
At 31 December 2013, 1 January 2014 and RZE—=F+_fF=+—H "
31 December 2014 —T-NF—-A—HK
—E-mE+=A=+—H 547,638,384 5,476
Total convertible preference shares HERE L RER
At 31 December 2014 RZZ—NFE+=A=+—H 1,988,720,587 19,887
At 31 December 2013 N-E-—=F+=-A=+—H 2,107,120,587 21,071
Notes: Bt
(a) On 16 December 2009, the Company issued 2,547,300,000 convertible (@ R=ZFZAF+=ZA+H ARAHIK
preference shares of par value of HK$0.01 at issue price of HK$0.5 per Bl D EREEKRETESROSB LR
share in respect of the acquisition of NARG. 2,547,300,000/% & i T E0.01 %8 7T 2 7] # 34
BIEAR
The initial conversion price of HK$0.5 per ordinary share is for each ABRELERZ NP A0RBRERYL BR0.5
convertible preference share. The conversion rate of each convertible BIT o BRFTEIRE LR KRR GRAE
preference share is determined by dividing the issue price of each BREERZFHITERALBREET - LilE%
convertible preference share by the conversion price. The major terms of the f&z EZGEFHEHIT

above-mentioned preference shares are set out below:
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30. CONVERTIBLE PREFERENCE SHARES (CONTINUED)

Notes: (continued)

158

(@)

(continued)

() The convertible preference share holders has the right, exercisable at
any time perpetual as from the date of issue, to convert the preference
shares into fully paid ordinary shares, provided that (1) any conversion
of the convertible preference shares does not trigger a mandatory offer
obligation under rule 26 of the Hong Kong Code on Takeovers and
Mergers on the part of the convertible preference shares holders and
their concert parties who exercise the conversion rights; (2) the number
of conversion shares to be allotted and issued upon the exercise of
the conversion rights attaching to the convertible preference shares
represents not more than 29.99% of the then issued ordinary share
capital of the Company on a fully diluted basis; (3) the number of
the conversion shares to be allotted and issued to any holder of the
convertible preference shares will not result in the aggregate holding by
such holder of convertible preference shares to exceed 19.99% of the
then issued share capital of the Company on a fully diluted basis; and
(4) the public float of the shares shall not be less than 25%.

(i)  The convertible preference shares are transferable other than to
connected persons, as defined under the Listing Rules, of the
Company and do not carry the right to vote. The convertible preference
shares holders shall not be entitled to any dividend.

(i)  The convertible preference shares shall rank pari passu with any and all
current and future preferred equity securities of the Company.

(iv)  The convertible preference shares are non-redeemable.

Based on their terms and conditions, the convertible preference shares
have been classified as equity instrument in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

On 11 February 2010, the conversion price of the convertible preference
shares was adjusted from HK$0.5 per share to HK$0.44 per share as a
result of the issuance of shares placed on the same date which resulted a
conversion ratio of 88 convertible preference shares for 100 ordinary shares
of the Company. The details of the adjustment are set out in the Company’s
announcement dated on 20 May 2010.

On 7 June 2013, the Company issued 547,638,384 convertible preference
shares (the “CPS Class A”) with par value of HK$0.01 in respect of the
Subscription (as detailed in Note 28).

The valuation of the CPS Class A was carried out by Greater China, an
independent qualified professional valuer not connected to the Group. The
variables and assumptions used in computing the fair value of the CPS Class
A are based on the directors’ best estimate.

The fair value of the CPS Class A as at 7 June 2013 (completion date of
Subscription) amounted to approximately HK$135,800,000, approximately
HK$0.25 per share. The amount in excess of the par value of the CPS Class
A is credited to the share premium in the equity of the Company.

NORTH ASIA RESOURCES HOLDINGS LIMITED e 1t 5 & RIZ R SR A &
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() FEREERZBAEAGEARTAR
HEEBHEELIRIBRABZER
A& - (1) R ] AT S RE R IR TS B
BOAERBREZIERELRERSE
ARBEFEE-BITBHZ ALREEER
AU I A OF ST RIIR B 55 26 (512 58
MWEEEZEE QIR ATERES
BRFTIN R TR R B R BT 2R
BBRHNBEERNRARERCETEBR
AR AT B i829.99% (1R 2 H#EHE A ) ¢
Q)& A AT SR E R BB AR R
BOZRBBRNHBETSERZETE
REBEBRBEAZBEREBBARST
%ﬁaﬁﬁ%$2w9muﬁéﬁ%%
&) RABRDZAREREREIR
25% °

(i) BREMRAUAAEARRZBEEAL
Sh o AERE SR AT 0 AW ERIR
o ERELRSEABRRTEEM
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TLHEZEFR0.447 T » EiALEL R A10088 A
AR BA% K S8R AT SR B LR - FHEEZFF
BERRARRZE—SFRA=-THZAM -

H

RZZE—=FAtH ARARBHEFEE
17547,638,384 [k AR E B0.01 B T 2 AT E#&
BRBR(TARAERELR]) (FRKZE28) °

AR R] BB ST IR 2 fh B i S SR B RS
ZBIAERERGEMELLT - HEAE
AEREERAFEMERIEZERBRRIE
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE—Z—PF+—-A=+—HILFE
30. CONVERTIBLE PREFERENCE SHARES (CONTINUED)

Notes: (continued)

(o)

(continued)

Each of the CPS Class A can be converted into one ordinary share. The
major terms of the CPS Class A are set out below:

(i)

(ii)

(ii)

(iv)

The CPS Class A share holders has the right, exercisable at any time
perpetual as from the date of issue, to convert the CPS Class A into
fully paid ordinary shares, provided that (1) the conversion of CPS
Class A will not cause the holders and parties acting in concert with it,
will directly or indirectly, control or be interested in 20% or more of the
entire issued ordinary shares of the Company; and (2) the public float
of the shares shall not be less than 25%.

The CPS Class A are transferable other than to connected persons, as
defined under the Listing Rules, of the Company and do not carry the
right to vote.

The CPS Class A have priority to any rights of the holders of any other
class of shares of the Company to receive dividends. And dividend
declared shall not be less than that declared in respect of any other
class of shares of the Company on a per share basis.

The CPS Class A shall rank prior to the ordinary shares of the Company
in respect of dividends and distributions of surplus assets upon the
occurrence of liquidation.

The CPS Class A are non-redeemable by neither the Company nor any
holder of the CPS Class A.

Based on their terms and conditions, the CPS Class A have been classified

as equity instrument in the consolidated statement of financial position.

30. TEBRE KR (E

s - (&)

(o)
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE—Z—PUFE+—-A=+—HILFE

31.PROVISION FOR RESTORATION, REHABILITATION AND 31.1x 18 - (B RIRIB R AR 1E
ENVIRONMENTAL COSTS

HK$’000

T

At 1 January 2013 R-ZE—=F—H—H -

Acquired from acquisition of subsidiaries WREH B A RIS 60,096

Imputed interest expense (Note 9) HEN BRI (H79) 2,234
At 31 December 2013 and RZE—=F+=ZA=+—HK

1 January 2014 —E—mFE—H—H 62,330

Imputed interest expense (Note 9) HERESRAE (M) 3,822

Exchange realignment b H A 1,781

At 31 December 2014 R-T—HmEFE+=—F=+—H 67,933

The restoration and rehabilitation works will be performed in the years REREECITERR-_ZE__FFZ=-2N

from 2022 to 2040. The provision is carried at amortised cost at TEETT - BEDNIREBERFENENTI4AER
effective interest rate ranges from 4.1% to 6.96% per annum. 6.96[E 5T & 2 #HR ANFI R o

32. PROMISSORY NOTES 2. EZRHERE
The movements of the promissory notes for the two years ended 31 EAEZBERBE_T—NFR_T—=F
December 2014 and 2013 are set out below: TZA=+—HIEMEFE ZESEHINMT :

Promissory Promissory Promissory

Notes A Notes B Notes C Total
ABRGLRE BEAREER CERLRE gt
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THAT FAT FTAET THAT
At 1 January 2013 R-E—=F—Hf—H - - - -
Issue of promissory notes FRETHRLER
during the year 344,265 179,400 54,600 578,265
Transaction costs attributable to BITRR BB Z R HHA
issue of promissory notes - (783) (303) (1,086)
Redemption during the year FRER (308,879) - - (308,879)
Interest paid during the year FRNBEMFL - (10,798) - (10,793)
Effective interest expenses (Note 9)  EFEF| S5 (MizE9) 3,290 11,326 3,293 17,909
At 31 December 2013 and RZE—=F+=-RA=+—H
1 January 2014 k=ZZT—NF—A—H 38,676 179,150 57,590 275,416
Interest paid during the year FANBMFL = (21,528) (6552) (28,080)
Effective interest expenses (Note 9) BB F 8582 (Mi5£9) 2,876 21,775 6,647 31,298
At 31 December 2014 R=ZE—MFE+=-A=1+—H 41,652 179,397 57,685 278,634
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE—Z—PF+—-A=+—HILFE

32. PROMISSORY NOTES (CONTINUED) 2. EAREE (&)

Promissory Notes A

On 7 June 2013, the Company issued unsecured promissory notes
with principal value of HK$400,000,000 in respect to the acquisition of
a subsidiary (Note 35) (the “Promissory Notes A”). Promissory Notes
A will mature on 6 June 2016 and bear interest at 5% per annum. All
interests will be accrued and paid on the date of maturity. The Company
may redeem whole or part of the Promissory Notes A at any time after
the date of issue of the Promissory Notes A and before the maturity
date with prior notice to the shareholders of City Bloom. No interest
shall be accrued and payable in respect of the Promissory Notes A
that are early redeemed by the Company. The Promissory Notes A
were measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest rates
at 10.14%. The directors of the Company determined that no value
has been assigned for the redemption options of the Company as it is

considered to be insignificant in value.

The Company had redeemed the Promissory Notes A with
principal amount of HK$358,400,000 at a cash consideration
of HK$358,400,000. A loss on redemption of approximately
HK$49,521,000 was recognised in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss for the year ended 31 December 2013. There was no further

redemption in 2014.

Promissory Notes B

On 23 June 2013, the Company issued unsecured promissory notes
with principal value of US$23,000,000 (equivalent to HK$179,400,000)
by placing (the “Promissory Notes B”). The Promissory Notes B will
mature on 23 June 2016, bear interest at 12% per annum payable every
six months. The Company may redeem whole or part of the Promissory
Notes B from twelve months after the date of issue of the Promissory
Notes B and before the maturity date with prior notice to the placees.
The Promissory Notes B were measured at amortised cost, using
the effective interest rates at 12.18%. The directors of the Company
determined that no value has been assigned for the redemption options

of the Company as it is considered to be insignificant in value.

ABARRERE

RZE—=ZF~AtH8  XRABRKE
— BB AR (K ES) BITASEA
400,000,000 7T 2 4 15 H 58 ([ AR
RER]D - ARERNEBRBER T - EX
AXNBEH - WIRFESSETE - AN EH
2 URBHHAXM - RARATRAR
AR ERRITEAE YA REREREL
HEWE 2z RR - BB 2k E D AEFN =
B o ARRRABR ZAEALERI TSR
EREMFE - ABARERERERR X
10.14BRBER AT E - ARREFRRH
REETK @ BURE TR AR R EREEEE
FTEMEME -

AR A E AR & R {8358,400,0007% 7t &
6 7K & %A /4 358,400,000 JT 2 AJE A R =
B YERBE-_Z—Z=F+_A=+—
BIEFEZHGEAEZREREREIELY
49,521,000/ 7T © — T — P 4F 5 & H it &
@ °

BEALREE
RZZB—=F"A=+=H ' ARRUEE
75 = #E1TAN© 58 5 23,000,000% T (HEE R
179,400,000 7T ) 2 EEF A H Z1Z ([Bf
AHER]) BEAREBRBBENR_-ZT—X~F
NAZT=H38 - WIRFEE12EE - A
FAMEA I o AA B AR BREAN Z iR
TRHE+T ZEAZEIHBAERBEBELM
SREA - BE2MPHHBOBEARLER - B
$EA IR A BRI 12.1 8 E B K A
AR ARAEFRRARBETKA R
ETNREAN AIBEE ZET EEE -
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32.

33.

162

PROMISSORY NOTES (CONTINUED)

Promissory Notes C

On 3 July 2013, the Company issued unsecured promissory notes
with principal value of US$7,000,000 (equivalent to HK$54,600,000)
by placing (the “Promissory Notes C”). The Promissory Notes C will
mature on 3 July 2016, bear interest at 12% per annum payable every
six months. The Company may redeem whole or part of the Promissory
Notes C from twelve months after the date of issue of the Promissory
Notes C and before the maturity date with prior notice to the placees.
The Promissory Notes C were measured at amortised cost, using
the effective interest rates at 12.23%. The directors of the Company
determined that no value has been assigned for the redemption options

of the Company as it is considered to be insignificant in value.

DEFERRED TAX LIABILITY

The following is the deferred tax liability recognised and movements

thereon during the current and prior years:

32.

33.

EARE (&)

CEANRE

RZE—Z=ZF+A=H ARQRaUEREH
I B 17 AN & %8 A& 7,000,000 % T (HEE R
54,600,000/ 7T ) 2 4 K I8 ([ CHam
HERE] CHEAAEBBEN-_Z—RFt
A=B3H - TEFB12EE - AEAE
AXH - ARAITTRCEARZERHEITRE
T A EE H A AIBER AR E X ME R
A - EEZ2EHIHCLEANZER - CHAR
ZRFEABEFR12.23FH B KA E -
RRAREEFRABENEBETK @ #URE T
RAGEEEEETEEE -

ELERIEE &

AEERBAFEEHAZRERBARR
HEZEHMT

Mining rights

HK$'000

FHT

At 1 January 2013 R-ZE—=F—H—H 40,756

Eliminated upon the disposal of subsidiaries o 5 B /BB 2 ) R T 8 (40,756)

Acquired from acquisition of subsidiaries WS M B A RIS 2,783,832

Credited to profit or loss srAE&E (67,110)
At 31 December 2013 and 1 January 2014 RZE—=F+=-A=+—HK

—ZT—HWFE—-A—H 2,726,722

Credited to profit or loss T AER (177,301)

Exchange realignment bE 7, 77,840

At 31 December 2014 R-ZE—MNE+—_A=+—H 2,627,261
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33.

34.

DEFERRED TAX LIABILITY (CONTINUED)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had unused tax losses
of approximately HK$22,397,000 (2013: HK$21,875,000) available for
offset against future profits. No deferred tax asset has been recognised
in respect of the tax losses due to the unpredictability of future profit
streams. The tax losses of approximately HK$21,178,000 (2013:
HK$20,082,000) may be carried forward indefinitely. The remaining
of approximately HK$1,219,000 (2013: HK$1,793,000) will be carried

forward for 5 years from the year in which the respective loss arose.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had deductible temporary
differences of approximately HK$13,235,000 (2013: HK$3,899,000).
No deferred tax assets have been recognised in relation to such
deductible temporary difference as it is not probable that taxable profit
will be available against which the deductible temporary difference can
be utilised.

Under the New Enterprises Income Tax Law of the PRC, withholding
tax is imposed on dividends in respect of profits earned by the PRC
subsidiaries from 1 January 2008 onwards (the “Post-2008 Earnings”).
As at 31 December 2014 and 2013, deferred taxation has not been
provided for in the consolidation financial statements in respect of
temporary difference attributable to the “Post-2008 Earnings” as the
Group is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that the temporary differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future. As at 31 December 2014, the Group
has Post-2008 earnings of approximately HK$2,901,000 (2013:
HK$2,572,000).

IMPAIRMENT OF MINING RIGHTS, PROPERTY, PLANT
AND EQUIPMENT AND GOODWILL

Impairment testing of mining rights, property, plant and
equipment and goodwill in relation to mining operation

For the purpose of impairment testing, the Group’s mining operation
was allocated into five CGUs namely LI 78/ 7% & £ B 5 T $A 8
BEBRATF (“Bolong”), WARKEHEELTRERREERRRA A
(“Liaoyuan”), ILFaE B SHEE & R EEHEFEGR AR (“Xinfeng”), 1L
HREHERERBEKEBR AR (“Fuchang”) and LK REHSE
BH Rttt 2 ZFR AT (“Jinxin”), which represented five subsidiaries
in the mining operation segment to determine their recoverable

amounts.

33.

34.

EEMBEE(E)

RIBEBRR  XEBEARADAREEBLY
22,397,000 7L (= F — =4 : 21,875,000
YETT) - AT SEARNCET] o AR REETETE
AR T AOR - B U 3 4 5 B I8 S 1R SRR
ERRIBBAE - HIEEEL21,178,000/8 7T (=
T — =14 : 20,082,000/ T ) o] £& R B 4564 o
HHEEL1,219,0008 T (=T —=F :
1,793,000 7T ) #§74 & B B F D ERSF
W& -

REmERR AEEFUNRY R EZED
13,235,000 7T (=T — =4 : 3,899,000/
Jo) > MR EMERBG N BERE RS A
AR E SRR - B E st A B A R
K ZFRERERETIAEE -

RIBEPEFCEMERE  EERBEKEA
AIEZEENF—A—BRERARIUEF([ =
TTN\FREBHN]) 2REBHMNTENT - B
—E--NER-ZT—=Ft+=-A=+—8 "
REBI AR [ DT NFERFELZ
B2 58 - RS B S SR 2% /R R T B TE
& RRARASEEEFIRERNEEZE
- BEEREEZFEAI TSN &R E
B-R-_FB—mME+-—A=+—H A&£E
B ZTZENFERBAA2,901,0008 T (=F
—=% :2,572,000/87C) °

RIRE - WX BERRER
BB R E

RUERE - WX BERRERA
REEBERERZBENR
WREARTS - AREZFBEEHET
FERSEEB - DILERREHEE S
REMREARAT () - WEERE
WREEERREERAT (R - W
TR EHEREE X BEREERAT(E
1))+ WITE BB R R R A R AR
AR(EE ) RILER S HEE S X R
SBERATN(EE))  RERWABLE
MHBAR  AETAAREEE -
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.IMPAIRMENT OF MINING RIGHTS, PROPERTY, PLANT

AND EQUIPMENT AND GOODWILL (CONTINUED)

Impairment testing of mining rights, property, plant and
equipment and goodwill in relation to mining operation
(continued)

The recoverable amounts of the mining operation CGUs are
determined from value-in-use calculation. As extracted from Greater
China Appraisal Limited (“Greater China”)’s valuation reports for the
recoverable amounts as at 31 December 2014 and 2013 (the “Valuation
Reports”), the management of the Group prepared cash flow forecast
derived from the most recent available financial budgets approved by
management and cash flows beyond 5-year period are extrapolated
using 3% (2013: 3%) growth rate over thirty-three (2013: thirty-four)
years which does not exceed the long-term growth rate assuming the
extension of mining licenses is available and administrative in nature.
In preparing the forecast, management made reference to the mineral
reserves presently verified and the future production capacity according
to the technical report issued by John T. Boyd (“J T Boyd”).

Based on the Valuation Reports, the recoverable amounts of the
relevant mining operations CGUs are determined as follows:

Bolong EE
Liaoyuan BIR
Xinfeng 413
Fuchang ==
Jinxin ok

M.JXBE - WX BMERRER

BB RE (')

KRR - UE  BERRERE
RREB AR 2EE ZRENR
(%)
RIS S B 2 AT B & AR
EEEARTE - FEEERELNOREF
fEERAR(DRE]) ERS ([ HERE])
FS MR ERN —F - MER—F =4
t- A=+ A2 AKESE - KRG
ERABHEZHBHERUBEARS R
& BBAFHMZRSAEIRI%(—F
—ZF %) ERE(TMEBRPERE)
FHSHSE(CR -S4 = FRE)#
R AR AT T 4 BB T
EEOE@AA/%%®ﬁ$ﬁ AT
1) 2 B 4R A AR R 2 O A

%&*%E iﬁ%}é E‘ﬁﬁ%/mi ©
RIBHERS  ARRBEXBRSELEN
Z AR B S REEEE AN
2014 2013
—meE == =4
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FHET
4,744,728 4,750,569
2,233,639 2,228,537
2,421,298 2,598,595
1,881,218 1,878,638
1,386,528 1,348,719

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill of approximately
HK$1,322,481,000, HK$644,490,000, HK$782,843,000,
HK$537,950,000 and HK$373,791,000 were allocated to Bolong,
Liaoyuan, Xinfeng, Fuchang and Jinxin respectively and was fully
impaired during the year ended 31 December 2013.

The directors of the Company were of the opinion that, based on the
Valuation Reports, the recoverable amounts of the mining rights of
HK$11,399,038,000 (2013: HK$11,772,162,000) and property, plant
and equipment of HK$1,268,373,000 (2013: HK$1,027,896,000)
under the mining operation were less than the carrying amounts
in the consolidated statement of financial position. Impairment
losses in respect of mining rights during the year of approximately
HK$709,204,000 (2013: HK$228,439,000) and property, plant and
equipment of HK$74,776,000 (2013: HK$21,172,000) were recognised
for the year ended 31 December 2014.
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BEREME - £1,322,481,000% 7T
644,490,000 # JT * 782,843,000 /& T °
537,950,000 7t % 373,791,000/ T 2 2

RIS BT EHEE - BR - Bl - BEEE
& EREE_Z—=F+-A=+—H1It
FEBERE °

RARAREERA  BEBEBERS @ REED
T ERTEE 2 7] U [B] < B8 11,399,038,0007% 7T
(ZZ— =4 : 11,772,162,000/8 7T ) & ¥
% BB &EfH 2 TIkE£581,268,373,000
f%m:( T —=4 :1,027,896,00087T) ' b
REEHBERRARRNZEEE - RAFE -
78 7 ER T AR 2 R (B 5 18 %) /5 709,204,000 7%
TT(=Z— =4 : 228,439,000/ 7T) M -
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34.IMPAIRMENT OF MINING RIGHTS, PROPERTY, PLANT
AND EQUIPMENT AND GOODWILL (CONTINUED)

Impairment testing of mining rights, property, plant and
equipment and goodwill in relation to mining operation
(continued)

The key assumptions for the value-in-use calculation are those
regarding discount rates, anticipated changes to future selling prices

and anticipated production capacity, as follows:

- Management used a discount rate which was derived as the
Company'’s cost of capital, representing the expected return on the
Company’s capital, and assigned the following pre-tax discount

rate to each mine:

4. (RIRFE - WX - BMERRER
RIE R e ()

RIERE - W% BERRERA
REXBEEH2HE 2RENR
(%)
8158 PO R BRI 0 E B BAR5 RB
BE  RREERRLHREWEY - H1F
o

— EEAEBMAMBEREARAERKA
(BIARREARZ FEHEER) 5 T 5 & 18
5 2 lEEVAAE R REE

2014
—2-mEF

%

Bolong sk
Fuchang =]
Jinxin i
Liaoyuan EIR
Xinfeng Zlg

20.56 22.03
24.30 25.71
25.16 26.27
21.37 23.06
23.65 26.17

—  Future selling prices were estimated with reference to existing and

past quoted commodity prices of the mining industry.

—  Future production capacity estimation was made in accordance
with the feasibility report issued by J T Boyd. The estimated

optimal production capacity per annum is expected to be as

follows:

- KRREESERERBEBEREmMIBE
fliat o

—  RRERRIRITIOR 2 7T 5
5t o st EERLT

Bolong SAEE
Fuchang =]
Jinxin i
Liaoyuan EIR
Xinfeng =2

2014

=t B
tones

7]

1,270,000 1,270,000
680,000 680,000
450,000 450,000
630,000 630,000
880,000 880,000
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35.

166

ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

On 12 June 2013, the Company entered into a sale and purchase
agreement for the acquisition of Lexing at a consideration with nominal
value of HK$4,662,000,000 (the “Acquisition Agreement”) and the detail
of the transaction was set out in a circular issued on 25 March 2013.
The acquisition was approved by shareholders of the Company in the
extraordinary general meeting held on 12 April 2013 and completed on
7 June 2013. The fair value of consideration at completion amounted to
HK$5,040,870,000. Lexing and its subsidiaries are principally engaged
in the exploration, mining and sales of coking coal in Shanxi Province,
the PRC and were acquired so as to expand its business to mining
operation in the PRC. The acquisition has been accounted for using

acquisition method.

Consideration transferred at fair value

35. Y g Fff B8 2~ H

RIEBE—=ZFA+=-H  KARNURER
{84,662,000,0007 7Tt W i 4L FLET 7 B E 1
B(THEHR]D  XZABAR_T—=F
—RAZThBTFIEZBR WER=_T—=
FHATZBRITZRREINARSERLNA
BEAAE TR _T—=F~ALAREK °
RER T B 82 X {8 /A5,040,870,0007
TC o HERHWNBARZ FEXBRNPEH
IWAEHE  AREEEEE H RAitfELE
BUBAENFBE 2 B - WEEERA
Wi E AR o

CERAEZAYE

HK$’000

FHT

Application of payment (Note) ERAM (KR 600,000
Promissory Notes (Note 32) & ER (M1EE32) 344,265
Ordinary shares (Note 29) L% (f5E29) 207,390
2013 Convertible Loan Notes A (Note 28) AT —=F A REREE(ME28) 3,889,215
5,040,870

Note:

HK$600,000,000 was deemed to have been authorised by City Bloom to be
applied towards the payment of an equivalent amount payable by City Bloom to
Mountain Sky Resources (Mongolia) Limited (‘MSM”), pursuant to the agreement
entered into between City Bloom and MSM, a substantial shareholder of the
Company and the acquirer of the Disposal Group (the “MSM Agreement”), on 12
June 2018, for the acquisition of 165,350,000 ordinary shares and 1,500,987,000
convertible preference shares of the Company by City Bloom from MSM (the
“Share Sale”), to satisfy the consideration payable by City Bloom in relation to the
Share Sale; and which sum, will be authorised by MSM to be applied towards
the payment of an equivalent amount payable by MSM to the Company pursuant
to the Disposal Agreement (as defined in Note 37) to satisfy the consideration
payable by MSM to the Company for the Disposal.

Acquisition-related costs amounting to approximately HK$9,992,000 have been
excluded from the cost of acquisition and have been recognised directly as an
expense in the period and included in the ‘administrative expenses’ line item in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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B EE -

BB R I KRR (RE)ARA A ([LREER]) I EE AR
A 71155,350,000 % I 38 A% K& 1,500,987,000 % AJ #5 #4218
R (THERD )M E + 600,000,000 T 18 1E C #
YK SR PR A S (SR AR AR I LR L R BEVR (RN AR £ &
BE - WAHESEZKER)R=-T—=FA+=H
I 2 ek ([LReER T |) BB T IL RAEIR 2 S8
I A ERDENSZRE  mARRKER
BILREREEARIMILRERBRELEHE(ERR
MizES7) M FAR R Z SEHIE « XM ILXREER
ESHEEMNTFARRZARE -

Uz BE MR B AX AN 49 459,992,000 7T+ B B Uk B AR 2K 7R i
B WEEBRARARY st AGEBER [1TTRE
BIEEA -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P BmRME

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE—Z—PF+—-A=+—HILFE
35. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

35. WEB R B 2 =] (4&)

Assets and liabilities recognised at the date of acquisition

RUBEEREZEERER

HK$’000
FHET
Non-current assets FEMEEE
Property, plant and equipment L E N 724,501
Mining rights PR 12,000,601
Deposits paid for acquisition of property, B - BERZBEZENES
plant and equipment 57,126
Current assets mBEE
Trade and other receivables B 5 K H h FE W RIE 276,290
Amount due from a related company FEU — IR E A 5] 5108 9
Amount due from a director R —BEEHIE 269
Bank balances and cash RITHEBRIE S 9,263
Current liabilities e =N
Trade and other payables B 5 R E MR FRIA (664,861)
Payables for the mineral resources ENEEEREES
compensation fees (142,168)
Amounts due to related companies FEfS @ A RI5RIE (445,639)
Amount due to a non-controlling interest holder JER — & FEIE R = 1 B AR (663,768)
Non-current liabilities FERBALE
Amount due to a non-controlling interest holder FEf — &R RIERIF B ARIR (1,829,636)
Provision for restoration, rehabilitation and 18 - B8 RIRF AR
environmental costs (60,096)
Deferred tax liability BEFIRAE (2,7883,832)
6,478,059

The receivables acquired (which principally comprised trade
receivables) with a fair value of HK$276,290,000 at the date of
acquisition had gross contractual amounts of HK$276,290,000. The

best estimate at acquisition date of the contractual cash flows not

expected to be collected amounted to nil.

EAEEY

BEHREEKRERNKBEESRZATER
276,290,000 8 T (X Z B EE 5 E KK
1) - & 44 E A276,290,000 7T ° I
TEE A E 2 &R S TENWER B2 &
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35.ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

35. WM B 2 = (AR)

168

Non-controlling interests

The non-controlling interest in Lexing and its subsidiaries recognised
at the acquisition date was measured by reference to the fair value of
the non-controlling interest and amounted to HK$5,098,744,000. This
value is estimated by applying an income approach.

The following were the key model inputs used in determining the fair

value:
e assumed discount rate of 16.09%

e assumed long-term sustainable growth rate of 3.00%

Goodwill arising on acquisition

FERES

G EU E B A R 2 JE R M 25 5 O
MER - YSRIERES ATV EIE -
£ %0/85,098,744,000/8 7 * I {E 318 Al
NEfhE -

NTRETATESHIAZEIEREHAH
%

o RRENIREHE16.09%

e MERERFELREEAR3.00%

WEEEHE

HK$'000

FHET

Consideration transferred E%%ﬁ%’i 5,040,870

Add: non-controlling interests D IERERR R A 5,098,744
Less: recognised amount of identifiable net assets /FX FrE R BRI EE FEZ EEREHE

acquired (100%) (100%) (6,478,059)

Goodwill arising on the Acquisition WHEEEEEZHE 3,661,555

Goodwill arose in the acquisition of Lexing because the consideration
paid for the acquisition effectively included amounts in relation to the
benefit of expected revenue growth, future market development and
the assembled workforce of Lexing. These benefits are not recognised
separately from goodwill because they do not meet the recognition

criteria for identifiable intangible assets.

None of the goodwill arising on this acquisition is expected to be

deductible for tax purposes.

Net cash inflow arising on acquisition

Cash and cash equivalent balances acquired

EWER e KRS EYER

R MBERES N 2 REZRBFELE
Z?EHJWZ sl RRMSERIARAT
ZHNmEEER  WREEERELARE - &
EH Ejﬁﬁééﬁiﬁé‘;“%ﬁﬁﬁﬂ AREAATE
A& BB & E R R R

B EEL 2 EEBERETARKEER W
T LAFUR ©

WEEEELE RS RAFHE

HK$’'000

THETT

9,263
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P BmRME

For the year ended 31 December 2014 &z — =

.ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

35

36.

—E+ZA=+—HALFE

Impact of acquisition on the results of the Group

Included in the loss for the year ended 31 December 2013 was
approximately HK$4,042,970,000 attributable to Lexing and its
subsidiaries. Revenue for the year ended 31 December 2013 included
approximately HK$49,652,000 is attributable to Lexing and its

subsidiaries.

Had the acquisition of Lexing been effected at the beginning of the
year, the total amount of revenue of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2013 would have been approximately HK$169,911,000,
and the amount of the loss for the year would have been approximately
HK$4,305,763,000. The proforma information is for illustrative
purposes only and is not necessarily an indication of revenue and
results of operations of the Group that actually would have been
achieved had the acquisition been completed at the beginning of the

year, nor is it intended to be a projection of future results.

In determining the ‘pro-forma’ revenue and loss of the Group had
Lexing been acquired at the beginning of the year, the directors
calculated depreciation and amortisation of property, plant and
equipment based on the recognised amounts of property, plant and

equipment at the date of the acquisition.

ACQUISITION OF ASSET THROUGH ACQUISITION OF
SUBSIDIARY

On 4 November 2014, the Group completed to acquire 100% equity
interest in Hamford Enterprises Limited (“Hamford Enterprises”) from
China Best Group Holding Limited, an independent third party, settled
by a cash consideration of HK$550,000. The directors of the Company
is of the opinion that the acquisition of Hamford Enterprises is in
substance an acquisition of asset instead of an acquisition of business
as the principal asset included in Hamford Enterprises was mainly a

motor vehicle and without any operation.

35.

36.

WEEF B2 R ()

WREEHAREXEZZE
HE-_Z-—=+-_A=Z=+—HBLEE
CEBRAELARHENBRAREMGY
4,042,970,0008 T - HE-_T—=F1+_-A
ST+—HREFEZWREBELEREMER
A FE(L 49,652,000/ 7T °

MR 7 WERFVEE  AEEHZEC
— =+ A=t BUHEFEZRZEES
#)7/169,911,0008 7T + MFEE BB B
#) /4,305,763,0008 T - #HEERHEHS
Z i’ﬂ\fi?%ﬁuﬁzﬁﬁaﬂi%ﬂﬁﬁwi@
HEERIUG 2 WA R &S 2 B1Z
THHERRRERE 2 F8R -

REEMEERNFNEERBEZAKE [
Z | WamRkERR - ERREEERRDE
BELREZEERSEIEDE  BEK
R ITE R -

ZRWENBARAMBBEE

RZZT—NME+—AMA - AEBZKFA
WEREEERERERAR(—BBIE=
FIWBERBCEERAR([HEHERCE])Z
100% & 4 + 3 DA BR € 550,0005% 7T X 7 X
B - ARAEERARNEBHEECEEL LA
WHEEE  MIFREES  EBRAEELCES
ERFEREFER—WMAERIEEE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P BwRME

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE—Z—PUFE+—-A=+—HILFE
36.ACQUISITION OF ASSETS THROUGH ACQUISITION OF 36.ZFRWBHE AT MWBEE

SUBSIDIARY (CONTINUED) (48)
The effect of acquisition is summarised as follows: Wiz ZEBEMT -
Consideration transferred EEENRE
HK$’000
FHEIT
Cash consideration BERE 550
Asset recognised at the date of acquisition R BRI EE
HK$’000
FHIT
Non-current assets FEMBEE
Property, plant and equipment Yz - B K& 550
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition WEBEE RS HFEHE
HK$’000
FHEIT
Cash consideration paid BERERE 550
37.DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES 37. HEWB AT
(a) Disposal of iron mine and coal operation (a) HERESRERER
On 12 June 2013, the Company entered into a sales and purchase RZZF—=F~A+=H XARAF]
agreement for the sale of the entire issued share capital in NARG VEEWZ NHELETEREER
and GLG and Sale Loans to MSM, a substantial shareholder of the GLGZ 2HMBEEHTHRAURFEER
Company, at a consideration of HK$600,000,000 (the “Disposal FARBIZEEREILKRER  REA
Agreement”). The Disposal was approved by shareholders of the 600,000,000 T ([ HEHFHE]) - HE
Company in the extraordinary general meeting held on 12 April EFEEERZZTE—=FNA+=HREITZ
2013 and completed on 7 June 2013. Upon the completion, the R A SEAR R R ET R =
Company ceased to hold any interest in the Disposal Group. The T—=FNALtHEK XRHTEMKE -
net assets of Disposal Group at the date of disposal were as RABTEFEHESEE R o &
follows: EEERLERBZEEFENT ¢
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e P BmRME

For the year ended 31 December 2014 EHZE= —=

37.DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

(a) Disposal of iron mine and coal operation (continued)
Analysis of assets and liabilities over which control was lost:

—E+ZA=+—HALFE

37.HEMB AT (&)

(a) HEEES R ERER(F)
KERHIRNEERABZAN

HK$’000

FHT

Property, plant and equipment ME - BEMERE 89,526
Mining right R 414,409
Deposit for acquisition of a subsidiary WE—HRNB ARz ES 23,088
Inventories FE 5,780
Trade and other receivables B 5 kA M W FRIE 7,337
Amount due from the Group FEU A S E FRIE 5,755
Amounts due from non-controlling interest holders  FEURIEIR IRIERRIF A AR 273
Bank balances and cash IRITHEBEIE S 4,416
Trade and other payables B 5 REMERIE (3,005)
Sale Loans BEER (294,313)
Amount due to a non-controlling interest holder BN — RIS AFUR (306)
Income tax payable R ER SRR (7)
Deferred tax liability BEEFIBAE (40,756)
Net assets disposed of BEHEEEFE 212,197

HK$’000

THET

Application of payment (Note) BRI (KR 600,000
Net assets disposed of Hj’iéﬁxﬂﬁ (212,197)
Non-controlling interests PR = (400)
Sale Loans assigned EEE%%EE%Z (294,313)
Cumulative exchange difference in respect of MEBARZEEFEHERENSHE

the net assets of subsidiaries reclassified from Bz BFtELZEE

equity to profit or loss 204
Gain on disposal of Disposal Group & S B2 s 93,294

Note:

The consideration of the Disposal shall be settled by the application of
the payment of an equivalent amount payable by the Group to City Bloom
pursuant to the Acquisition Agreement to satisfy part of the consideration for

the Acquisition, which is detailed in Note 35.

Net cash outflow arising upon disposal:

Bank balances and cash disposed of

MEE

HEFRZKBANERNREN  ERERAE
EREKE BHEEN TREAXNREEEDOHR
B2 FIR - FBERNHIRESS o

HK$’'000
FHT

HEBEECBESRHRE
BEHERITEBRERS (4,416)

During the year ended 31 December 2013, there was only
insignificant impact to the Group’s operating, investing and

financing cash flows from this disposal group.

RHE-2-=F+-A=t-ALFE
ZHESBEHAEE &Y  RERFE
HeREEKMTRENTE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 & Z —Z—F+_A=+—HILFE
37.DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

(b) Disposal of gold mine

On 23 October 2013, the Company entered into a sales and
purchase agreement for the sale of the entire issued share capital
in Dadizi Yuan LLC at a consideration of US$200,000 (equivalent
to HK$1,560,000). The disposal was completed on the same date.
Upon the completion, the Company ceased to hold any interest in
Dadizi Yuan LLC. The net assets of Dadizi Yuan LLC at the date of
disposal were as follows:

Analysis of assets and liabilities over which control was lost:

37. HEMB AT

(b) HELTE
EA:%—:¢+H ===IET ZK"

BEEWE  UHESHRBR |3
EITIRAS - R{Eﬁzoopooimﬁﬁ
E 1,560,000/ 7m) - HEEREAT
ﬁfz o x%fﬂ@% CANRTHBEERS

NElZ AR - Rh RHA AR
Hj%ElEHZéSE%E&DT:

(#4&)

FUKP

li

REZHENEERARZY

HK$’000

T

Property, plant and equipment Y% - BERZRE 5,943
Mining right PRuEE 26,805
Exploration and evaluation assets (Note a) IR M AT E & 2= (M iEa) =
Other receivables H it jE W KT8 1,468
Bank balances and cash RITHEBRRIR S 7
Other payables HAb e 308 (1562)
Net assets disposed of BHEEEFE 34,071

HK$’000

THETT

Cash consideration HeRE 1,560
Net assets disposed of BEHEEESFE (34,071)
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary HE—ENBARZEIE (32,511)

HK$’000
FHT
Net cash inflow arising upon disposal: HEREEZRESRATE
Cash consideration BE&KE 1,560
Bank balances and cash disposed of BRERITEREES (7)
1,653
Notes: B
(@) The exploration and evaluation assets represented cost incurred (@ BRRAHEEENRBEFERED

in prior years under the exploration licenses 13961X and 14955X
of approximately HK$7,645,000 and accumulated impairment loss
recognised in prior years of approximately HK$7,645,000.

(b) During the year ended 31 December 2013, there was only insignificant

impact to the group’s operating, investing and financing cash flows
from this disposal group.
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R 18 BB 13961X [z 14955X EE 4 2 A AR 49
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE—Z—PF+—-A=+—HILFE
38. RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS

Except as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial statements,
the Group entered into the following significant related party

transactions with related parties:

Compensation of key management personnel

The remuneration of the directors of the Company and other members

of key management during the year was as follows:

B.HAELXRS

Wiz e B mREME D AR EES -

A Ak
8 SRR AT LA T B AR 5 R 5 ¢

FTEEBAESHE
FR - ARAEEREMETEEEAE 2B
W :

2014 2013

—E2-F —ZF—=
HK$°000 HK$'000
FB5 Fir
Short-term benefits % HAtE A 3,568 5,889
Post-employment benefits BERR 22 68 46
3,636 5,985

The remuneration of directors of the Company and key executives
is determined by the remuneration committee having regard to the

performance of individuals and market trends.

39. MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2014, there were conversion of
convertible preference shares into ordinary shares as detailed in Note
29(a).

During the year ended 31 December 2014, there were conversion of

convertible loan notes into ordinary shares as detailed in Note 29(d).

During the year ended 31 December 2013, as part of the consideration
in acquisition of the subsidiaries, promissory notes, ordinary shares and

convertible loan notes were issued as detailed in Note 35.

During the year ended 31 December 2013, there were conversion of

convertible loan notes into ordinary shares as detailed in Note 29(d).

ARBEZRETETHRABZFMAFME
BeREARBETSHBEEE

V.ETEFRERS

HE-_Z-NE&E+_A=+t—HLEEE " F
ATRB e IR B T mAR - B ER MR
29(a) °

BE_Z—NE+-_A=+—HIFE &
MR ERERER ST B FEERH
F£29(d) °

HE-_Z-—Z=F+-_A=+t—HLEFE &
RNABBETERLER - TBRRABRRKRER
R ERNERBARZHARE @ F18
FHRMIEESS o

BHE-_Z—=F+-_A=t+—HLFE ' &

AREERREERSE AR - FIEHRNH
7£29(d) °
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39.

40.

174

MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Company has
issued 351,122,243 Ordinary Shares (amount to approximately
HK$108,847,000, as detailed in Note 29 and 547,638,384 Subscription
CPS (amount to approximately HK$135,800,000, as detailed in Note
30(b) to Bond Holder A and raised additional amount of approximately
HK$4,102,000 of loan from a related company according to the
settlement deed, as detailed in Note 28 under the sub-heading
2010 Convertible Loan Note A to settle Set-Off Convertible Loan
Notes and its outstanding interest with aggregate carrying amount of
HK$156,937,000.

COMMITMENTS

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had the following

commitments:

(a) Commitments under operating leases
The Group as lessee
The Group leases certain of its office premises and staff quarters
under operating lease arrangements. Leases for properties are
negotiated for a term ranging from two months to three years and

rentals are fixed.

NORTH ASIA RESOURCES HOLDINGS LIMITED e 1t 5 & RIZ R SR A &

39.

40.

FEFRREERZ (A)

REBEEZZ—=F+-A=+—HBLFE
A AR BB 17351,122,243 I% 38 A% (R
F#7108,847,0007 7T+ 7 R M 7£29) &
547,638,384 iX i 7] 8 #4018 SE AR (IR R4
135,800,000/ 7T » & R F30(0)) FEHFF
BAA - WIRERERRE S —HEEAR
IR 2 494,102,000/ LB K EINIE (F R
Misro8 A —Z — T RRERER]E
B2 T) - LAMERIRE 4% %156,937,000%8
T2 EHTRRERERREREENE

IR
R A - ARG TARE :

(a) MEHERRE
AEBERAEEA
AEBREEERERHEELETRT
RUMERBTRES - MERRHE AR
BAZ=FT%  TXNEEES -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e P BmRME

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE—Z—PF+—-A=+—HILFE
40. COMMITMENTS (CONTINUED)

(a) Commitments under operating leases (continued)
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments for
future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating

leases which fall due as follows:

40. A 32 (&)

(a) KEHEAE(E)
RBEBR - NEBIRET A BEHEE
EE L THR R 2 KRR ERS A
BT

2014 2013
—E—nF —E—=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FAIT

Land and buildings T RAETF
Within one year —FR 6,026 3,490
In the second to fifth year inclusive FEFRF(BREEMT) 4,810 1,899
10,836 5,389

(b) Other capital commitments

Contracted but not provided for in respect BRI 4B R B AE
of acquisition of property, plant and

equipment

(b) HfEAERE

2014

—E2-F

2013
—E—=F
HK$’000

T

HK$’000
FTERT

Wi - R Rk

315,925 368,370
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE—Z—PUFE+—-A=+—HILFE
41, STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY  41. KA T B #& Ak R &R

2014 2013
—Z2-mF —ET—=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FE T FHBT
Non-current assets IEREBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BB &R 82 44
Investments in subsidiaries BB AR ZRE 390 390
472 434
Current assets MENEE
Other receivables E Ath fE W R IE 3,052 3,167
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEU Y A RIRIE (@) 5,067,350 5,117,879
Amount due from a director B —REERIE 66 63
Derivative component of convertible THRRERZE ZTE
loan notes T AR 11,340 16,678
Bank balances and cash RITEB KRR S 14,954 18,909
5,096,762 5,156,696
Current liabilities mEaE
Other payables E th & 5XI8 7,047 10,016
Amounts due to subsidiaries FERTB B A RIFRIA (@) 1,685 1,795
Amounts due to related companies ik NGIE S 20,053 -
Derivative component of convertible AIRRERERITETAR
loan notes =) 930,730 1,485,672
959,515 1,497,483
Net current assets MEBEEFE 4,137,247 3,659,213
4,137,719 3,659,647
Capital and reserves BN R i#
Share capital &N 60,350 28,970
Convertible preference shares AT A ST AR 19,887 21,071
Reserves Gtz (b) 1,191,462 647,489
Total equity Tt 1,271,699 697,530
Non-current liabilities ERFBEE
Promissory notes & R 278,634 275,416
Liabilities component of convertible ARBRERZEE AR
loan notes i 2,587,386 2,686,701
2,866,020 2,962,117
4,137,719 3,659,647
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e P BmRME

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE—Z—PF+—-A=+—HILFE

41. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY 41, 75 2 5] B ¥ A S 3% (48)
(CONTINUED)

(@) Amounts due from (to) subsidiaries (a) BW(EM)MBARMRE
The amounts are unsecured, non-interest bearing and repayable ZEREABEER - £ B RARBERE
on demand. The fair values of the amounts at the end of the B8 HRZEREREHANINE - &
reporting period was approximated to the corresponding carrying ERMERRz AFERETDERS °

amounts due to their short-term maturity.

(b) Reserves (b) &
Share  Contributed options  Accumulated
premium surplus reserve losses Total
R EE BABE BRERE 2REE w@ct
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
THT FEL T THT THET
At 1 January 2013 RZE—=%F
—H—H 3,939,988 458,561 29,5645 (4,182,885) 245,209
Loss for the year FEEIE - = = (66,408) (66,408)
Issue of shares upon A 5 #a n] B AR 5
conversion of AR M ETIR
convertible preference
shares (651) - = = (651)
Conversion of convertible 4, # A # A% & X
loan notes e 32,979 - - - 32,979
Capitalisation of AR ERE R
convertible loan notes BEARLIE 235,660 - - - 235,660
Issue of shares for A U EE BB A A
acquisition of mEITIRG
subsidiaries 200,700 - - - 200,700
At 31 December 2013 RZT—=
and 1 January 2014 +=—A=+—H
R=ZT—MMF
—H—H 4,408,676 458,561 29,545 (4,249,293) 647,489
Loss for the year FEEE = = = (22,068) (22,068)
Issue of shares upon A 53R n] e i
conversion of BrERMmEST
convertible preference f& 5
shares (161) - - = (161)
Conversion of convertible 5, # Al i & 7
loan notes i 566,202 - - - 566,202
At 31 December 2014 RZZ—HaF
+=-—A=+—H 4,974,717 458,561 29,545 (4,271,361) 1,191,462
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e P BwRME

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZ —ZE—NFE+ A =+—HIFEE

42.INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

At the end of the reporting period, the Company has interests in the

following principal subsidiaries:

Nominal value
Place of of paid-up share/

Company incorporation

registered capital
RARH,/

2 AEMER ¥ 4 2 HREXZEE

Held directly:
EERE:
Technology Venture BVI US$1,000
Investments Limited
AERIES 1,000% 7
North Asia Precious Metals BV US$60,000
Group Limited
AERAES 60,000% 7
Guang Cheng Group Limited ~ BVI US$1
BREEARAT ARARES 1%
Held indirectly:
BiERA
Sequent China/ Hong Kong HK$10,000
Hong Kong Limited
Eh 10,000/7C
Technology Venture (Software) BVI US$1,000
Holdings Limited
ABRAEE 1,000%7
Topasia Computer Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000
BEEMERAR Bk 10,000/87C

2.REBATZERE

R|EHR > AARRTIEZME QR
=l

e
BX

Proportion of

Class of Proportion of voting power held
shares held

i
BOEd]

ownership interest by the Company Principal activities

RAREL ) FRARFERFEL)
2014 2013 2014 2013
“¥-RE Z2--F —¥-BE 2 -F

% % % %

TERH

Ordinary 100 100 100 100  Investment holding

il RERR

Ordinary 100 100 100 100  Investment holding

i RERR

Ordinary 100 100 100 100  Investment holding

i} REER

Ordinary 100 100 100 100 Distribution of information
technology products and
provision of computer
technology services

LR AHEANRERREMLE
R

Ordinary 100 100 100 100  Investment holding

R REER

Ordinary 100 100 100 100 Distribution of information
technology products and
provision of computer
technology services

i AHEANRERREMLE
R
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE—Z—PF+—-A=+—HILFE
42.INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 2. AHBARZRE (E)

Nominal value Proportion of

Place of of paid-up share/  Class of Proportion of voting power held

incorporation registered capital  shares held  ownership interest by the Company Principal activities

B4RG/ R

aEMR L3 2 EMERZEE RGEEH BERELH ARAREREELS TEXH
2014 2014
—§-mF -I-=F —g-mF
; %

Topsoft Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000  Ordinary 100 100 100 100  Distribution of information
technology products and

provision of computer

technology services
LERERAR Eh 100008 & AREANRERRIEHE
Ja X s
* Topasia Tech (Shanghai) The PRC US$3,800,000  Registered 100 100 100 100  Distribution of information
Limited (Note) Capital technology products and
provision of computer
technology services
BERR(LE)BRAR i 3800000%r &R AHEEANRERRIEMHE
GiEd) Ja X s
# Topasia IT (Shanghai) The PRC US$1,000,000  Registered 100 100 100 100  Provision of systems
Limited (Note) Capital integration and
maintenance services
BEERMRRB(LE) il 1,000,000k AR REZRERRRERE
ARRR (M)
CTG Resources Group Hong Kong HK$10,000  Ordinary 100 100 100 100  Investment holding
Limited
ERARERERAR BB 10,0008 & REER
Lexing BVI US$1  Ordinary 100 100 100 100  Investment holding
£ ABANES [E i RERR
Hong Kong OEPC Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000  Ordinary 100 100 100 100  Investment holding
EABRRRTLARAT AR 10,0008 &8 RERR
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZ —ZE—NFE+ A =+—HIFEE

42.INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

TREREXARAT

TRERERREARAR

IREERERREERAR
R BRAERARA

ARMERRABRARLH

W SRR AR AT

Shanxi coal
LAFREREER
RAREBRAR

Jinxin

©&

180

Nominal value
Place of of paid-up share/

incorporation

registered capital

BdRG/

BaiEAEE EMER 2 HfE

The PRC RMB113,000,000
B AE113,000,0007
The PRC RMB60,300,000
HE AE%60,300,0007
The PRC RMB51,350,000
HE AE%51,350,0007
The PRC RMB10,000,000
B AE%10,000,0007
The PRC RMB1,100,000
HE AR1,100,0007
The PRC RMB100,000,000
HE AR100,000,0007C
The PRC RMB370,000,000
i AR 370,000,0007C
The PRC RMB50,080,000
i AR %50,080,0007

Class of Proportion of
shares held

Fis
gl

ownership interest

BERELS
2014 2013
“E-mF —T-=%
% %
Registered 100 100
Capital
AR
Registered 100 100
Capital
AR
Registered 100 100
Capital
AR
Registered 100 100
Capital
HHER
Registered 100 100
Capital
EMER
Registered 100 100
Capital
EMER
Registered 49 49
Capital

AR

Registered 49 49
Capital
AR

NORTH ASIA RESOURCES HOLDINGS LIMITED e 1t 5 & RIZ R SR A &

Proportion of

voting power held

by the Company

FRTRERERL

2014

—g-px

%

100

100

100

100

100

100

49

49

100

100

100

100

100

49

49

2. AHBRRZRE (&)

Principal activities

IREH

Coal Operation

RiE%

Coal trading and new energy
development

RRIRE 5 R R R %

Energy wholesale and
investment

RRBERIRE

Investment holding

REZK

Investment holding

ARTERREERER
A7)

Energy development and
equipment trading

WRRERREES

Coal operating and trading

REBEES

Coal mine development

Rrs



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P BmRME

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE—Z—PF+—-A=+—HILFE

42.INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) R2.RHBARIZRE (&)
Nominal value Proportion of
Place of of paid-up share/  Class of Proportion of voting power held
incorporation registered capital  shares held  ownership interest by the Company Principal activities
BaRD/ R
B AEE dfExEE RORR BERELH RAABEREELA TTER
2014 2013 2014
“g-mF -3-=F —2-Mf
% % %
Bolong The PRC RMB23,924,200  Registered 49 49 49 49 Coal mine development
Capital
i Gl ARM23,924200  HMEA BRmg
Liaoyuan The PRC RMB2,000,000  Registered 49 49 49 49  Coal mine development
Capital
Bk i AR#2,000000 &R ek
Fuchang The PRC RMB2,000,000  Registered 34 34 34 34 Coal mine development
Capital
(] il AR2,0000007  #EMEA ek
Xinfeng The PRC RMB62,000,000  Registered 49 49 49 49 Coal mine development
Capital
gl Gl ARM62,000000 AR KRy
Note: Wholly-owned foreign enterprises. fIaE - INEBEDRE -
# English name is for identification purpose only #: EHEER
The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the FEFAANAATNBARE AESERATE
opinion of the directors, principally affect the results for the year or HEREEFRNEESBERAEBEEFE
formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To give BEABHZAA - BEERE @ IREEMHTE
details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result ARIZFHBFEHLRBEBERITE °

in particulars of excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding as at the BMENE AR BEETANREEBRNEE
end of the year or at any time during both years ended 31 December E—NER T =F+-"A=+—"HBHItW
2014 and 2013. B EERRREE R BEHES
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE—Z—PUFE+—-A=+—HILFE
42.INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that have material non-

controlling interests:

The table below shows details of non-wholly-owned subsidiaries of the

Group that have material non-controlling interests:

Place of

incorporation and

principal place of

2. AHBRRZRE (&)

TREVHAERFERERZAE

B E A EFE

Proportion of
ownership
interest and
voting power
held by the

non-controlling

Loss
allocated to

non-controlling

BREEAFREES FREMBRRFE

JiE]

*E

Accumulated

non-controlling

Name of the subsidiary business interests interests interests
FIERER il e
= AR 3L 1t B % EEREL AR FEEEIR R
MEARER TEEEMT FERRE ZER REtFEREz
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FTHET
2014
—ZE—mEF
Shanxi Coal and its subsidiaries The PRC 51% 470,623 4,631,259
L P R e LB /B A ) 1
2013
—E—=F
Shanxi Coal and its subsidiaries The PRC 51% 197,840 4,900,904
L P e e BB B8 A ) [
Individually immaterial 398 -
subsidiaries with
non-controlling interests
BIRSENEAMBAIEE S s
198,238 4,900,904
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE—Z—PF+—-A=+—HILFE

42.INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 2.RHEARZRE (&)

As at 31 December 2014 and 2013, the Group has only 49% ownership
in Shanxi Coal, the directors of the Company concluded that the Group
has control over Shanxi Coal on the basis of set out in Note 4. The
51% ownership interests in Shanxi Coal are owned by Shanxi Coal
Transportation and Sales Group Co., Ltd. (41%) and | Fage/RE £ EE
BREMLLF (10%).

Summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s subsidiaries
that has material non-controlling interests is set out below. The
summarised financial information below represents amounts before

intra-group eliminations.

Shanxi Coal and its subsidiaries

WERERREKRBEQE

REZBE—MERZT—=FF+=ZA=+—
B AEEEHEBILAERZ49% @ KD
RIERGHER  NEBRILAKKAZE
B HEEFHNWES o ILFARIR 251%HH
HELAEREHEEBRABEAN %R
LR REXEEERET AR HEEF10% °

AEBBERERFEERERZMBAR 28
BEMBMERNTX - TXZHBERRE
EEBEAARHEHEMN ISR -

Current assets mENEE

Non-current assets EMENEE

Current liabilities mEE &

Non-current liabilities EMBEE

Equity attributable to owners of the Company KA AR
Non-controlling interests IR

2014
—E—MmF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FBT T
49,526 135,071
12,737,457 12,825,416
(2,621,173) (1,189,323)
(4,425,988) (5,387,818)
1,208,563 1,482,442
4,531,259 4,900,904
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE—Z—PUFE+—-A=+—HILFE

42.INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 2.AMBARIZIRE (&)
Shanxi Coal and its subsidiaries 2014 2013
L 7 5 e B EL B T 2 B —E-NF —E—=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Turnover HER 44,644 9,794
Expenses X (1,074,573) (414,789)
Loss for the year FEBE (825,706) (347,117)
Loss attributable to owners of the Company RAREE AENEE (355,083) (149,277)
Loss attributable to non-controlling interests FEER R R EE (470,623) (197,840)
Loss for the year and total comprehensive FEBERFESEMS A
expenses for the year (825,706) (347,117)
Net cash inflow (outflow) from operating activities RE&LE XK 2B ERA
()58 49,133 (187,376)
Net cash outflow from investing activities REFREEH 2R MLFRA (424,445) (173,026)
Net cash inflow from financing activities REREEB RS RAFRE 370,125 356,801
Net cash outflow B R (5,187) (3,601)
43.EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD 43. R EHZREIE
()  On 5 January 2015, a holder of the 2013 Convertible Loan Notes () RZZ—HF—ARA A==
A converted HK$8,000,000 into 47,058,822 ordinary shares of the FRRBRERRR 256 AH8,000,000
Company. 75 JT 88 i 5 47,058,822 IR AN A 7] & B
% o
(i) On 28 March 2015, the Group entered into a memorandum of iy R=ZE—RAF=A=+=H ' A5EHH
understanding with an independent third party to acquire 51% — BB E =R RRE S W
interest in Great Payment Limited. Details of which have been Great Payment Limited 251 %z © 7
disclosed in the announcement of the Company at the same date. BEENARNARIREBEL ZAE o
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